
 

Overview and Scrutiny CommitteeOverview and Scrutiny CommitteeOverview and Scrutiny CommitteeOverview and Scrutiny Committee        

AGENDA    
 

DATE: 

 

Tuesday 18 December 2012 

 

TIME: 

 

7.30 pm 

 

VENUE: 

 

Committee Rooms 1&2                              

Harrow Civic Centre 

 

 

 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 4) 

   

  Chairman: 

 

Councillor Jerry Miles  

 

  Councillors: 

 
Sue Anderson 
Ann Gate 
Krishna James 
Zarina Khalid 
 

Kam Chana 
Barry Macleod-Cullinane 
Paul Osborn (VC) 
Stephen Wright 
 

  
 

 
 
Representatives of Voluntary Aided Sector:  Mrs J Rammelt/Reverend P Reece 
Representatives of Parent Governors:  Mrs A Khan/1 Vacancy 
Representative of Harrow Youth Parliament (non voting) 
    
(Note:  Where there is a matter relating to the Council’s education functions, the “church” 
and parent governor representatives have attendance, speaking and voting rights.  They are 
entitled to speak but not vote on any other matter.) 

 

Reserve Members: 

 
1. Nana Asante 
2. Ben Wealthy 
3. Victoria Silver 
4. Sasi Suresh 
5. Krishna Suresh 
 

1. Chris Mote 
2. Tony Ferrari 
3. Christine Bednell 
4. Susan Hall 
 

  
 

 
 
Contact:  Alison Atherton, Senior Professional - Democratic Services 
Tel:  020 8424 1266    E-mail:  alison.atherton@harrow.gov.uk 

 



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 18 December 2012 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary or non pecuniary interests, arising 

from business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee; 
(b) all other Members present. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2012 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the provisions 

of Committee Procedure Rule 17 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Committee Procedure Rule 15 (Part 4B of the Constitution). 
 

6. REFERENCES FROM COUNCIL/CABINET    
 
 (if any). 

 
7. CHANGES IN PUBLIC REALM SERVICES   (Pages 9 - 18) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Environment and Enterprise 

 
8. DRAFT CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN AND DRAFT DELIVERING WARMER 

HOMES (HECA) REPORT   (Pages 19 - 154) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Environment and Enterprise 

 
 



 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 18 December 2012 

9. STANDING REVIEW OF THE BUDGET - USE OF CAPITAL RESOURCES   (To 
Follow) 

 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Strategic Commissioning 

 
10. REPORT FROM THE PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE SCRUTINY SUB-

COMMITTEE CHAIR   (To Follow) 
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Strategic Commissioning 

 
11. SCRUTINY LEAD MEMBER REPORT    
 
 Report of the Divisional Director of Strategic Commissioning 

 
12. ANY OTHER BUSINESS    
 
 Which the Chairman has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II   

 
 Nil   

 
    

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



� ����������	
����
��	������������������������������� ��������

�
�
�

����������	
����
��	��

������������

��	
����

�

���	�������������
�
�
��������	� �� ��
	�������������������
� � �
�
����


��	� ��  ����!�	��

�� "		�#����
��  ���!	��������
�� $�����������
��
���	�	���
�

�� %�
�������	�
��  ���!	���
���!�&'(�
�� ������
���!�&�(�
�� ���)!�	�*��+!��
�

�
�����
�
�
����	�

&,��
	�����"�
�
(�
�
-� ������.�������
�� .�����	
�%�.�����
�

&%���	��#����	���(�
�
�� ����"� !�	�
�

�������������	�
��
����


����
�

�� ���/��#���	�
�

��	
�������

�� 0�	������������)����	��
&'(1�&�(�0�	��������+�����2�.���������������
-� 0�	������)���+�����������
�
�
�

����� �������������� ����!��"���������
�
 #$%&�#'	� � 3�� 	���� �!�� ����	
�	��� ��� �!��������	+� �2� �!�� 2������	+� 

���
�))��	��
�.��������������4��
�
��
�	������������
�

.��������������
�

��
	��������
��"	
����	� ��
	�������������
���!�
��
	�������5���	�� !���
� ��
	������� ���!	���
���!�
�

Agenda Item 3 
Pages 1 to 8 

1



�

����������	
����
��	������������������������������� ��������

�
��(�� '��
�����
���
)������������

�
 #$%&�#'	��3��	�����!����!��2������	+��	�����������
������
�

��	+��!��
��
�����2��!�������	+4�
�
"+�	
��6����7�8�%�����2���
�6�)������	��%��	�
��
	�������$�����������
��
���	�	��
������
���	�	�)��
	����� �	������� �	� �!���
!��������)����
����9�	
�	���
	����:� �;����
�
������	� �	� �!��������!�����
�!���������������	��
���
��	
�����
�
)�	:�
�

��*�� "���������
�
3!�������������+���
������	��
����!����	
�����������������2�
�+�	���2����!��
�����	�� ���� �
�� �	� �!�� �
))����	���� �+�	
�:� 6	� ��	��
���	+� �!�� ��	
���1�
������������	
�
��22�������!����!���������<)����	+���)�����2��!���	���������
����
�	���
	�	�����
�=
�����	���	��������	����,�
+!�	���!���:�
�
 #$%&�#'	� �3!����!����	
�����2� �!�������	+�!��
��	����������������1����
��>�	�������
��	
���+	�
�������������������
:�
�

��+�� ,��
���-�����
�����
�
 #$%&�#'	��3��	�����!���	��)
�����=
�����	��������������
:�
�

����� ,�����
�����
�
 #$%&�#'	��3��	�����!���	��)������	��!�
����	��������
:�
�

�����  �)��������)�
���
����
.���������� �)�������)�
������������++�%��
����
�*+����,��!���� ������$���
��/
���������/���
0���
�
3!�������������+���
������	��
����!����2���	���2��������	����������������2�

�+�	��� 2��� �!�� �����	�� ���� �
�� �	� �!�� �
))����	���� �+�	
�:� 3!�� �!����
�
����
��!��� �!�����
��	����)�����	�%�������.�	��
��������;�
��	+��	�;������
!�
����	������ �������
��������	����	
��!��������2� �!���������	
����	��!�
�
���	� ��>�	� �	� ����
:� ;�� �<)�����
� !��� �!�	>�� ��� �!�� �!���� �2� �!�� �������
+��
)��	
��!����!���)������)�	���2����!�������>:�
�
 #$%&�#'	�3!�������	��?�����)�	������	���
:�
�

 #$%&�#'��1#"$���
�

��2�� ,
���%)���������
!������,
�����
�
3!���!�����������
��!��%���2�����;��
���2����!��
��	1���!������	
�@�������1�
�!���!��2�A<��
������	
��!�����)������0���������2��!��
��	��	
�@���������	
�
�22����������!�������	+:�
�
3!�������������������
�����)�����!��!������
���!��>������
��������	+�2�����!��
�2���
� 6	�)�����	� �2� ��2�+
��
�	+� �	
� 9��>�
� "2���� �!��
��	?�� ���������

2



�

�������� � ����������	
����
��	�������������������������������

������
� �
�� �	����� ����:� 3!�� ��)���� �
����
� �!��� �!�� ���)������0�������� �2�
�!��
��	��	
�@��������!�
���	��	�
��	� 6�)������	��$���
� ������
�����)�
�
��)������	����!��
+!��	�6�)������	��%��	��+���
��������)���	���:��
�
3!���!��2�A<��
����������
��!�����2�+
��
�	+�������)���������	
��!���������	+�
�2�B�
�=
���?�����	���+��
��	�
+!��	
��!����!����)������2��������������
�
�
��� 
��
� ��� �� ��������� ��� ������ �!�� ���:� ;�� �����
� �!��� !�� ��
�
� ��������
���������!�
+!����	
��
������	��!����)������	��)��	:�
�
3!�� ���)������ 0�������� �2� �!��
��	� �	
� @�������� �	
����
� �!�� ��	����	���
�<)�����
�����!���!��2�A<��
������	
��
����
��!����!���	�)�����	������������
C

+���	���	� �!��)���	���!�)�������	� �!����
	�����	
�;����!:��!���
����
�
�!����!��������	�����9��>�
�"2�����!��
��	�0�������	�)������	
��!����!��	���
��2�+
��
�	+��!����������+
���������!��!���!��2�A<��
����1��!��9��
����2��!��
��
	���� �	
� %���2����� ;��
��� 2��� �!��
��	1� ��!����� �	
� @�������� ��� ����� ���
!�����2:�3!��������1�!������1���������C����!����	+����!��
��	
��!���
���	�
�
�!���!�	+������!���������	
��!�����>��
���	�������	+�������
:�
�
;���	+� ��	��
���
� �!�� ��)���1� �������� ��>�
� =
�����	�� �	
� ��
�� �!��
2������	+������	��4�
�

•� ���������<)�����
��!������	���	��	
�
���))��	���	���!����!�������	�
)��	�
�
�	����	��

���	��
�����	
������!���2����	����	2��������:�3!����
�))����
����������
������!�)������������	����	
������������
��
)�����
������2���	��������D�:�"	��22������
����
��!����!����)����!�
�
���	�)��)���
��	��!����	��<���2��	���2��!���������+
����
��������2�
������+����	��	���	
��2������!������������
����!�
����	��	��

�
����
��
�
�!������>�	�
)��!���	�������)���:�3!�����)������0���������

�
�
�!����2���
�!�
��������	
�
��!����!��B2��	��
���?��!���!��
��!�
����	�
����!�+!:�3!����!�
����	��	��	��������	��!��	
������2��!��
��	�+��	+�
���>��	
�2���!��!��
+!��!����������
���!����!��������	����������	+���
��	+���������������	:�3!��6	������0������	���0���������
����
��!����!����
!�
����	����E����22��
�	������	
1����!��!���<��)���	��2�����	�����
=
���2��
�����������>���1��������22�������
���	�����+�	������!�
+!��!����
�����)��	���������
���)����	�	�����22��	��!��B2��	��
���?��	
��	���

�����
	���������2��
��	��
�)��������	��:�

�

•� "�������������	��
��!����!����D���))����
��������������!�	����!�
�
���	����������������+���	
1�2������	+��!�����)�	���2�����!�����)������
0���������!����!��!�
���	���	�����
���!�����
��	�����2��!��!��������
2�+
���1�!���<)�����
���	���	��!���)�����������!�)��2����	���
����
��������������
��)���
:�;�������
��!���!��!�
����	��	2����
�������
�!���
����!���
���������	���������	������������2��!��
��	?����������:�"��
�!��2������%���2�����;��
���2���%��2����	���!��!�
����	����
��
��!���

�����������
������	
�!���!���2��������	�����	2�
�	���	���>�	+��!��

�����	�2�������
��	��:�3!�����)������0�����������)�	
�
��!����!����
!�
����	�
�������
������!���+��
�����!��F�
�!��22�	
�	+�3�����
��
�!����!�
�	������	���������
:�

�
"	��22������
����
��!����!��)�����������!��!��=
�������2�������2��!��

����!�
�����������+!���!��)�����
��������	
��!�����������!����������!���
!�
�!�+!��+!��
��!�����
�:����22�!�
����	������	+�������
��	����B���)�

3



�

����������	
����
��	������������������������������� ����'���

�!������>����>�	+?��	
��!�	�����)�	�	+��!�����������!��!�!�
��!���2����
��	�)
����
��!��)��2����	����	
������:�6	�������������!��2��
��!�
�
���	������	+���������������!����!�	�=
�����:�3!�����)������0���������2�
�!��
��	��	
�@���������

�
��!��������������
����!�������������
���
����!������)��>�
�
)����
����	�)���������!��!��!�����!���
+!���
���>�
��	��:��"��)�����2��!�������)�����	+���
��1��!�����������	��	
�
������+!���2�
�������������	�!�
����	�����
�����!��%��2����	���
	��:�
�
3!���!��2�A<��
����������
��!������������<)��	����	���
�
����)����
�
�
������������	��������2�
����=
�����:��2���
�!�
����	��2��!��������!���
�!������������������+��
1��

����	������>�������=
���
��	��!��=
������
�2� �!�� ���>:� "� +������� ��)!����� �	� =
������ ���
��	��� ���� ��=
���
��
�	
� !�� ���� >��	� �!��� �!�� ��
	���� ����	�� 2���� �!�� +��
� )��������� �	�
��!����
�!�������:�3!��	������22��!���!�
����	����
+!���	����!����������
������2���!�+!��������:��

�

•� "�������������	��
��!����	��������2��!����)������	��)��	��!��������
�	����
���	��!���!������
	�
����!��1������������1�!�������
))���
�
���
���	
������
��!����������
	�������!�����)�����!�
���)����
:�3!��
���)������0���������
����
��!����!��)��	�!�
����	�)��)���
��	���	�����!�
�!����=
�����	����2��2���
��	
��!����!����������	��
�2��������������
�����	��	������
�=
�������2��
������:�

�

•� "��������=
�����	�
�!����
�!������
�
����������

������!�����
���

������
��	��!����)������	��)��	��	
������
����
��!����!�����
�
����
��	���	�
����!�	��<����	+��

+���:�3!�����)������0���������
����
��!���
�!���������	������
�����2�	�	�������)�������	���	
��!����!����
�
�
���
������2�!���)���	�����
	
���)�	
:�3!���!��2�A<��
������

�
��!�����
�!��
��	���������������	����<��)��2������>�	+�����	����
���	����
�

+�������	+��!������>��	����)�������2��	����	������������>���:�;��
����)��
��!��������?�������	���!����������!�
�
������
�������
�<)�����:�

�

•� .��)�	
�	+������������?�������	����!����!����)������	��)��	�����
�	���)������	
��	��

�
��
���2�
����
���1��!��6	������0������	���
0���������
����
��!������!�
����	��
�C�������2���	�+!�����	
1��	�
�������	1��������+
�����������	:��

�

•� 6	��������2����22��
�	����1���������������
��!����!����	
�����
��!����!����
������)��������)����������!�������:�3!����)����
�
�	����	��

����

�)�����	�������
��
����	
�!��=
�����	�
��!�����	���

����	������22�
��
�
����)����
:�3!����)�����!�
�
������!�����	��

�
��	���22�������
�	
��!���������2�=
���������
��	����	
�!�+!��+!���!�����!������
�
����
����	+�:�;��=
�����	�
��!��!����!��
�)�����	�?���
��
����	��
��+�
�
�	����������	��2�)�������G���
��:�3!�����)������0�����������)�	
�
�
�!��������������!�+!����������
���!����!��B2��	��
���?��	
�F�3�!�
�
)����	��
����
��:��3!��	����
��
����	�3��+���
����������
	
����!��
)����	����	�+���	�������	���2��!����	������	�+����!���	+��	��)�	�

����������22��	
��!�������������!���)�����������22�������<)����	��	+�
	��
�
��������!���
��)�	����	
����
���	���!���
:��.���	���!�	+����2�
��	�+���	���	��!��B2��	��
���?�!�
�+�	������	+���������

������!��

4



�

����D��� � ����������	
����
��	�������������������������������

���
����	
���	����++�����������)��+	��������
������22��	
�����	+�
��	�+��������
	
�����:��%����)��2����	+���	�+����!�
�����
��	�
�	
�����	+���=
���������
��	�����������������	�)����:�3!��0�����������
!�
1���>��������!���
�)�����	��1���
����+	�2���	������	+���2�HD���	
�
!�
�+��	���
����2������H�:���:��3!���!�
����	��	��!����	��<���2�

���+��)!���+����!:��3!�����)������0���������
����
��!����!��������
	�������������
����������2���=
���������
��	���2������	+��!��9�	
�	�
��
	�������
��:��

�

•� 6	��������	����)�������!���2�+
��
�	+1���������������
��!����!��
��)������	��)��	��	����))����
������������������!���>�%��>�!��)����:�
�!������	
�
��22�������!�������	�!�
����!������	��������2��!�����!���
���!�
����+��������!��	
��!��=
�����	�
��!��!���������������	+���	���
������	�)��������!���!���!��)�����:���������������
����
��!����!��
)����������
�
��))�����������<)����	������	��	
��!������>�!�
����	�

�	�����!��!����	
��!��%������������3�
��:�

�

•� "��������=
�����	�
��!��)����������
��
�����	�
����!����������
���
���=
���������
��	�����
�����
�
������)����	��
��	
�����
�
����
��!����!������
�
������+�������2��
���	��
������:�*��>�!�
�
���	�
�	���	�6%"0��&����))�������(��	
�����������!�
�����	
�
��������
���>�����	�������:�3!�����)������0�����������>��	�����
��!��������?��
�����	����!���
��	+������22�����+!����������	��!��)��	���
�
����!��)2
�:�

�

•� 6	����)�	��������������?��=
�����	1��!��6	������0������	���0��������
�
����
��!�����!����!���������	���2��!��
��	�9��>�
�"2����&�9"(�����
������
��
�����!�	��!��2������I�
�����2��!�����	�����������:�6��
����
�!����
��	�����)���	�������

�����
����!��9"�����))��)�����:�6	��������2�
�!�����!��
��	����!�

���!�����+���!����
	������
�
1��!�������)�������1�
���>�����	�
����!����!����	��
���	��������2�����!�)1�2��
��	
���!���
�
�!����
����������������!��2�����������:�

�

•� 6	��������2�)����	
�����	���	1����������=
�����	�
�!�����	���2�
�!�������22��!��!�
�C
������	��
����
��!����!�������������
�
�����
�����
�E���
�
�	������������	��	��������	���
�����������	��!��:��22������
�
����
��!�����������))��<��������D��)����	�	�����22��	
��!���
�����
!�
����	����
�������!��!����������>����
))����	��:�3!���!��2�
A<��
�����
	
�����>�����!��>��!��!���A=
������6�)����"�������	���
!�
����	�������
��
���	��!������������>���)��������)�����2��!�����>��	�
�������	
���	
����	�:�3!�����������=
����
�����)�����	��!��	
�����
�2����22��!�����
�
������������>����
))����	���2������	+��!��
��)����	�����	��2��!���!�	+����	��������	
���	
����	�:�

�

•� "����������=
����
��!����	�
�+�	����)��������
������
�����!��
��������������!��"������	���!��2�A<��
������	
�0������	���0���������2�
������+������������	�	+��	�
����=
�����:�3!�����)������0��������
���������
��!����!�������������	��	
�)�	
�	�������!�
��

�����
��!��
���
����2�
����=
�������	
��!���!����������
�
���	��	
�����������
����	�
�!�������:��!����
�
�)����
�������������!��!���
������
�����	
�����
!�))�����������	
�
���
����!����	2�������	:�

�

5



�

����������	
����
��	������������������������������� ����7���

•� .��)�	
�	+������������?��=
�����	��������!��!����������9"��	�
;������������2���!�����)������0���������
����
��!����2���
�!�
�����
�
;���������B+��
?��	��!�������:�*!�����!�����������������	+������>���!��
������������2�����)�������1��!����
�
�	���+
���	�����!����!������
�
�
	����������)������:�

�

•� "����������
����2���	����������)�����!���!�
����	���	��
���
�����!��
%��2����	����	
�@�	�	������
��	���
�������������	��=
������
�
��������!���!�
��	��

�
���	��+�)���	��	2�������	:�"	��22�����

	
�����>�������>�����!����)���:�

�

•� 3!�����)������0����������	2����
��!����!���������	
����	�������	+�
2�����!�����
��	����������2�)��C������	�+���	�������2������
��	�
�!��
��	?����������:�"	��22������

�
��!������!��2���
��	
��!��
0�)�����	��2���A

�����	�����������2��
����!��!��
����)����
�
:�6�����1�
!������1���)����	��!�������������������!����!��
�����������	+�
��
�2��:�

�
3!�� �!���� �
����
� �!��� 2������	+� �� ��=
���� ��� �!�� ����� �����	+� �2� �!��
������������
��
��	��!�
����	�)��)���
��	��������	��!�����
����	��!��F�
�!�
�22�	
�	+�3���:�3!�������!�
����	���>�	��!��������
�
����!��)2
�������	��
���
�!��� ��� �� ������ )����� ���>�	+� +��
)� �
�� �!��� �!��� ��
�
� 	��� )����

�� ����
��	��
������	������2
�
��������	+��2��!�����������:�
�
3!���!���� �!�	>�
� �!��%���2�����;��
��1��!��2�A<��
����1����)������0��������
�	
��22������2����!��������	
�	����	
����)�	���:�
�
 #$%&�#'	� 3!��� &�(� �!�� �����	�� �	� �!�� 6�)������	�� %��	� ��� ���
��� ��)�
�
��)������	����+��	�����������������	
����	���	��!���2���
���)�������	���
J�
&�(�����)��������
������
�����!��	�<�������	+�����!��"������	���!��2�A<��
�����
�	
� 0������	��� 0�������� �2� ������+��� ���������	�	+� �	� �!�� ���
��� �����
� �	�
�������	�����!��)��2����	���
�����	
�
����=
���������
����	��!��
��	?�����������
�	
� 
������	+� �!��� �

��� !�
� ���	� 
�	�� ��� ���
��� �!��� �!���� ���� 	��� ��
)������������!�����	��!����
	���::�
�
�

��3�� $��������4
�5�,�
�������,�
�
��
����
�
3!�������������������
�����)�����!��!��
���	�
�)��)������2����	��
���	��	��!��
���
��	�� )��C���� )��+������ 2��� �!�� �����	
��� �2� �!�� �
���	�� �
��	��������	�
�	
���������)����
���������2�
)
�����	�)��C������
���	����
	
�����:�
�
����������	��
���
��!���))��)�����	�����2�
��	+�
������������!���������

��
�	�����+����	� �2� !��� �22��������� )
����� !����!G)����	������G� ������ �	�����	���	�
��������������
�������
����!�
�22���	+��������<)�����
:�"���������
++����
�
�!��� ��%01� �� ��	+����
� �����	��� ��	
����	1� ��+!�� ��� �� ����� ��	�2������
�
�C���:��
 #$%&�#'	�3!���&�(��!��)��)���
�)��C������	
��!��)��)�����������)���������
)��C����������	
�������������+���
J�
&�(� �!�� �
�C���� �2� �!�� ������ �	�����	���	� ����� ��

�� ��� 
���
���
� ��� �!��
���)�	+������	+:�
�

6



�

����I��� � ����������	
����
��	�������������������������������

��6�� $��������$�������� �!��0�
)�����7�������� ��
���
��,�
��������
�
3!�������������+���
������	��
�������)���1����	
�	+����
��	��.�������2��!��
$

+��� 8� ���2� @�	�	��	+� �2� �!�� ;�
��	+� .���	
�� "���
	�1� ��� �� ������� �2�

�+�	���2����!�������	�������
���	��!���
))����	�����+�	
�:�
�
3!���!�����2��!���������+��
)��	���

��
��!����)�����	
��
���	�
�������	��	��:�
;�� �
����
� �!��� �!�� ��)����	�� �2� �!�� ���2� 2�	�	��	+� ���	���
�
� ��� ����� '��
�������	
�2����!��������	����������)����	�����+����!��
������	����+!��	��:�3!��
��)����)����	��
��!���������+��
)?��2�	
�	+���	
������
�������
��2
���
����2���
��	��
������	:� ;�� �!�	>�
� �������� �2� �!�� ������� +��
)1� �<)����1� �!��
0������	���0���������2�;�
��	+��	
��22������2����!����)������)����	:�
�
"	��22������
����
��!����!�����)������0���������2�.���
�����!�
��
����
��!���
�������	������	
��	����������=
���
�����!����)���:�
�
3!���!���������
��!����!���������+��
�)������2����>��	
���������
�
 #$%&�#'	�3!��1��
�C���������>�	+��������	������	
��	��1��!����)�����2�
�!�� ���	
�	+� ���
��	�� .������ �2� �!�� $

+��� ��� ��2����
� ��� ����	��� �	�
0�������������2�����	��
������	:�
�
&����4��3!�������	+1�!���	+������	��
����7:���)�1������
����K:�I�)�(:�
�
�
�
�
�
&��+	�
(���L��699�.��A..F��69A��
�!�����	�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

18 December 2012 

Subject: 

 

Changes in Public Realm Services 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Caroline Bruce 
Corporate Director Environment and 
Enterprise 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Environment and Enterprise: 
 
Councillor Sue Anderson 
Councillor Stephen Wright 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix – Information from the latest 
Directorate Scorecard 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
 
This report sets out a general overview of the Public Realm Services and the 
changes planned for the service area. 

 
Recommendations:  
 
The Committee is requested to note the changes impacting on Public Realm 
Services. 
 
 

Agenda Item 7 
Pages 9 to 18 

9



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny committee has requested a report on “Changes to 
Public Realm”, with information on performance data of the current service. 
 
The Council currently has a service area called Public Realm that has 
introduced a range of award winning technological improvements over recent 
years, with consequent savings in the cost of providing the services. The 
Public Realm service is currently part of a wider transformation project taking 
place in the Environment Division – the PRISM project. 
 
Public Realm Services 
 
Public Realm Services are universal services that are provided to all sections 
of the community – residents, businesses, visitors and staff – on a daily basis 
having a major impact on the overall satisfaction levels for the Council and 
quality of life for Harrow residents.  The services are also central to the 
delivery of the Council’s corporate vision.  It is essential that the service 
continues to develop and move forward, adapting to both internally and 
externally driven change. 
 
Departmental core services are street cleansing of 488 kilometres of road and 
major and minor shopping areas, waste and recycling collection services to 
88,000 households, management of the Council Civic Amenity Site, 
maintenance of 26 major parks and 50 open spaces, and bereavement 
services.  The department also takes a lead in the Council’s drive to engage 
with local Communities through leadership of the Neighbourhood Champions 
scheme and the Pride in Harrow scheme, and engaging and supporting 
voluntary groups to participate in assisting the Council to maintain parks and 
open space areas.  Other key services include maintenance and management 
of the Council green infrastructure, such as 300,000 trees, grass verges and 
hedges. 
 
Contextual Change for 2012/13 
 
Public Realm Services has been incorporated into the new Environment and 
Enterprise directorate providing stronger links with the growth and economic 
regeneration initiatives of the authority.  
 
Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe  
 
A step change in the quality of the maintenance of Harrow’s neighbourhoods 
has been achieved in recent years. We listened and acted on resident’s 
requests for improvements in street cleansing and grounds maintenance 
resulting in significant increases in satisfaction. We have invested in new 
technology to improve the service and reduce operational costs.  
We are working proactively to help our residents recycle and to keep waste 
down. We are committed to protecting and enhancing the natural beauty of 
our borough and at the same time tackling climate change - the most serious 

10



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

medium and long term threats facing us today. Along with our partners we 
work creatively to develop a sustainable, clean and safe borough. The 
practical on the ground engagement with the Metropolitan Police is an 
exemplar for London. We work with communities and our partner agencies to 
reduce community tensions and develop safer neighbourhoods, as well as 
improve access for all to the Harrow’s greener areas. 
 
Working with our partners in Planning we provide support to deliver Green 
Grid Projects in conjunction with the Mayor of London’s Blue River Network 
scheme to connect Harrow’s green areas by the opening up of river side 
walks. This combines with our work with the GLA Drain London project to 
develop a Surface Water Management Plan that will support the National 
Strategic objectives for the EU Floods Directive.  
 
Supporting our Town Centre, our local shopping centres and our 
businesses 
 
We work with strategic partners across the council and externally to support 
and planned improvements to the infrastructure of the Borough: from 
managing the delivery of public realm services, supporting businesses, 
community policing and supporting the delivery of the Area Action Plan for the 
Intensification Area, TfL’s major schemes programme and the Outer London 
Fund activities.  

  
Consultation and Engagement 
 
We engage with the community extensively and have used the Let's Talk 
programme engaging in the new debate about what kind of services can and 
should be delivered in the future. Given the financial challenges facing us we 
cannot continue to provide services in the way we do currently.  The status 
quo is not an option.  We want and need the help of the community to shape 
Harrow for the future.  
 
We want to enable citizens to become more active by providing more support 
and creating opportunities to contribute to the decision-making process and 
take a greater part in making Harrow better. We remain ambitious about what 
we can achieve together, and listening to what local residents want and say, 
we will reform and modernise our services, making further improvements and 
at the same time saving money. 
 
The customer consultation exercise undertaken as part of the initial Let’s talk 
programme illustrated the value members of the public place on the services 
we provide. Of the four main priorities of the Council, the “Keeping 
neighbourhoods clean, green and safe” gained the most support (92% of 
respondents) and was the top priority for 50% of respondents.  
 
PRISM  
 

The PRISM solution will completely refresh and refocus both the management 
and delivery of street-facing services. It will bring together appropriate 
‘delivery’ activities that are currently dealt with by discrete teams across 

11



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

Community Safety Services, Highways and Public Realm Services. The effect 
of this will be to provide a unified, on-street focussed team, with the 
technology and capability to deal with a broad range of issues and enquiries 
under a ‘one and done’ ethos. In summary, the PRISM solution will deliver: 
 

1. A new Target Operating Model (TOM) to support Environment in its 
move towards a Commissioning model. The new structure will have 
three distinct functions:  

a. A function to commission and manage contracts and projects;  
b. A service delivery function to deliver planned and reactive work;  
c. A support service function to manage systems, reporting and 

service specific administration such as licensing applications.  
 

2. Unified on-street services that move away from the existing operating 
scenario where, for example, highways defects, licensing and fly 
tipping issues in the same street are dealt with by three different people 
from three different teams. This joined up working will allow efficiencies 
to be made whilst improving front line delivery. 

 
3. A common technology platform that will support the delivery of 

unified on-street services and provide near real time updates to 
customers via Access Harrow and end-to-end visibility to the service. 

 
Over time and in line with the commissioning approach, the service delivery 
function will reduce and the client services function will increase its capacity 
as service delivery is rationalised.  
 
PRISM BENEFITS 

1. Improved customer service - Multi-skilled front line staff will be able 
to resolve a broader range of issues than ever before. For example, an 
Inspector surveying the highway for defects will be able to investigate 
an urgent report of fly tipping in the vicinity, and arrange for this to be 
cleared. This will provide swifter resolution, enable near real time 
closure of the feedback loop to customers and provide the Council with 
a cost effective service solution. 
 

2. Reduction in line management - The TOM organisational structure 
will consolidate existing teams, which will significantly reduce the 
overall line management requirement.  The new structure will adhere to 
the Councils span of control model where appropriate.  
 

3. Improved productivity and resource utilisation - Mobile technology 
and scheduling will improve productivity as the need for staff to attend 
the office in order to receive job instructions is reduced. Additionally, 
supervisors will have access to real time management information 
about resource location and availability, enabling an increasingly 
structured approach to the assignment and utilisation of resource. 
 

4. More efficient provision of administrative support - Consolidating 
non-service delivery activities into a single team, coupled with a review 
of business process will reduce current administrative overheads whilst 

12



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

providing more effective support to the service delivery function. 

 
PERFORMANCE 
 
A benchmarking exercise has been carried out using LAPS (London Authority 
Performance Solution) data for y/e 2011/12.  
 
Harrow achieved a top quartile position for waste collection related 
environmental indicators, but compares less well on street cleaning related 
functions. 
 
 

 Harrow All London boroughs 2011-12 
Title of 

measure Polarity Rank Position 
Actual 
2011-

12 

Worst 
figure 

Lower 
Quartile 

(LQ) 
Median 

Upper 
Quartile 

(UQ) 

Best 
figure 

NI 191 
Residual 
household 
waste per 
household 

� 9th 
 

Best 
third 

539kg 808kg ≤648kg 570kg ≥492kg 409kg 

NI 192 
Percentage of 
household 
waste sent for 
reuse, 
recycling and 
composting 

� 2nd 

 
Best 
25% 48% 19% ≥29% 34% ≤39% 50% 

NI 195a 
Improved 
street and 
environmental 
cleanliness – 
Litter 

� 20th 

 
Lowest 

25% 
8% 15% ≤8% 6% ≥4% 2% 

NI 195b 
Improved 
street and 
environmental 
cleanliness -  
Detritus 

� 20th 

 
Lowest 

25% 
13% 22% ≤12% 9% ≥6% 2% 

NI 195c 
Improved 
street and 
environmental 
cleanliness – 
Graffiti 

� 18th 

 
Lowest 

25% 
6% 14% ≤6% 4% ≥3% 1% 

NI 195d 
Improved 
street and 
environmental 
cleanliness - 
Fly posting. 

� =5th 

 
Best 
25% 

1% 6% ≤3% 1% ≥1% 0% 

 
Information from the latest Directorate Scorecard: 
 
Note: RAG ratings are as per defined in SAP. Where there is no target, and a RAG 
rating, this is as assessed by the Service Manager.

13



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

 

Scorecard Objective: Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe 

Ref 
No 

Title of Measure Polarity 
Target 

Quarterly 

Actual 

Y/E 

‘10-11 

Actual 

Y/E  

‘11-12 

Actual 

Q1 

‘12-13 

RAG 

Q1 

’12-13     

Actual 

Q2 

‘12-13 

RAG 

Q2 

’12-13 

Dir Y/E forecast 

Quarterly  
Commentary/ 
Assessment 

NI 
191 

 
Residual household waste 
per household 
 

� 135 kg 508kg 539kg 129kg LG Dec-12 - ↓ 510kg 

Q1 suggests that annual target 
will be met. 
 
Q2 data available Dec-12 

NI 
192 

Percentage of household 
waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting 

� 50% 50% 48% 50% LG Dec-12 - ↔ 48% 

Q2 data available Dec-12 
 
2011/12 reduction in recycling 
mainly due to reduced 
recycling from dirty MRF 
contract operated by WLWA. 
Unlikely to improve this year 

NI 
195a 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
- Litter 

� 6% 5% 8% 6% LG 7% HR ↑ 6.5% 

See commentary in 
performance section 
 
Y/E forecast is guide based on 
average of Q1/Q2.  

NI 
195b 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
-  Detritus 

� 9% 5% 13% 13% HR 17% HR ↑ 15% 

See commentary in 
performance section 
 
Y/E forecast is guide based on 
average of Q1/Q2. 

NI 
195c 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
- Graffiti. 

� 3% 5% 6% 6% HR 7% HR ↑ 6.5% 

See commentary in 
performance section 
 
Y/E forecast is guide based on 
average of Q1/Q2. 

14



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

Scorecard Objective: Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe 

Ref 
No 

Title of Measure Polarity 
Target 

Quarterly 

Actual 

Y/E 

‘10-11 

Actual 

Y/E  

‘11-12 

Actual 

Q1 

‘12-13 

RAG 

Q1 

’12-13     

Actual 

Q2 

‘12-13 

RAG 

Q2 

’12-13 

Dir Y/E forecast 

Quarterly  
Commentary/ 
Assessment 

NI 
195d 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
- Fly posting. 

� 1% 0% 1% 2% LR 2% HR ↔ 2% 

See commentary in 
performance section 
 
Y/E forecast is guide based on 
average of Q1/Q2. 

NI 
196 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
- fly tipping  

� 

 
Very 

effective 
Effective TBA Annual ↔ - 

Chasing Y/E figures 

Local Tree planting � 
500 

(annual) 
600 685 0 LG 0 LG ↔ 650 

Planting to take place in Q3 
and Q4.  End of year forecast 
is based on the same capital 
funding as previous years 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

Financial Implications 
 
There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. The 
budgets for the service area are agreed by the Council through the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. The PRISM project has been agreed by Cabinet for 
implementation to save £1.5 million for 2013-14 and a further £350,000 for 
2014-15. 
 

Performance Issues 
 
Performance information has been provided in the main body of this report 
and at Appendix 1. 
 

Environmental Impact 
 
Although this service area has a significant impact on environmental 
practices, there are no direct implications arising from the report. 
 

Risk Management Implications 
 
None directly attributable to this report. The PRISM project has a separate 
Risk Register. 

 
Equalities Implications 
 
None directly attributable to this report. The PRISM project has  separate 
Equality Impact Assessments. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
 
The Public Realm Services support the council to achieve its Corporate 
priorities, in particular: 
 
• Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe 

 
• Supporting our town centre, our local shopping centres and 

businesses. 
 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:   
John Edwards 
Divisional Director Environment Services 
john.edwards@harrow.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers: None

16



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

Appendix 1 
 
Information from the latest Directorate Scorecard: 
 
Note: RAG ratings are as per defined in SAP. Where there is no target, and a RAG rating, this is as assessed by the Service Manager. 

 

Scorecard Objective: Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe 

Ref 
No 

Title of Measure Polarity 
Target 

Quarterly 

Actual 

Y/E 

‘10-11 

Actual 

Y/E  

‘11-12 

Actual 

Q1 

‘12-13 

RAG 

Q1 

’12-13     

Actual 

Q2 

‘12-13 

RAG 

Q2 

’12-13 

Dir Y/E forecast 

Quarterly  
Commentary/ 
Assessment 

NI 
191 

 
Residual household waste 
per household 
 

� 135 kg 508kg 539kg 129kg LG Dec-12 - ↓ 510kg 

Q1 suggests that annual target 
will be met. 
 
Q2 data available Dec-12 

NI 
192 

Percentage of household 
waste sent for reuse, 
recycling and composting 

� 50% 50% 48% 50% LG Dec-12 - ↔ 48% 

Q2 data available Dec-12 
 
2011/12 reduction in recycling 
mainly due to reduced 
recycling from dirty MRF 
contract operated by WLWA. 
Unlikely to improve this year 

NI 
195a 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
- Litter 

� 6% 5% 8% 6% LG 7% HR ↑ 6.5% 

See commentary in 
performance section 
 
Y/E forecast is guide based on 
average of Q1/Q2.  

NI 
195b 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
-  Detritus 

� 9% 5% 13% 13% HR 17% HR ↑ 15% 

See commentary in 
performance section 
 
Y/E forecast is guide based on 
average of Q1/Q2. 

17



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\8\3\AI00080388\$3pukawrf.doc 

Scorecard Objective: Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe 

Ref 
No 

Title of Measure Polarity 
Target 

Quarterly 

Actual 

Y/E 

‘10-11 

Actual 

Y/E  

‘11-12 

Actual 

Q1 

‘12-13 

RAG 

Q1 

’12-13     

Actual 

Q2 

‘12-13 

RAG 

Q2 

’12-13 

Dir Y/E forecast 

Quarterly  
Commentary/ 
Assessment 

NI 
195c 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
- Graffiti. 

� 3% 5% 6% 6% HR 7% HR ↑ 6.5% 

See commentary in 
performance section 
 
Y/E forecast is guide based on 
average of Q1/Q2. 

NI 
195d 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
- Fly posting. 

� 1% 0% 1% 2% LR 2% HR ↔ 2% 

See commentary in 
performance section 
 
Y/E forecast is guide based on 
average of Q1/Q2. 

NI 
196 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
- fly tipping  

� 

 
Very 

effective 
Effective TBA Annual ↔ - 

Chasing Y/E figures 

Local Tree planting � 
500 

(annual) 
600 685 0 LG 0 LG ↔ 650 

Planting to take place in Q3 
and Q4.  End of year forecast 
is based on the same capital 
funding as previous years 

 

18



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\2\7\1\AI00080172\$hiltg0oi.doc 

REPORT FOR: 

 

OVERVIEW AND 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 

Date of Meeting: 

 

18 December 2012 

Subject: 

 

Climate Change Action Plan, and Delivering 
Warmer Homes (HECA) report 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Caroline Bruce, Corporate Director of 
Environment and Enterprise 
 

Scrutiny Lead 

Member area: 

 

Councillor Stephen Wright – Policy Lead for 
Environment and Enterprise 
Councillor Sue Anderson – Performance Lead for 
Environment and Enterprise 

Exempt: 

 

No 

Enclosures: 

 

Cabinet Report – 22 November 2012 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
 
This report sets out the draft Climate Change Action Plan and Delivering 
Warmer Homes (HECA) report, which were reported to Cabinet on 22 
November 2012. These are subject to public consultation and Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee are invited to consider and comment on the drafts. 
Comments will be reported back to Cabinet in March 2013 

 
Recommendations:  
To consider the report and draft strategies and provide comments to Cabinet. 

 

Section 2 – Report 
The Cabinet report sets out the background and performance on the existing 
climate change strategy and action plan.  
 
Cabinet agreed to the council signing the Climate Local Commitment 
(Appendix C, of the Cabinet report). 
 
Appendix D, of the Cabinet report, sets out a draft revised action plan for the 
climate change strategy, which adopts the Climate Local template. 

Agenda Item 8 
Pages 19 to 154 

19



 
 
Appendix I, of the Cabinet report, set out the draft Delivering Warmer Homes 
(HECA) report, which needs to be submitted to the SoS DECC in full by 31 
March 2013 
 
Both drafts are subject to public consultation from 30 November 2012 to 28 
January 2013. As part of this consultation, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are invited to submit comments that will then be forwarded on to 
Cabinet.. 
 

Financial Implications 
Set out in the report to Cabinet 

 
Performance Issues 
Set out in the report to Cabinet 
 

Environmental Impact 
Set out in the report to Cabinet 
 

Risk Management Implications 
Set out in the report to Cabinet 

 
Equalities Implications 
Set out in the report to Cabinet 

 
Corporate Priorities 
Set out in the report to Cabinet 
 
 

Section 3 - Contact Details and Background 

Papers 
 

Contact:   
Andrew Baker, Head of Climate Change 
020 8424 1779 
andrew.baker@harrow.gov.uk 
 

 
Background Papers:  
Set out in the report to Cabinet 

 

20



 

 

 

REPORT FOR: 

 

CABINET 
 

Date of Meeting: 

 

22 November 2012 

Subject: 

 

Climate Change Strategy – Review of Progress 2011/12 
and Revised Draft Action Plan 
 

Key Decision: Yes  
 

Responsible Officer: 

 

Caroline Bruce, Corporate Director of Environment and 
Enterprise 
 

Portfolio Holder: 

 

Councillor Phillip O’Dell, Portfolio Holder for Environment 
and Community Safety 
 

Exempt: 

 

No 
 

Decision subject to 

Call-in: 

 

Yes  

Enclosures: 

 

Appendix A – Progress Review  - September 2012 
Appendix B – Warm Homes, Healthy People – summary 
report 
Appendix C – Climate Local declaration 
Appendix D – Draft Climate Change Action Plan 2013 
Appendix E – CRC  and GHG emissions 
Appendix F – Summary of RE:FIT programme 2012/13 
Appendix G – Summary of home insulation programmes 
Appendix H -  Insulation Standards in Harrow’s Homes 
Appendix I – Draft Delivering Warmer Homes (HECA) 
report 

 
 

Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

This report reviews the progress of the existing strategy and sets out the proposals for a 
revision.  
 

Recommendations:  
Cabinet is requested to: 

1. Note the progress review on the current Climate Change Action Plan; 
2. Note the progress made in reducing emission in 2011/12 (as reported under CRC 

and GHG); 
3. Note the progress of the RE:FIT programme; 
4. Agree to sign the Climate Local Declaration; 
5. Note the proposed draft of the revised Climate Change Action Plan; 
6. Note the proposed draft of the revised Delivering Warmer Homes (HECA) report; 
7. Agree that the revised proposals be subject to public consultation, with the results 

21



 

 

being reported back in March 2013. 

 
Reason:  (For recommendation) 
To ensure continued progress in delivery the council’s climate change strategy and the 
associated reduction in emissions. 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 

2.1  Introduction  
The original climate change strategy was adopted in September 2009. The Strategy was 
reviewed in October 2010 and, following public consultation a revised Action Plan was 
published in May 2011. 
 
A number of reports have also been published over the interim dealing with 

• The Carbon Reduction Commitment – Energy Efficiency Scheme 

• The RE:FIT programme for energy reducing retrofits of public sector buildings in London. 

• The Delivering Warmer Homes Strategy  - dealing with Affordable Warmth and Fuel 
Poverty 

• Revised Street Lighting policy 

• Etc. 
 
Addressing Climate Change issues is a long term policy issue. To a large extent economic 
issues and the austerity agenda have dominated national and local politics during this period 
but the underlying issues have not gone away and, if anything, the outlook for the longer term 
has become worse as global emissions of carbon dioxide have continued to rise and the climate 
continues to warm. 
 
This report looks at the progress that has been made and identifies the issues that still remain. 
The council also has to respond to changing national policies of which the most important is the 
imminent introduction of the Green Deal scheme, which is intended to retrofit a significant 
proportion of homes in England by 2020. 
 
 

2.2 Review of the existing Strategy and Action Plan 
The climate change strategy addresses nine policy areas. In each area the headline position is 
set out below.  

 
2.2.1 Planning and Development 

The Harrow Core Strategy was adopted in February 2012 and includes an overarching policy 
objective to contribute to a 60% reduction (on 1990 levels) in London’s carbon dioxide 
emissions by 2025.  This is to be achieved, through Planning and Development, by locating 
development where it can take advantage of the existing public transport network and by 
ensuring new development is designed to reduce energy needs (through building efficiencies 
and provision of renewable energy systems), water consumption, and site run-off, and in 
addition, within the Heart of Harrow, can incorporate or connect to an area wide energy 
network. 

The remaining suite of planning documents, that make up Harrow’s Local Plan, have now been 
subject to at least two rounds of public consultation and have been submitted to the Secretary 
of State for Examination before they are adopted early next year.  Together these documents 
provide more detailed planning policies against which to consider individual development 

22



 

 

proposals, including the assessment of building efficiency and design, tree protection and flood / 
surface water mitigation. The Heart of Harrow Area Action Plan also includes a commitment to 
produce a Green Travel Plan for the area, the delivery of which will be secured through site 
specific travel plans.  The AAP also includes the allocation of the Council’s existing Civic 
Amenity site and part of the Depot site for a new waste treatment facility.  This is to give effect 
to the emerging joint West London Waste Plan, which seeks to identify sufficient sites across 
west London to provide new waste facilities to manage all of west London’s waste within west 
London by 2031. 

In August the Council consulted on its Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule. 
CIL effectively replaces section 106 contributions for the strategic infrastructure requirements 
that arise as a result of new development.  Once the Harrow CIL is in place, this will provide a 
pool of funds (circa £1m p.a.) to help deliver physical and social infrastructure, including green 
infrastructure and strategic flood mitigation works. 

 

2.2.2 Domestic Energy 

We adopted the “Delivering Warmer Homes” strategy in October 2011, which set out a range of 
measures to improve the thermal efficiency of homes and to help vulnerable people to heat their 
homes. 

Delivering improvements to homes is currently carried out using external funding i.e. 

• Warm Front  (National scheme) 

• Warm Zones (GLA scheme) 

• RE:NEW (GLA scheme); and, 

• CERT (Carbon Emissions Reduction Target), which is an obligation placed on energy 
companies 

Appendix G shows the outputs from these schemes. 

 

The DoH funded a Warm Homes. Healthy People programme for winter 2011/12. The council 
received funding of £68,500 and launched the Harrow Housewarmers project. A summary of the 
outcomes of the project are shown in Appendix B. Unfortunately because of limited length of 
the programme – funding was provided in mid-December and had to be spent by the end of the 
following March -  participation was limited. However it did prove the worth of working with CAB 
and Age UK who provided help and advice to residents. It is not possible to say whether the 
scheme resulted in fewer people presenting to the NHS with health issues, but it would be 
useful to repeat the process – if funding can be found. The DoH announced on September 13th 
that there would be a round of bidding this year with a deadline submission of 5 October. A bid 
for £101k of funding has been submitted in partnership with CAB, Age UK and the NHS. If 
successful, we will be able to run this programme again this year. 

 

The council’s Affordable Warmth programme has proved difficult to implement over the past 
year. It has traditionally been seen as a capital programme to provide insulation etc to homes in 
the borough. Prior to, and including 2011/12 the budget was £150k. In 2012/13 it was reduced 
to £105k.. In the past, part of the budget has been used to pay salaries within the climate 
change section.  These posts are currently being transferred to revenue as part of a wider de-
capitalisation budget.  

The financial position, in relation to Affordable Warmth is set out in Section 2.4 

 

2.2.3 Transport 

23



 

 

Because Harrow Council approved the Harrow Transport Local Implementation Plan2 (LIP2), 
the Council continues to receive funds to implement transport improvements borough wide.  
This includes funding for cycle training, cycle paths, improving the walking environment, bus 
priority, developing green routes, sustainable travel promotion as well as improvements to traffic 
flow.  All of these help reduce the environmental impact of transport.  In addition, the extension 
of Controlled Parking Zones across the borough encourages the uptake of more 
environmentally friendly vehicles as all these vehicles are eligible for a free parking permit in 
these zones. 

A key policy requirement of the Heart of Harrow AAP is the production of a green travel plan 
covering the whole area.  Initial work has commenced, with the intention to publish it for 
consultation next year.  All new major development within the area will be required to contribute 
to the funding of this initiative and to comply with its relevant provisions through individual site 
travel plans. 

 

2.2.4 Water and Flooding 

Investment in flood defence works and highways drainage remains a priority. Weather patterns 
appear to have changed recently and many places in the UK have experienced very heavy and 
prolonged rainfall over the last two summers.  Much of the existing infrastructure was designed 
and built in the 1930s and need renewal/replacing. There are 14 Critical Drainage Areas in 
Harrow. A significant proportion of homes in the borough (7,700 homes) are classified as having 
an increased risk of flooding.  

The council has a statutory duty under the Highways Act 1980 to maintain infrastructure and the 
Flood and Water Management Act 2010 to address flooding issues.  

The 2012/13 budget for flood defence works and highway drainage works was reduced to 
£349k. 

Following the publication of a further addendum to the level 2 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, 
which justified removal of the flood zone 3b (e.g. the functional flood plain designation) applying 
to the urban environment in Harrow, the Council is now working with Brent Council, the 
Environment Agency and Drain London to assess further strategic flood mitigation works within 
Harrow to alleviate flooding further down the catchment.  The adoption of the Local Plan should 
also help to ensure flooding risk on redevelopment sites is significantly reduced through 
stronger requirements for on-site mitigation. 

 

2.2.5 Waste 

Achieved a recycling rate of 50% in 2009/10 and 2010/11. In 2011/12, this reduced slightly to 
48.2% due in part to an unexpected growth in the total amount of waste collected and a lower 
recovery of material from “dirty MRF” operations – following a new contract by the West London 
Waste Authority. Despite this setback the council increased the total amount of waste being 
recycled and composted. 

In 2011/12, we finally were able to install recycling facilities in to most of the flats in the borough 
following provision of funding from the London Waste and Recycling Board. This is expected to 
result in an additional 1% being recycled in 2012/13. 

Working in partnership with WLWA and the other boroughs, we have developed a joint waste 
minimisation strategy for the West Waste area. 

Work continues to progress on the preparation of the joint West London Waste Plan. The key 
consultation took place in 2011 on proposed future waste sites and policies.  Further work is 
being undertaken to better understand west London’s waste flows that may result in further sites 

24



 

 

needing to be set aside or for particular facilities to be promoted.  Publication of the final draft 
plan is now programmed for early 2013. 

 

2.2.6 Biodiversity and the Natural Environment 

Replacement of trees is now falling behind the rate needed to replace the existing stock. 
Identification of potentially dangerous (i.e. old and diseased) trees has improved but this means 
that there has been an increase in the number being removed. This is particularly the case for 
street trees where the constraints imposed by a built up environment stress the trees adversely. 
New street trees are being planted which are smaller; have smaller, less invasive root systems; 
and, reduced water requirement. Smaller trees also mean fewer problems with daylight 
blockage, entanglement of overhead lines, and the obstruction of street-lighting. 

In parks, tree cover is improving as older trees are able to mature in the more natural 
environment. 

The Harrow Green Grid project is now into its second year programme and continues to 
enhance Harrow’s existing network of green corridors and engage local volunteers in the 
management of Harrow’s green infrastructure.  The approval of the Kodak planning application 
will see a new green corridor provided that will connect Wealdstone with Headstone Manor and 
the provide a continuous green link through to the Green Belt. 

Our annual returns to DEFRA continue to highlight the fact that only 10 out of 30 Sites of 
Importance for Nature Conservation have up-to-date management plans.  A further programme 
of work is therefore required to improve Harrow’s performance and to implement the actions 
outlined in the Biodiversity Action Plan for these sites. 

 

2.2.7 Food, Fair Trade and Sustainable Shopping 

Harrow’s application to be recognised as a Fair Trade Borough was not approved in 2011.  A 
revised application is expected to be submitted this autumn.  

 

2.2.8 Businesses and the Public Sector,  

There has been limited progress in this area as the council lacks the resources to provide 
encouragement, education and/or incentives 

 

2.2.9 The Council’s Footprint 

a) Carbon Reduction Commitment – Energy Efficiency Scheme (CRC) and  
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) 

The council has a significant advantage, compared to some other local authorities, as it has 
centralised procurement of energy. This has meant that it has been easier to collate information 
for statutory reporting such as the CRC scheme or GHG reporting. It has also been easier to 
take strategic decisions (such as the installation of AMR), which have improved the reliability of 
data and eliminated estimated billing for much of our stock. This advantage is increasingly 
recognised across London. 

The CRC scheme is a statutory carbon trading scheme designed to reduce carbon emissions 
from organisations that emit significant amounts of carbon as part of their operations. Large 
emitters such as electricity producers, industrial processors are covered by other trading 
schemes. The council’s energy use means that the scheme applies to the council. From April 
2011, the CRC scheme requires participating organisations to purchase allowances for the 
amount of carbon they emit. In summary, under CRC, our carbon footprint reduced by 12.5% in 

25



 

 

2011/12 compared to the base year of 2010/11. This reduction is encouraging but should be 
treated with some caution as the winter in 2011/12 was mild compared to the winter of 2010/11.  

The council also has to report it’s GHG emissions to DEFRA. This is a wider measure of carbon 
emissions than CRC and includes emissions from transport operation and other third party 
emissions such as those from council leisure centres, which do not count towards CRC (as they 
are operated by contractors who report the emissions directly). In summary, under GHG, our 
carbon footprint reduced by 1.6% in 2011/12 compared to the base year of 2009/10. As above, 
this reduction may be due to the relatively mild winter in 2011/12. Of particular concern is the 
upward trend in electricity consumption which has increased by 5.6% over the last two years  

Details of our performance for CRC and GHG are shown in Appendix E. 

b) RE:FIT 
The council has signed a contract with MITIE plc under the RE:FIT programme to retrofit energy 
efficiency measures in the council’s corporate and school building stock. The programme is 
partially financed by the Carbon Reduction budget, the Capital Maintenance budget and 
additional borrowing from schools.  

The programme to refurbish the Civic Centre has provided the opportunity to install improved 
lighting and lighting controls. Where possible this work has been coordinated with the RE:FIT 
programme. 

The current details of the scheme for 2012/13 are shown in Appendix F 

c) Asset optimisation 
The council’s asset optimisation programme is also contributing towards our carbon reduction 
targets. Flexible and mobile working means that the requirement for office space is being 
reduced allowing consolidation of accommodation and closure of redundant buildings. 

d) Street lighting 
A review of the council’s street lighting policy was carried out during 2011/12 and a revised 
policy adopted in April 2012. All new street lighting schemes will utilise LED technology and 
lighting will be dimmed during the early hours of the morning. In addition, illuminated street 
furniture will be replaced with non-illuminated furniture where permissible.  

 

2.2.10   Appendix A set out the detail of the progress made on the Action Plan since May 2011. 

 

2.3 Options for the Future 

At present climate change policy and the responsibility for delivering the necessary changes is 
largely seen as an “Environment” issue. This is a barrier to the successful implementation of the 
council’s policy. Climate change issues need to be integrated within the wider, basic working of 
the council 

 

This review seeks to address a number of significant changes that have occurred in the last 
eighteen months, or which are imminent: - 

1. Publication of Climate Local by LGA 

2. Internal reorganisation of council. I.e. new departmental structure: - 

• Environment and Enterprise 

• Community Health and Well-Being 

26



 

 

• Children and Families 

• Resources 

3. End of CESP (Community energy saving programme) in December 2012. 

4. End of CERT (Carbon emissions reduction target) in March 2013 

5. The Energy Act 2011 

• Revised guidance under HECA (Homes Energy Conservation Act), asks LAs to 
set out the energy conservation measures that the council considers practicable, 
cost-effective and likely to result in significant improvement in the energy 
efficiency of residential accommodation in its area.  LAs will be required to submit 
the first report, to the Secretary for State for Energy and Climate Change, by 31 
March 2013 and update the report at two-year intervals. 

• The report must also be published on the council’s website 

6. The Green Deal 

• Official launch in September 2012. 

• Includes new energy company obligation (ECO) of £1.3bn a year, to reduce 
carbon, support affordable warmth initiatives and carbon saving communities 

• Proposed GLA framework for Green Deal in London 

• Potential gap in 2012/13 between end of CESP/CERT and start of GLA Green 
Deal framework agreement 

7. Transfer of well-being powers to LAs (Healthy Lives, Healthy People) 

8. Introduction of Cold Weather Plan by NHS 

• On average 27,000 excess deaths occur during December to March each year. 

• The estimated cost to the NHS of ill health and hospital admissions during this 
period is £850m each year 

9. Warm Homes, Healthy People project undertaken in winter 2011/12 to support 
vulnerable people. This project was funded by the DoH in response to the publication of 
the Cold Weather Plan 

10. Internal changes to housing maintenance 

11. Internal changes to schools capital maintenance programme 

12. Introduction of RE:FIT programme 

• The RE:FIT programme is a GLA framework agreement to enable significant 
reductions in carbon emissions from public buildings in London. 

13. Transformation Projects 

• Asset optimisation 

• Civic Centre refurbishment 

• Flexible/mobile working 

• IT server room 

14. Introduction of Academies/ Free schools 

15. CRC simplification 

• Consultation by government 

27



 

 

• Responsibility for school emissions 

• Responsibility for emissions from Academies/Free schools 

 

2.3.1 Climate Local 

Harrow signed the Nottingham Declaration in July 2009, accepting that climate change was 
being driven by increasing levels of carbon dioxide in the atmosphere, which are the result of  
human activity, and committing the council to take action to mitigate further change and to adapt 
to changes that are unavoidable (due to previous emissions). 

Climate Local is a new LGA initiative to drive, inspire and support council action on a changing 
climate. The initiative supports councils’ efforts both to reduce carbon emissions and also to 
improve their resilience to the effects of our changing climate and extreme weather. It consists 
of: - 

• A Climate Local Commitment – for councils to sign to demonstrate their commitment to 
addressing climate change and to challenge themselves to build on their existing 
achievements. See Appendix C 

• A set of topic-based guides and templates to help guide councils in setting local 
commitments and milestones and reaching their ambitions 

• Additional resources and support – new web-based resources, a new on-line community 
and opportunities for peer learning 

• A climate Local Steering Group – bringing together nominated members of the LGA’s 
Environment and housing Board, council representatives and national partners 

 

It is recommended that the council sign up to the Climate Local Commitment, using it as an 
opportunity to reiterate/reinvigorate our existing commitments and the changes proposed in this 
report. 

The revised Action Plan has been drawn up using the Climate Local templates. It is 
recommended that future actions are set out using the same template. 

 

2.3.2 Enterprise and Environment 

The merger of Place Shaping and Community and Environment brings together the following 
broad headings from the previous Climate Change strategy. This provides an opportunity to 
improve the coordination of policy and actions under the leadership of the new Corporate 
Director. 

• Planning 

• Water and flooding 

• Biodiversity 

• Transport 

• Waste 

• Street lighting 

 

The new department incorporates the climate change section, estates, property and 
maintenance services for corporate buildings. Working closer together will enable better 

28



 

 

coordination and further embedding of carbon reduction measures into the core of the 
department’s operations. Areas where greater coordination is desirable are:- 

• Asset management and asset planning 

• Proactive maintenance with clear maintenance plans 

• Capital maintenance. i.e. planned replacement of infrastructure 

 

Existing initiatives to reduce the council’s carbon footprint, would also benefit from greater 
coordination: - 

• Asset optimisation 

• Civic centre refurbishment and intensification 

• Carbon reduction programme 

• RE:FIT programme 

 

2.3.3 Children and Families     

Schools currently account for 50% of the council’s carbon emissions. Control of the schools 
capital maintenance and capital programmes has been transferred to Children and Families as 
part of the council’s reorganisation. It remains the case that schools need to play a major role in 
delivering the targets set by the climate change strategy. The RE:FIT programme has seen an 
initial start in reducing emissions. In some individual cases reductions of 40% have been 
possible. 

It is proposed that the RE:FIT and Carbon Reduction programmes be rolled out to all schools. 

The government is also funding a Priority Schools Building Programme that will see 8 schools 
rebuilt or refurbished over the next 5 to 10 years. This should lead to further reductions in 
carbon emissions from the fabric of the buildings but this will be off-set to some extent by the 
installation of more electronic equipment 

There are two complications/unknowns in relations to emissions from schools: - 

• The creation of Academies and Free schools means that it is not clear which schools will 
remain under local authority control in the future. The current RE:FIT programme 
requires schools to complete an Agreement to meet the repayment schedule, equivalent 
to the projected savings in energy costs,  before the project proceeds. This ensures that 
the council is not exposed to any potential debt if the school subsequently becomes an 
Academy.  

• The government is not clear how to apply the CRC regulations to Academies. At present 
LAs remain liable for carbon emissions from all schools – including Academies. DECC 
has consulted on simplifying the CRC scheme but it is not clear what will be in the final 
proposals.  

At present there are no plans to include existing Academies in the RE:FIT programme. 
However, if LAs do retain responsibility for emissions from Academies, under CRC, the council 
will need to consider how it will work with them to reduce their emissions. 

 

2.3.4 Community Health and Well-being  

With the transfer of well-being powers to local authorities it is clear that in the area of housing, 
reducing carbon emissions needs to be considered as part of a wider programme of action to 
address well-being, social justice and fuel poverty. There are clear links between improving the 

29



 

 

energy efficiency of homes and improving people’s physical health; helping to address mental 
health problems; improving educational attainment; and reducing costs to the NHS and the 
council’s social services.  

The new guidance under the Housing Energy Conservation Act (HECA), and implementation of 
the Green Deal requires local authorities to establish a programme that will improve the thermal 
efficiency of all housing types and all residents. Under the timetable, in the HECA guidance, the 
council needs to develop and publish a report to the SoS by 31 March 2013 setting out the 
energy conservation measures that the council considers practicable, cost-effective and likely to 
result in significant improvement in the energy efficiency of residential accommodation in its 
area. Progress reports will be required at two-yearly intervals. 

The Delivering Warmer Homes strategy has been reviewed to take into account: -  

• How to integrate the delivery and implementation of the Green Deal, the GLA’s proposals 
for a London-wide Green Deal delivery programme, and the council’s existing Affordable 
Warmth programme. 

• HECA  

• Coordination with the NHS to deliver a joint response to the NHS Cold Weather Plan 

• The joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Harrow 2012-2015 

• The Private Sector Housing Strategy, which is currently out to consultation. It contains a 
separate section on improving energy efficiency and reducing fuel poverty. The PRS 
strategy is principally aimed at the Private Rented Sector which accounts for 20% of 
housing in the borough. 

• Inspection and enforcement issues relating to private sector housing and the HHSRS 
(Household Health and Safety Rating System). 

The new HECA guidance will require the council to progress this agenda in a more coordinated 
way than to date. Proposals to enable the effective control and delivery of this project will be 
developed and reported back in March. 

 
The draft of the council’s Delivering Warmer Homes (HECA) report (see Appendix I) sets out 
how the council intends to deliver an improved integrated energy efficiency programme across 
all homes in the borough.  

 

2.3.5 Consultation 

The draft revised Climate Change Action Plan is shown in Appendix D. 

It is proposed to carry out a public consultation on the draft Climate Change Action Plan and the 
draft Delivering Warmer Homes (HECA) report during December and January.  

As part of the consultation on the Delivering Warmer Homes (HECA) report the council will also 
engage with the energy companies to determine the potential for working in partnership on the 
delivery of the Green Deal 

As part of the above consultation Scrutiny will be asked to carry out a review of the proposed 
strategies. 

The results of the consultations and any revisions to the two strategies will be reported back to 
Cabinet in March 2013.  

 

 

30



 

 

2.4 Financial Implications  

Affordable Warmth  

The table below summarises the spend allocated to the capital programme. 

Capital Budget (£000’s) 2011/12 

Actual 

2012/13 

Budget 

TOTAL Allocation 150 110 

Staff 40 45 

Grants 110 75 

 

It is increasingly evident that this programme should really be a revenue based programme 
which can provide assistance and grants to people, who live in cold homes. As part of this 
review it has been decided to discontinue bidding for a £75k capital budget from April 2013.    
Staff costs associated with delivering the grants was around £80k (including a current vacant 
post).  The posts are funded from revenue going forward. 

The Green Deal represents a significant change in the nature of providing energy efficiency 
retrofits to homes in England. The Energy Company Obligation (ECO) is a mechanism that has 
great potential to attract inward investment into the borough, providing employment 
opportunities, and helping to improve the health and well-being of the population (as well as 
reducing the borough’s carbon footprint).  Therefore the support to residents can continue and 
the revenue funding of the two posts above will help to deliver the ECO.  Over the consultation 
period we will explore how best to ensure that the Delivering Warmer Homes strategy and 
outcomes are delivered in the best way.    

 

CRC Scheme 

CRC payments are expected to continue to rise as a result of an increase in the cost of 
purchasing allowances. The table below reflects the current CRC regime for 2012/13 and 
possible changes that are expected following a review of the scheme by the government. It is 
expected that Academies’ emissions will be removed from the council’s responsibility but that 
allowances will need to be bought for all other emissions, including street lighting. 

Revenue Budget (£000’s) 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

CRC - cost per tonne  £14 £16 £18 

Corporate CRC payments 77.3 109.4 123.1 

Public lighting CRC payments 0 62.0 69.7 

School CRC payments 113.1 129.3 145.4 

Academies CRC payments 63.5 74.8 84.1 

Total  (including academies) 253.9 375.5 422.3 

Total  (Excluding academies)  300.7 338.2 

 

Note: In 2012/13, the CRC regulations means that the council will be responsible for emissions from Academies. 
The Total (Excluding Academies) has therefore been left blank 

 

2.4 Legal Implications 

31



 

 

The Council has a range of legal obligations aimed at mitigating the impacts of climate change, 
including participation in the Carbon Reduction Commitment, introduced pursuant to the Climate 
Change Act 2008, and through its role as the lead local flood authority co-ordinating flood risk 
management for the area, in accordance with the Flood and Water Management Act 2010. 

 

2.6 Performance Issues 

The draft Climate Change Strategy (Appendix D) contains the Climate Local Commitment draft 
actions. The outcomes for these will be refined during the consultation process and a set of 
measures for future monitoring will be proposed in the report in March 2013. 

 

2.7 Environmental Impact 

The Climate Change strategy addresses the following policy areas 

• Planning and Development 

• Transport 

• Water and Flooding 

• Waste 

• Biodiversity and the Natural Environment 

• The Council’s Footprint 

and 

• Warmer Homes 

 
The strategy aims to protect and enhance the environmental impact of each of these areas. 

 
 

2.8 Risk Management Implications 

Risk included on Directorate risk register?  See Strategic Risk 3: Fail to actively contribute to 
sustaining the environment in the Strategic Risk Register.  

A new risk for energy efficiency in homes in the borough will be developed and reported back 
in March 2013. 

 

2.9 Equalities implications 

The draft strategies include a wide ranging set of activities and specific Equality Impact 
Assessments would need to be carried out in relation to items identified in the proposed Action 
Plans prior to implementation. 
 

2.10 Corporate Priorities 

This proposal incorporates the following corporate priorities  

• Keeping neighbourhoods clean, green and safe.  

Climate change is the world’s number 1 environmental issue. Failure to act and reduce our 
dependence on fossil fuels will lead to increasingly severe impacts on our lives and those of 
our children.  

• Supporting and protecting people who are most in need 

Rising fuel costs mean that our residents face increasingly difficult choices about heating 
their homes, and more peoples’ lives are affected by fuel poverty.  Living in cold homes 

32



 

 

affects the health and well-being of people and adversely affects educational attainment of 
children. We aim to help all residents to reduce their energy use and will particularly target 
help to vulnerable people. 

• United and involved communities: a Council that listens and leads 

We aim to lead by example in reducing our carbon emissions – with the main focus of our 
climate change strategy is to reduce the carbon emissions from our own estate by 4% a 
year.  

We promote awareness of the issues to residents and schools. 

• Supporting our Town Centre, our local shopping centres and our businesses  
Ensuring existing buildings continue to be utilised and maintained, and that the significant 
public and private investment in our town centres continues to be appropriately managed, 
and where necessary, adapted to cope with the impacts of climate change.  With respect to 
businesses, helping them address the impacts of climate change through changing transport 
habits and ensuring outdated buildings can be renewed. 

 
 

Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Kanta Hirani x  Chief Financial Officer 

  
Date:  8 November 2012 

   

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Matthew Adams x  Monitoring Officer 

 
Date: 30 October 2012 

   
 

 
 

Section 4 – Performance Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Martin Randall x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 9 November 2012 

  Strategic Commissioning 

 
 

Section 5 – Environmental Impact Officer Clearance 
 

 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: John Edwards x  Divisional Director 

  
Date: 9 November 2012 

  (Environmental Services) 

33



 

 

 

 

Section 6 - Contact Details and Background Papers 
Contact:  Andrew Baker, Head of Climate Change 
020 8424 1779 
andrew.baker@harrow.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers:   
 

Delivering Warmer Homes (15 December 2010) 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/g60259/Public%20reports%20pack,%20Wednesda
y%2015-Dec-2010%2019.30,%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 

 
Climate Change Strategy Action Plan (19 May 2011) 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/www2/documents/g60264/Public%20reports%20pack,%20Thursday
%2019-May-2011%2019.30,%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10 
 
Guidance to English Energy Conservation Authorities issued pursuant to the Home 
Energy Conservation Act 1995 (HECA) 
http://www.decc.gov.uk/en/content/cms/tackling/green_deal/gd_industry/gd_la/gd_la.aspx#HEC
A 
 
 
 

Call-In Waived by  

the Chairman of  

Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
 
 

 

 NOT APPLICABLE 
 
[Call-in applies] 
 
 

 
 

. 

 

34



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

 

      P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 –

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0
1
2
 

   C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 f

ro
m

 M
a
y
 2

0
1

1
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
te

d
 

 

35



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

 

1
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 1

.1
 

Is
s

u
e

 
O

v
e

r 
5

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 c

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
. 

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
A

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

 a
n

d
 D

e
s
ig

n
e

rs
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 -

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

R
e

f 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

1
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h
e

 L
o

c
a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 (
L
D

F
) 

–
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h

in
g
 

p
o
lic

ie
s
/s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
w

 w
e
 w

ill
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e

 
is

s
u
e
s
 o

f 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
, 

m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

a
d
a
p

ta
ti
o
n
 

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

re
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

w
a

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

8
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 i
n
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

. 

P
re

-s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 d
e

la
y
e
d

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
. 

N
o

w
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

d
 f
o

r 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

T
h

e
 E

x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 P
u
b

lic
 

o
f 

th
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 t

o
 t
a

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
 w

it
h

 a
d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
1

. 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
g
in

 o
n

 
th

e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 

D
P

D
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

s
 D

P
D

 

 

C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
2
. 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 

D
P

D
, 

S
it
e
 S

p
e
c
if
ic

 
A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 D

P
D

, 
a
n
d

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 &
 W

e
a
ld

s
to

n
e
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 a

ll 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d
 t

o
 f

in
a

l 
E

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 P

u
b

lic
 

S
ta

g
e
 d

u
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
3

. 

W
e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 
P

la
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 s

lo
w

ly
 

to
w

a
rd

s
 P

re
-s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 

2
 

In
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
p
a
rt

ie
s
, 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
 

a
n
d
 a

d
o

p
t 
a
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 D

e
s
ig

n
 

S
u
p

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
(S

P
D

) 
to

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
rs

 t
o
 t

h
in

k
 a

b
o
u
t 

T
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

S
P

D
 w

a
s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
o

n
1
8

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 

W
e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 n

o
t 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

 

36



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

 

s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 P

la
n
. 

 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

W
e
b
s
it
e

 i
s
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

c
e
e

d
 w

h
e

n
 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

3
 

E
n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

n
e
w

 b
u

ild
s
, 
e
x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 a

lt
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
h

a
t 

a
re

 c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
.g

. 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

b
o
ile

rs
; 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

w
in

d
o

w
s
; 
ro

o
f 

in
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 r

e
ti
lin

g
; 
e

le
c
tr

ic
 r

e
w

ir
in

g
; 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

 o
f 

lo
w

 e
n
e
rg

y
 b

u
lb

s
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
lig

h
ti
n
g
 

B
u

ild
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

. 
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 
a

p
p

lic
a
n

t’
s
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
d

 
a

p
p

ly
 t

h
e

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
B

u
ild

in
g

 D
e
s
ig

n
 S

P
D

. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 
F

u
tu

re
 o

f 
B

u
ild

in
g

 C
o
n

tr
o

l.
  

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t 
a
s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
lid

a
ti
o
n

 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

 
N

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

 

4
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 I
n
s
p

e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 S

e
lf
 

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
 e

a
rl

y
 

a
d
o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h
ig

h
e
r 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

 h
o

u
s
e

 s
k
ill

s
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
 t

o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 f
u

tu
re

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e

d
s
 o

n
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
te

c
h
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
 

E
x
p

lo
re

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

e
d

ic
a

te
d

 “
e

x
p

e
rt

” 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 w

it
h

in
 B

C
 t

o
 

a
d

v
is

e
 D

e
v
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
te

c
h
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
ro

ll 
o

u
t 
o

f 
in

 
h

o
u

s
e

 e
x
p

e
rt

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 m
a

in
s
tr

e
a

m
in

g
 o

f 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
te

c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
/c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

a
g

e
n

d
a

 

S
e
n

io
r 

B
C

O
’s

 a
n
d
 

S
e
n

io
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 
h
a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n

d
e
d
 S

A
P

 
a
c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 a

n
d
 

C
fS

H
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 

 

D
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 t
o

 
s
ta

ff
 o

n
 S

o
la

r 
a
n
d
 P

V
 

te
c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 a

n
d
 C

H
P

 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

re
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 

D
M

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
 B

C
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
n
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

 h
o
u
s
e
 

s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 u
n

d
e
rw

a
y
 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 f

u
tu

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e

d
s
 o

n
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
te

c
h
n
o

lo
g

ie
s
. 

37



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
  

E
n
e
rg

y
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 2

0
%

 e
n
e
rg

y
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 

5
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

e
n
fo

rc
in

g
 P

a
rt

 L
 o

f 
th

e
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 (

C
o

n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

F
u
e
l 

a
n
d
 P

o
w

e
r)

, 
S

c
h
e

d
u

le
 1

 o
f 

th
e
 B

u
ild

in
g
 

R
e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0

0
  

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

 h
o

u
s
e

 s
k
ill

s
 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
 t

o
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 f
u

tu
re

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

n
e
e

d
s
 o

n
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
te

c
h
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 C

h
e

c
k
lis

t 
a
s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 v

a
lid

a
ti
o
n

 
p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 
U

s
e
 o

f 
P

a
rt

 L
 f

o
r 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
s
 

fo
c
u
s
s
e
d
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 o

n
 

“r
e
-r

o
o
fi
n
g
” 

o
f 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 

a
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

th
e
rm

a
l 

u
p
g
ra

d
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

B
u

ild
in

g
 

R
e
g
u

la
ti
o
n
s
. 

 

N
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

6
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 S
e
c
ti
o
n

 1
0

6
 S

P
D

 w
h
ic

h
 s

e
e
k
s
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
/p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 b
e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t

o
 a

n
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 f

u
n
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
s
 t
o
 

th
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
p
u
b

lic
. 

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
D

F
 

P
a

n
e

l 
fo

r 
p
u

b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 i
s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 

la
te

r 
th

is
 y

e
a

r.
 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i
n

 R
e

g
u
la

ti
o

n
s
 

g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
n
d

e
re

d
 

th
e

 S
P

D
 o

b
s
o
le

te
 

A
n

 I
n

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
P

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 
c
o

-o
rd

in
a

te
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 
S

1
0

6
 r

e
c
e

ip
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 i
n

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

W
o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
g
u

n
 o

n
 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
P

la
n

 (
ID

P
),

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 f
o

rm
 

th
e

 b
a
s
is

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 a
 

c
h

a
rg

in
g

 s
c
h

e
d
u

le
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

L
e

v
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o
n

s
, 
th

e
 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 k

e
p

t 
u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 

ID
P

 e
x
a

m
in

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a
s
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
ill

 n
o

w
 

u
n

d
e

rp
in

 C
IL

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

a
n

d
 C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 5

 y
e

a
r 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

la
n
 

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 D
ra

ft
 

C
h
a
rg

in
g
 s

c
h
e

d
u

le
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
e

d
 o

n
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
2

. 
 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a
ri
n

g
 S

c
h

e
d
u

le
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
fo

r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d

 
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 

N
e

w
 S

1
0

6
 S

P
D

 b
e
in

g
 

d
ra

ft
e
d
 

7
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 a
n
d
 e

d
u
c
a

te
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

u
ild

e
rs

 
a
b
o
u

t 
o
f 

g
o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
. 

 
W

e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 

to
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

38



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
5

 

2
 

D
o

m
e
s
ti

c
 E

n
e
rg

y
 

 2
.1

 
Is

s
u

e
 

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 d

e
a

ls
 w

it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
e

 i
n

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 

T
h
e

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 f

o
r 

3
8

%
 o

f 
e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p
ti
o

n
 i
n

 L
o
n

d
o
n

*.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 f

o
r 

s
p

a
c
e

 h
e

a
ti
n

g
/c

o
o

lin
g
 (

5
4

%
);

 
h

o
t 

w
a

te
r 

(1
8

%
);

 a
p
p

lia
n

c
e

s
 (

1
8

%
);

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 (

5
%

) 
a

n
d

 c
o

o
k
in

g
 (

3
%

).
 T

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a

n
g
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
e

n
v
is

a
g
e

s
 t

h
e

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 3

9
%

 o
f 

th
e
 2

0
2

5
 c

a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
A

rc
h

it
e

c
ts

 a
n

d
 D

e
s
ig

n
e

rs
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

G
L

A
/L

D
A

 
E

n
e

rg
y
 c

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s
 

 
2

.3
 

W
h

a
t 

w
e
 w

il
l 
d

o
 

T
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

a
b

le
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
e

 b
e

lie
v
e

 w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 o

v
e

r 
ti
m

e
: 

 

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 S

A
P

 r
a

ti
n

g
 

S
e

c
to

r 
%

 o
f 

h
o

u
s

in
g

 
s

to
c

k
 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

2
0

1
5

 t
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
2
0

 t
a

rg
e

t 

O
w

n
e

r 
o

c
c
u

p
ie

r 
7

7
 

4
9

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
w

n
e

d
 

6
 

6
4

 

P
ri
v
a

te
 r

e
n

ti
n

g
  

1
2

 
4

9
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 
4

.4
 

n
/a

 

O
th

e
r 

0
.6

 
n

/a
 

6
9

 s
o

lid
 

w
a

lls
 

8
3

 c
a

v
it
y
 

w
a

lls
 

9
1

 

39



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
6

 

 T
h
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
a
b

le
 a

s
s
u
m

e
s
, 
a

s
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

: 
- 

• 
A

ll 
lo

ft
s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n

s
u

la
te

d
 b

y
 2

0
1

5
 

• 
A

ll 
c
e

n
tr

a
l 
h
e

a
ti
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 t
o

 b
e

 e
q
u

ip
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 c
o
n

d
e
n

s
in

g
 o

r 
m

ic
ro

 C
H

P
 b

o
ile

rs
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
r 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
rm

o
s
ta

ti
c
 

ra
d

ia
to

r 
v
a

lv
e

s
 (

T
R

V
s
) 

b
y
 2

0
1

5
 

• 
A

ll 
c
a

v
it
y
 w

a
lls

 w
ill

 b
e

 i
n

s
u

la
te

d
 b

y
 2

0
1

5
 

• 
A

ll 
s
o

lid
 w

a
lls

 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

s
u

la
te

d
 b

y
 2

0
2
0

 (
m

a
in

ly
 b

y
 i
n

te
rn

a
lly

 d
ry

-l
in

in
g
 b

u
t 

w
it
h

 s
o
m

e
 e

x
te

ri
o

r 
in

s
u

la
ti
o

n
 w

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
) 

• 
A

ll 
w

in
d

o
w

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
u

b
le

-g
la

z
e

d
 b

y
 2

0
2

0
. 

A
ll 

n
e

w
 w

in
d

o
w

s
 t

o
 b

e
 C

la
s
s
 A

 d
o
u

b
le

-g
la

z
e

d
 a

s
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

. 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 -
 D

o
m

e
s

ti
c

 E
n

e
rg

y
 

R
e

f 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

8
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

ll 
la

n
d

lo
rd

/h
o

m
e
o
w

n
e
rs

 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 i
n
s
ta

ll 
lo

ft
 i
n
s
u

la
ti
o
n

 t
o
 m

o
d
e
rn

 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 b

y
 2

0
1

5
  

C
E

R
T

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
o

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 f

re
e

 o
r 

d
is

c
o

u
n
te

d
 l
o

ft
 i
n
s
u

la
ti
o
n

  

D
IY

 P
la

n
e

t 
(M

a
y
o

r 
fo

r 
L

o
n

d
o
n

 s
c
h

e
m

e
) 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 

lo
ft

 i
n

s
u

la
ti
o

n
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

  

D
e

liv
e

ry
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
0

, 
in

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 

c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
s
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
u

p
 

to
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
. 

P
u
b

lic
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
rm

 
H

o
m

e
s
: 
G

re
e
n
e
r 

H
o
m

e
s
 b

y
 D

E
C

C
 

s
e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

in
 F

e
b
 2

0
1
0
. 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

H
S

P
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 W
a
rm

th
/F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

 

T
h
e
 A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
W

a
rm

th
/F

u
e
l 
P

o
v
e
rt

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

- 
“D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 

w
a
rm

e
r 

H
o
m

e
s
” 

w
a
s
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

  
2

0
1
1
 

N
e

w
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

G
re

e
n
 D

e
a
l 
a
n
d

 t
h
e

 
n
e

w
 H

E
C

A
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

40



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
7

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

d
e
la

y
e

d
 

9
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

ll 
la

n
d

lo
rd

/h
o

m
e
o
w

n
e
rs

 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 w

it
h

 c
a
v
it
y
 w

a
lls

 t
o
 

in
s
ta

ll 
c
a

v
it
y
 w

a
ll 

in
s
u

la
ti
o
n
 b

y
 2

0
1

5
 

C
E

R
T

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
o

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 f

re
e

 o
r 

d
is

c
o

u
n
te

d
 c

a
v
it
y
 w

a
ll 

in
s
u
la

ti
o

n
  

C
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 C

a
p
a

c
it
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

w
it
h

 i
n

s
ta

lle
rs

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 

b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0

, 
in

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 

c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

g
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
h
o

u
s
in

g
 i
s
 b

ro
u
g

h
t 
u

p
 t

o
 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

. 

P
u
b

lic
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
W

a
rm

 
h
o
m

e
s
: 
G

re
e
n
e
r 

H
o
m

e
s
 

b
y
 D

E
C

C
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t’
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

in
 F

e
b
 2

0
1
0
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

H
S

P
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 W
a
rm

th
/F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

 

T
h
e
 A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
W

a
rm

th
/F

u
e
l 
P

o
v
e
rt

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

- 
“D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 

w
a
rm

e
r 

H
o
m

e
s
” 

w
a
s
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

  
2

0
1
1
 

N
e

w
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

G
re

e
n
 D

e
a
l 
a
n
d

 t
h
e

 
n
e

w
 H

E
C

A
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

1
0
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 t
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a

n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
a
d

v
ic

e
 

(d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 a

n
d
 v

ia
 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
) 

to
 

b
u
ild

e
rs

, 
d
e
c
o
ra

to
rs

 a
n
d
 

la
n

d
lo

rd
s
/h

o
m

e
o
w

n
e
rs

 o
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

in
s
ta

lli
n
g
 i
n
s
u

la
ti
o

n
 i
n
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 

h
a

v
e
 s

o
lid

 
w

a
lls

. 

G
o

 G
re

e
n

 h
e
lp

lin
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 

B
a

s
ic

 a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 g

ra
n

ts
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 

w
e

b
s
it
e

. 

 

W
e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

T
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
e

w
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

1
1
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 t
o
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
re

d
u
c
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h
e

 h
o
m

e
. 

G
o

 G
re

e
n

 h
e
lp

lin
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 

W
e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

T
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

n
e

w
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

41



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
8

 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 

B
a

s
ic

 a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 g

ra
n

ts
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 

w
e

b
s
it
e

. 

 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

1
2
 

P
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
d

v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 g

ra
n
ts

 t
o
 l
a

n
d

lo
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

h
o
m

e
o
w

n
e
rs

 o
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

in
s
ta

lli
n
g
 

s
o
la

r 
p
a

n
e

ls
, 
h
e

a
t 
p

u
m

p
s
, 
w

in
d

 t
u
rb

in
e
s
 e

tc
. 

G
o

 G
re

e
n

 h
e
lp

lin
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 

B
a

s
ic

 a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 g

ra
n

ts
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 

w
e

b
s
it
e

. 

 

W
e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
F

IT
 a

n
d
 

R
H

I 
m

e
a
n
s
 g

ra
n
ts

 a
re

 
n
o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 

 

1
3
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 f

u
e
l 
p
o

v
e
rt

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 d
ra

ft
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 

A
d

o
p

t 
F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

H
S

P
 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 W
a
rm

th
/F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

 

T
h
e
 A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 
W

a
rm

th
/F

u
e
l 
P

o
v
e
rt

y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

- 
“D

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 

w
a
rm

e
r 

H
o
m

e
s
” 

w
a
s
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

  
2

0
1
1
 

N
e

w
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

G
re

e
n
 D

e
a
l 
a
n
d

 t
h
e

 
n
e

w
 H

E
C

A
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

1
4
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

 
W

e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

 

 

42



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
9

 

3
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
 3

.1
 

Is
s

u
e

 
E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
2
2

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
c
a

rb
o
n

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 L
o
n

d
o
n

 -
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

v
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
h

ip
p

in
g
, 

T
h

is
 i
s
 

fr
o
m

 t
h

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
: 

- 
c
a

rs
 a

n
d

 m
o
to

rc
y
c
le

s
 (

4
9

%
);

 r
o

a
d

 f
re

ig
h

t 
(2

3
%

);
 g

ro
u
n

d
-b

a
s
e
d

 a
v
ia

ti
o

n
 –

 t
a

x
iin

g
 e

tc
. 
(1

1
%

);
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
is

 f
ro

m
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 (

tr
a

in
s
, 

th
e

 u
n

d
e

rg
ro

u
n

d
, 
b

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
a

x
is

 e
tc

. 
–

 a
p

p
ro

x
. 

4
%

 e
a

c
h

).
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 –

 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 -

 T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 

R
e

f 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

1
5
 

P
re

p
a
re

 H
a
rr

o
w

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 L
o
c
a
l 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 (

L
IP

) 
fo

r 
M

a
y
o
ra

l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a

l.
  
T

h
is

 c
o
n
ta

in
s
 t

h
e

 f
u
tu

re
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a
rs

 a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 

b
e
lo

w
. 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 T
fL

 o
n

 
L

IP
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
. 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 

s
ta

rt
e
d

 

L
IP

 g
u

id
e

lin
e
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

. 

L
IP

 p
u

b
lic

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 a

re
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 p

u
b
lic

 

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

 T
fL

 a
p
p
ro

v
a

l 
a
n
d
 f

u
ll 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

a
d
o
p

te
d
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 L
IP

. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 

1
5
A

 
P

ro
m

o
te

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n
d

 n
e

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t
h

e
 L

D
F

, 
in

 l
o
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 w

e
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
d
 b

y
 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
 I
n
 l
o
c
a
ti
o

n
s
 

n
o
t 

w
e
ll 

s
e
rv

e
d
 b

y
 p

u
b

lic
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
d
e
n
s
it
ie

s
 a

re
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

is
 a

n
d

 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

o
u
g
h
t 
th

ro
u

g
h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
, 

w
h

e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
to

 s
e
e
k
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 s

e
rv

in
g
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
. 

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

re
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

w
a

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

8
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 i
n
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

. 

P
re

-s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 

P
re

-s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o

re
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 b

y
 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 P
u
b

lic
 i
n

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
. 

 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
g
in

 o
n

 
th

e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 

D
P

D
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

s
 D

P
D

 

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 

 

R
e
m

a
in

in
g

 s
u
it
e
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
P

la
n
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 
a
ll 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d

 t
o
 f

in
a
l 

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 P

u
b

lic
 

S
ta

g
e
 d

u
e
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
3

. 

 

43



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

0

to
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
p

la
n

. 
N

o
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 f

o
r 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

1
6
 

C
h
a
n

g
e
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
’s

 b
e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

b
y
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 o

r 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
u
b

lic
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
 

T
ra

v
e

l 
P

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
c
e

rt
a
in

 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 
a

re
 a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 P
la

n
  

H
e

lp
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n

s
; 

c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 ;

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h

e
a

tr
e

 e
d
u

c
a
ti
o
n

 
in

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ti
n

g
 

is
s
u

e
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 h
e
a

lt
h
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t;
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 c

y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h
o

o
l 

c
h

ild
re

n
; 
ru

n
 b

ik
e

 w
e

e
k
 

e
v
e

n
ts

; 
e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
w

a
lk

in
g

 b
u

s
e

s
; 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 w
a

lk
 o

n
c
e

 a
 

w
e

e
k
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

; 
e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
l 
n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r 
It

’s
 U

p
 T

o
 A

ll 
o

f 
U

s
 s

e
n

t 
o

u
t;

 w
e

b
s
it
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 
m

o
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
; 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 a
c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

 l
e
a

d
in

g
 o

n
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n
c
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 H
a

rr
o

w
 N

H
S

. 

N
e

w
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 a

s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n
d

 
c
y
c
lin

g
 g

ro
u

p
s
 t

o
 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 s
e
tt

in
g

 g
o
a

ls
 

H
e

lp
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 r

e
v
is

e
 t

ra
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 
a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o
n

 s
ta

tu
s
; 
c
a

rr
y
 

o
u

t 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 ;

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

a
tr

e
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 i
n
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

 
h

ig
h
lig

h
ti
n
g

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t;
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o

r 
a
d

u
lt
s
 

a
n

d
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
c
h

ild
re

n
; 

ru
n

 
b

ik
e
 w

e
e

k
 e

v
e

n
ts

; 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
w

a
lk

in
g

 
b

u
s
e
s
; 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 w
a

lk
 

o
n

c
e
 a

 w
e

e
k
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o
l 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti
o
n

; 
e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
l 
n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

r 
It

’s
 U

p
 T

o
 A

ll 
o

f 
U

s
 s

e
n

t 
o

u
t;

 w
e

b
s
it
e

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 
m

o
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
; 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 a
c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

 l
e
a

d
in

g
 o

n
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n
c
ti
o

n
 

w
it
h

 H
a

rr
o

w
 N

H
S

. 

C
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 t
o

 
h

a
v
e

 m
o

re
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 

m
u

lt
im

e
d

ia
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
o

c
ia

l 
m

e
d
ia

 
in

te
ra

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e

r 
e

n
g

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n

 
p
o
lic

y
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
D

P
D

 

H
e
lp

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e

v
is

e
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 

s
ta

tu
s
; 
c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
e

v
e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 ;
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e
a
tr

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g

 
is

s
u
e
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g

 h
e

a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t;
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 c

y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 

fo
r 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o

o
l 

c
h
ild

re
n
; 
ru

n
 b

ik
e
 w

e
e
k
 

e
v
e

n
ts

; 
e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
lk

in
g
 b

u
s
e
s
; 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 w

a
lk

 o
n
c
e
 a

 
w

e
e
k
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

; 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
n
e

w
s
le

tt
e
r 

It
’s

 U
p
 T

o
 

A
ll 

o
f 

U
s
 s

e
n
t 
o

u
t;
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

m
o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
; 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 t
ra

v
e

l 
th

ro
u
g

h
 l
e
a
d

in
g
 o

n
 

G
re

e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

e
a
rt

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 
b
e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

H
e
lp

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e

v
is

e
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 

s
ta

tu
s
; 
c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
e

v
e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 ;
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

th
e
a
tr

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g

 
is

s
u
e
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g

 
h
e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t;
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
d
u

lt
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
c
h
ild

re
n
; 
ru

n
 b

ik
e
 

w
e
e
k
 e

v
e
n

ts
; 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
w

a
lk

in
g
 b

u
s
e
s
; 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 w

a
lk

 o
n
c
e
 

a
 w

e
e
k
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

; 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
n
e

w
s
le

tt
e
r 

It
’s

 U
p
 T

o
 

A
ll 

o
f 

U
s
 s

e
n
t 
o

u
t;
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

m
o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
; 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 a

c
ti
v
e
 

44



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

1

a
n

d
 l
o

g
g
in

g
 m

ile
s
/s

te
p

s
  

C
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 t
o

 
h

a
v
e

 m
o

re
 i
n
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

 
a

n
d

 m
u

lt
im

e
d

ia
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 N
H

S
. 

 

tr
a
v
e

l.
 

 

1
7
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 b
u
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 w

a
lk

in
g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
. 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d

 c
y
c
le

 
la

n
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

; 
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
th

e
 w

a
lk

in
g

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
 b

u
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 
m

e
a
s
u

re
s
; 

p
ro

v
id

e
 c

y
c
le

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
; 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
w

a
lk

in
g

 b
u

s
e

s
; 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
; 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n
 w

a
lk

in
g
 

o
n

c
e
 a

 w
e

e
k
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o
l;
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 w

a
lk

in
g

 
a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 

W
a
lk

in
g

 W
o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 B
ik

e
 

W
e
e
k
 

W
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 
th

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d

 c
y
c
le

 
la

n
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 

o
n

 g
re

e
n

w
a

y
s
; 

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
th

e
 w

a
lk

in
g

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
 b

u
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 
m

e
a
s
u

re
s
; 

p
ro

v
id

e
 c

y
c
le

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
; 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
w

a
lk

in
g

 b
u

s
e

s
; 

im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
; 

e
n

c
o
u

ra
g
e

 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n
 w

a
lk

in
g
 

o
n

c
e
 a

 w
e

e
k
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o
l;
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 w

a
lk

in
g

 
a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 

W
a
lk

in
g

 W
o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 B
ik

e
 

W
e
e
k
 

W
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e

 
th

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 

c
y
c
le

 l
a
n

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

a
n
d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 o

n
 

g
re

e
n

w
a

y
s
; 
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 w

a
lk

in
g
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 b

u
s
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
; 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

c
y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 

a
d
u

lt
s
; 
e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
w

a
lk

in
g
 b

u
s
e
s
; 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

tr
a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
; 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 w
a

lk
in

g
 

o
n
c
e
 a

 w
e
e
k
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o

l;
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 

w
a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 W

a
lk

in
g
 W

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

B
ik

e
 W

e
e
k
 

W
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 

c
y
c
le

 l
a
n

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d

 
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

n
 g

re
e
n

w
a

y
s
; 
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e

 w
a

lk
in

g
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n

d
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 b

u
s
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
; 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

c
y
c
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
u

lt
s
; 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
w

a
lk

in
g
 b

u
s
e
s
; 

im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
tr

a
v
e
l 

p
la

n
s
; 
e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 w
a

lk
in

g
 

o
n
c
e
 a

 w
e
e
k
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o

l;
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

a
lk

in
g
 

a
n
d
 c

y
c
lin

g
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

lo
n
g
s
id

e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 W

a
lk

in
g
 W

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 

B
ik

e
 W

e
e
k
 

W
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e

 t
o
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

u
n
d

in
g
 

1
8
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
a
n
d

 w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 t
ra

v
e

l 
7

8
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 h

a
v
e

 
a

 s
c
h

o
o
l 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n

. 
 

9
6

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

9
8
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 
9
8
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 

45



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

2

p
la

n
n
in

g
. 
 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n

 b
y
 D

e
c
 2

0
0

9
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

s
c
h
o

o
l 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p
la

n
s
 o

n
 a

n
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 
b

a
s
is

 

 W
o
rk

p
la

c
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 i
n
 

c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 T
fL

’s
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

s
c
h
e

m
e
s
. 

  

1
0

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

re
 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

ta
g

e
s
 

o
f 

w
o

rk
p

la
c
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h

 w
o

rk
p

la
c
e

 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n

s
 

 

tr
a

v
e

l 
p

la
n

. 

2
4

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 h

a
v
e

 
a

c
c
re

d
it
e

d
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 N
H

S
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 t

ra
v
e

l 
p
la

n
s
 a

re
 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t 
a

t 
th

e
ir

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 

s
it
e
s
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
  

 

    

h
a
v
e
 a

 t
ra

v
e
l 
p
la

n
. 

a
 t
ra

v
e
l 
p
la

n
. 

1
9
 

A
s
 R

e
s
id

e
n
t 

C
o
n

tr
o
lle

d
 P

a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

re
 

e
x
te

n
d

e
d
, 

p
a
rk

in
g
 p

e
rm

it
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e

n
t 
c
a
rs

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t
o

 a
tt
ra

c
t 

a
 

p
re

m
iu

m
. 
F

re
e
 v

e
h

ic
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
 p

e
rm

it
s
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 f
o
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

ll
y
 

fr
ie

n
d
ly

 v
e
h

ic
le

s
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 1

9
 

c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 z
o

n
e
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 1

5
%

 o
f 

th
e

 e
n

ti
re

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 

C
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 z
o
n

e
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 a

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
o

n
g
e

s
ti
o

n
 

d
e

m
a
n

d
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
z
o

n
e
s
. 

 T
h

is
 

w
ill

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
lly

 f
ri
e

n
d
ly

 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 

 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 2

2
 

c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 z
o

n
e
s
 

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 1

7
%

 o
f 

th
e

 e
n

ti
re

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 

C
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 z
o
n

e
s
 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 e

x
p

a
n

d
 a

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 c
o

n
g
e

s
ti
o

n
 

d
e

m
a
n

d
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 
re

q
u

e
s
ts

 f
o

r 
z
o

n
e
s
. 

 T
h

is
 

w
ill

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
e

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
lly

 f
ri
e

n
d
ly

 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 2

3
 

c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

z
o
n

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o
ro

u
g
h

 
c
o
v
e
ri

n
g
 a

ro
u
n

d
 1

7
%

 o
f 

th
e
 e

n
ti
re

 b
o
ro

u
g
h

. 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

z
o
n

e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 

e
x
p
a
n
d

 a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

z
o
n

e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

ll
y
 f

ri
e
n
d

ly
 

v
e
h

ic
le

s
 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 2

3
 

c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

z
o
n

e
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o
ro

u
g
h

 
c
o
v
e
ri

n
g
 a

ro
u
n

d
 1

7
%

 o
f 

th
e
 e

n
ti
re

 b
o
ro

u
g
h

. 

C
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

z
o
n

e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 

e
x
p
a
n
d

 a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

c
o
n
g
e
s
ti
o
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

z
o
n

e
s
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 

a
tt
ra

c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

ll
y
 f

ri
e
n
d

ly
 

v
e
h

ic
le

s
 

46



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

3

2
0
 

R
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 T

o
w

n
 a

n
d
 C

o
u

n
tr

y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
P

e
rm

it
te

d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
O

rd
e
r 

(O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0

8
) 

re
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
fr

o
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
 

h
a
rd

 s
ta

n
d
in

g
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
. 
 

L
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
n

a
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 b
e

 
e

n
fo

rc
e

d
 b

y
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

E
n

g
a

g
e
 w

it
h

 G
L

A
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 
p

o
lic

y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 P
la

n
. 

 
P

a
rk

in
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
e
rm

e
a
b
le

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

re
a
s
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

ie
s 

D
P
D

 -
 P

o
lic

y
 3

1
: 

S
tr

e
e
ts

id
e
 G

re
e
n
n
e
ss

 
a
n
d
 F

o
re

co
u
rt

 

G
re

e
n
e
ry

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

re
q
u
ir
e
s 

a
n
y
 p

ro
p
o
sa

ls
 

fo
r 

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l 
(i
.e

. 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 5

 s
q
 m

) 
h
a
rd

 
su

rf
a
ci

n
g
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
e
rm

e
a
b
le

. 
  

  
  T
h
is

 f
o
llo

w
s 

o
n
 f

ro
m

 
th

a
t 

fa
ct

 t
h
a
t 

in
 O

ct
o
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 t

h
e
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(P
D

) 
ri
g
h
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
llo

w
 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 p

a
v
e
 

th
e
ir
 f

ro
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
 w

it
h
 

h
a
rd

st
a
n
d
in

g
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
si

o
n
 

w
a
s 

re
sc

in
d
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
ce

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

 o
f 

th
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 

fl
o
o
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

n
 

p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 o

f 

w
a
te

rc
o
u
rs

e
s.

 P
D

 i
s 

n
o
w

 5
 s

q
 m

. 

N
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

47



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

4

2
1
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 h
o

w
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
c
a
r 

c
lu

b
s
. 
 

E
a

rl
y
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 
m

u
lt
ip

le
 o

p
e

ra
to

rs
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 p
o

s
s
ib

le
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
c
a

r 
c
lu

b
s
 a

n
d

 
th

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 o
f 

c
le

a
n

e
r 

fu
e

lle
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 

A
g

re
e

 l
o

c
a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
c
a

r 
c
lu

b
s
. 

C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

c
a

r 
c
lu

b
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 
z
o

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 

p
a

rk
in

g
 z

o
n
e

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 c
a

r 
c
lu

b
s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 c
a

r 
c
lu

b
s
 i
n

 C
P

Z
 

a
re

a
s
. 

  

 
G

re
e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 

b
e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

c
a
r 

c
lu

b
s
 

to
 b

e
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
s
e

d
 o

v
e
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 

w
it
h
in

 a
ll 

n
e

w
 

m
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 

 

2
2
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
e
le

c
tr

ic
 v

e
h
ic

le
 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
in

ts
. 
 

C
o

n
s
id

e
ri

n
g

 s
u

it
a
b

le
 

lo
c
a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
o

w
n

 
c
e

n
tr

e
 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o
in

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n

 n
e

w
 

c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 z
o

n
e
s
 

a
n

d
 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 
z
o

n
e

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
s
. 

In
p

u
t 
in

to
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 P
la

n
 o

n
 

p
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
tr

ic
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 

W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

w
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 s

u
it
a

b
le

 l
o

c
a

ti
o
n

s
 

in
 c

o
u

n
c
il-

o
p

e
ra

te
d

/p
ro

v
id

e
d

 c
a

r-
p

a
rk

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o
in

ts
 

In
s
ta

ll 
c
h

a
rg

in
g

 p
o
in

ts
 i
n

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

o
p

e
ra

te
d

/p
ro

v
id

e
d

 c
a

r-
p

a
rk

s
 

 H
a

v
e

 s
ig

n
e

d
 u

p
 t

o
 L

o
n
d

o
n

 
E

le
c
tr

ic
 V

e
h

ic
le

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
ir

 p
a
n

-
L

o
n

d
o
n

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 

 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 I
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
in

ts
 i
n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

o
p
e
ra

te
d
/p

ro
v
id

e
d
 c

a
r-

p
a
rk

s
  

 Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
la

n
n

in
g

 
p
o
lic

y
 o

n
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 (

lik
e
ly

 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

e
le

c
tr

ic
 v

e
h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
in

ts
) 

w
it
h

in
 

n
e

w
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 a
n
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 c

a
r 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
in

t 
in

 a
 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

. 

  

2
3
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

S
e

e
 1

8
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

P
la

n
n

e
rs

 u
n

d
e

rg
o

in
g

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 o
n

 n
e

w
 t

ra
v
e

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 

 
 

G
re

e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 

b
e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 

A
ll 

m
a
jo

r 
d
e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

48



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

5

tr
a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
 w

it
h
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 s
e
c
u
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 

2
4
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 t
a

k
e

 
p

la
c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h
o

u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a

r.
  

S
c
h

o
o
l 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n

s
 a

ls
o

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
e
s
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 i
n
 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

; 
P

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

a
tr

e
 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 i
n
 s

c
h

o
o
ls

 
h

ig
h
lig

h
ti
n
g

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

t;
 

W
e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 

 
G

re
e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 

b
e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 

 

49



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

6

4
 

W
a
te

r 
a
n

d
 F

lo
o

d
in

g
 

 4
.1

 
Is

s
u

e
 

C
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 l
e

a
d
 t

o
 t
w

o
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 w

it
h

 w
a

te
r 

s
u

p
p

ly
 –

 p
e

ri
o

d
s
 o

f 
d

ro
u

g
h
t;

 a
n
d

 p
e

ri
o

d
s
 o

f 
h
e

a
v
y
 r

a
in

fa
ll.

 
C

o
u

p
le

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

w
a

te
r 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
fl
o
o

d
in

g
. 

D
a

ily
 w

a
te

r 
c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 p

e
r 

h
e
a

d
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 a

t 
1

7
0

 l
it
re

s
/h

e
a

d
 o

f 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 (

c
f.

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

1
5

0
 l
it
re

s
/h

e
a

d
).

  

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 w

a
te

r 
c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
iv

e
ly

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
d
e

r 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 

re
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 b

u
t,

 a
s
 w

it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
e

, 
b

ri
n

g
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 c

o
n

s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

 i
n

 t
h
e

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

re
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
. 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

: 
T

h
re

e
 V

a
lle

y
s
 W

a
te

r 
–

 w
a

te
r 

s
u

p
p

ly
 

T
h
a

m
e

s
 W

a
te

r 
–

 s
e

w
e
ra

g
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 a

n
d

 s
e

w
a

g
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e

n
c
y
 

M
a

y
o

r 
o

f 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 –

 e
.g

. 
D

ra
in

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t.
 

A
rc

h
it
e

c
ts

 a
n

d
 D

e
s
ig

n
e

rs
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 

 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 -

 W
a

te
r 

a
n

d
 F

lo
o

d
in

g
 

R
e

f  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

2
5

 
T

h
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 D

e
s
ig

n
 S

P
D

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 

n
e

w
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
:-

  

a
) 
re

d
u
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

 p
e
r 

h
e

a
d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
; 
 

b
) 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
h

a
rv

e
s
ti
n
g
 t

o
 

T
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

S
P

D
 w

a
s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
o

n
1
8

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 

  

 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 
th

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
o

th
e

r 
L
o

c
a

l 
P

la
n

 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o

 g
iv

e
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
w

e
ig

h
t 

to
 t

h
e

 g
u
id

a
n

c
e
 i
n

 
th

e
 S

P
D

. 

C
/D

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 b

y
 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 3
 (

S
u
D

S
) 

o
f 

th
e
 F

lo
o
d

 &
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

c
t 

2
0
1

0
. 
 

50



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

7

in
c
re

a
s
e
 s

to
ra

g
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 f

o
r 

ra
in

fa
ll 

a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

p
o
ta

b
le

 w
a
te

r;
 a

n
d
 

c
) 

in
c
lu

d
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 U
rb

a
n
 D

ra
in

a
g
e
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 (

S
U

D
S

) 
to

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
s
u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
ru

n
-o

ff
 

d
) 
e
n
s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
n

e
w

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 n
o
t 

a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
 s

e
w

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 v

ia
 

c
o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
, 

S
U

D
S

 e
tc

. 

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

w
ill

 s
u
b
m

it
 a

 
S

U
D

S
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

S
U

D
S

 A
p
p
ro

v
in

g
 B

o
d

y
 

(S
A

B
).

 

* 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 D
M

 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 

2
6

 
T

h
e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 D

e
s
ig

n
 S

P
D

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e

 p
ro

b
le

m
 o

f 
im

p
e
rm

e
a
b
le

 p
a

v
in

g
 

b
e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 i
n
 f

ro
n
t 
g

a
rd

e
n
s
. 
A

 n
e

w
 p

o
lic

y
 w

ill
 

n
o

w
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 t
h
a

t 
a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

o
n
e
 t
h
ir

d
 o

f 
fr

o
n
t 
g
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

d
a

p
te

d
 f

o
r 

h
a
rd

-s
ta

n
d

in
g
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 p

e
rm

e
a
b
le

. 

T
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

S
P

D
 w

a
s
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
o

n
1
8

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
9

 

 

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 p

u
t 

a
 P

o
lic

y
 i
n
 

th
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
o
lic

ie
s 

D
P
D

 -
 P

o
lic

y
 3

1
: 

S
tr

e
e
ts

id
e
 G

re
e
n
n
e
ss

 
a
n
d
 F

o
re

co
u
rt

 

G
re

e
n
e
ry

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

re
q
u
ir
e
s 

a
n
y
 p

ro
p
o
sa

ls
 

fo
r 

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l 
(i
.e

. 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 5

 s
q
 m

) 
h
a
rd

 
su

rf
a
ci

n
g
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
e
rm

e
a
b
le

. 
  

  

  T
h
is

 f
o
llo

w
s 

o
n
 f

ro
m

 

th
a
t 

fa
ct

 t
h
a
t 

in
 O

ct
o
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 t

h
e
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

(P
D

) 
ri
g
h
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
llo

w
 

h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 p

a
v
e
 

th
e
ir
 f

ro
n
t 

g
a
rd

e
n
 w

it
h
 

h
a
rd

st
a
n
d
in

g
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
si

o
n
 

w
a
s 

re
sc

in
d
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
ce

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
ct

 o
f 

th
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 

N
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

51



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

8

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 

fl
o
o
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 o

n
 

p
o
llu

ti
o
n
 o

f 

w
a
te

rc
o
u
rs

e
s.

 P
D

 i
s 

n
o
w

 5
 s

q
 m

. 
 

2
7

 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 o

n
 a

n
y
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 o
r 

n
e

a
r 

to
 

fl
o
o
d
 p

la
in

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 i
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

E
n

g
a

g
e
 w

it
h

 E
A

 o
n

 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 c

a
tc

h
m

e
n

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a

n
g
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

h
a

v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 S
F

R
A

 
a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l W
a
te

r 
C

y
c
le

 
S

tu
d

y
 

 

S
ta

g
e

 2
 S

F
R

A
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 a
n
d

 s
ig

n
e
d

-
o

ff
 i
n
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

F
in

a
l 
L
e

v
e
l 
2
 S

F
R

A
 

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
1

 a
n

d
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 

C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 s

u
b
s
e

q
u
e

n
t 

e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

A
n
 a

d
d
e

n
d

u
m

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

th
e
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 S

F
R

A
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 t
o

 r
e
v
is

it
 t

h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
lo

o
d

 
d
e
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

W
e
a
ld

s
to

n
e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 s

it
e
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 A

A
P

 
a
n
d
 S

it
e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

D
P

D
 a

h
e

a
d
 o

f 
e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0

1
3
. 

A
ls

o
 u

s
e
 

d
o
t 
fo

rm
a
t 
a
re

a
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 (

in
 

th
e
 A

A
P

) 
fo

r 
fl
o
o
d
 r

is
k
 

s
it
e
s
 i
n

 W
e
a
ld

s
to

n
e
. 

2
8
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

n
e

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
la

n
d

 u
s
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 L

D
F

 h
a
s
 

re
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t
h

e
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
lo

o
d
 

R
is

k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(S

F
R

A
) 

a
n
d
 t
h

e
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fl
o
o
d
 r

is
k
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 i
n

 P
P

S
2

5
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 U
rb

a
n
 D

ra
in

a
g

e
 S

y
s
te

m
s
 o

n
 a

ll 
n
e

w
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

re
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

w
a

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

8
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 i
n
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

. 
  

P
re

-s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

P
re

-s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o

re
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 b

y
 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 P
u
b

lic
 i
n

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
. 

 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
g
in

 o
n

 
th

e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 

D
P

D
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

s
 D

P
D

 

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
h

ic
h
 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
lo

o
d
 

ri
s
k
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

P
re

-s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 A
A

P
, 

th
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 

D
P

D
 a

n
d
 S

it
e
 

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 D

P
D

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 

52



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
1

9

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 

to
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
p

la
n

. 
N

o
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 f

o
r 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

In
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 t
h
e

 
p

re
fe

rr
e
d

 o
p
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

g
ro

w
th

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

in
 

H
a

rr
o

w
, 

re
g

a
rd

 w
ill

 b
e

 
g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 f
lo

o
d

 
z
o

n
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
lo

o
d
 m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 
m

e
a
s
u

re
s
. 

 

 
2
0
1
3

. 
A

d
o
p
ti
o

n
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
3

. 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

F
R

A
. 

 P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 d
ra

ft
 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 s

c
h
e
d

u
le

 f
o
r 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 L

e
v
y
 

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 p
u

b
lic

 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 d

u
ri
n

g
 

2
0
1
2

/1
3
. 

A
d

o
p
ti
o

n
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
W

ill
 r

a
is

e
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

fl
o
o
d
in

g
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 
a
m

o
n
g
s
t 
o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
. 

2
9
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 S

u
rf

a
c
e
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

S
W

M
P

) 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 F

lo
o

d
 &

 W
a
te

r 
B

ill
. 

T
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 F

lo
o

d
 R

is
k
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 

b
e

e
n

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
s
u

rf
a
c
e

 w
a

te
r 

fl
o

o
d
in

g
 a

n
d

 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 t

o
 i
ts

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 

A
 d

ra
ft

 S
W

M
P

 w
ill

 b
e

 
p

re
p

a
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 o

n
-

g
o

in
g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 b

a
s
e

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

 L
D

F
 

 

T
h

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

n
 S

W
M

P
 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o
n

 
p

la
n

 t
o

 b
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
g
in

 o
n

 
th

e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 

D
P

D
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 

s
u

rf
a
c
e

 w
a

te
r 

fl
o

o
d
in

g
  
- 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 p

e
rm

e
a
b

le
 

s
u

rf
a
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 S
U

D
S

. 

  

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
re

p
a
ra

ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
g
in

 
o
n
 t
h

e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 

D
P

D
, 
th

a
t 

w
ill

 r
e

in
fo

rc
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
fl
o
o
d
in

g
 s

u
c
h
 a

 
p
e
rm

e
a
b
le

 s
u
rf

a
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 

S
U

D
S

. 

A
d
o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
,w

h
ic

h
 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
lo

o
d
 

A
c
ti
o

n
s
 (

C
ri
ti
c
a

l 
D

ra
in

a
g
e
 A

re
a
s
 (

C
D

A
))

 
c
o
n
ta

in
e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 S
W

M
P

 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 d

ra
in

a
g

e
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 

D
ra

in
a
g
e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

P
re

-s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

H
e
a
rt

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 A
A

P
, 

53



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

0

ri
s
k
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

th
e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

o
lic

ie
s
 

D
P

D
 a

n
d
 S

it
e
 

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 D

P
D

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
. 

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
3

. 
A

d
o
p
ti
o

n
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
3

. 
D

o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

W
M

P
. 

 

3
0
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 t

o
 i
n
s
ta

ll 
w

a
te

r 
m

e
te

rs
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
u
s
a
g

e
 a

n
d
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

in
im

is
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
W

e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 w

e
b
s
it
e

 d
u
ri

n
g
 

2
0
1
1

/1
2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

 

3
1
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 b
u
ild

e
rs

, 
a
n
d

 t
h
e

 
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
p
u
b

lic
, 

v
ia

 s
e
m

in
a
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 

e
tc

. 
o
f 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 

w
a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

 (
e
.g

. 
d
u

a
l 
fl
u
s
h
 t

o
ile

ts
, 

lo
w

-f
lo

w
 s

h
o

w
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t
a

p
s
 e

tc
.)

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

h
a
rv

e
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
ra

in
 a

n
d

 g
re

y
 w

a
te

r 

 
W

e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 
a

d
v
ic

e
 f
o

r 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

rs
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
s
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

 

54



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

1

5
 

W
a
s
te

 
 5

.1
 

Is
s

u
e

 
T

h
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
o

s
a

l 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 g
ro

w
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
fe

w
 d

e
c
a

d
e
s
 w

it
h

 v
o

lu
m

e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 g
ro

w
in

g
 

a
n

d
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 p

o
o

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n
 t
h

e
 U

K
. 
 A

 l
a

rg
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
w

a
s
te

 h
a

s
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

lly
 b

e
e

n
 l
a

n
d

-f
ill

e
d

 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
v
o

lu
m

e
s
 o

f 
m

e
th

a
n
e

 f
ro

m
 l
a

n
d
fi
ll 

s
it
e

s
. 

In
 r

e
c
e
n

t 
y
e

a
rs

 t
h
e

 E
u

ro
p

e
a

n
 L

a
n
d
fi
ll 

D
ir
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n
d

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e
d

 i
n

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
 c

o
rr

e
s
p

o
n
d

in
g
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 b
e

in
g
 l
a

n
d

-f
ill

e
d

. 
B

y
 2

0
2
0

, 
th

e
 

a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

b
io

d
e

g
ra

d
a
b

le
 m

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
w

a
s
te

 b
e
in

g
 l
a

n
d

-f
ill

e
d

 b
y
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 m
u

s
t 

re
d

u
c
e
 t

o
 3

5
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

n
n

a
g
e

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 
1

9
9
5

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 d

e
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
b

le
m

 o
f 

m
e

th
a

n
e

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 

T
h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

 n
e

w
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 (

W
S

2
0
0
7

) 
in

 2
0
0

7
 w

it
h

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 
to

w
a

rd
s
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 e
ff

e
c
ts

. 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 M
a
y
o

r 
fo

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 M

u
n

ic
ip

a
l 
W

a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

In
 H

a
rr

o
w

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 
w

e
 r

e
c
y
c
le

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
o

s
t 

v
e
ry

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
n

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

 a
n

d
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

 r
a

te
 o

f 
4

3
%

 i
n

 2
0
0

8
/9

 (
th

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

ra
te

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

).
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
w

e
 a

im
 t

o
 r

e
a

c
h
 5

0
%

 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
o
f 

m
u

n
ic

ip
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 r
e

s
id

e
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
s
t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 W

a
s
te

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 (
W

L
W

A
) 

(w
h

ic
h

 s
e

rv
e

s
 

s
ix

 C
o

u
n

c
ils

 i
n

 w
e

s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 –
 B

re
n

t,
 E

a
lin

g
, 
H

a
rr

o
w

, 
H

ill
in

g
d

o
n

, 
H

o
u

n
s
lo

w
 a

n
d

 R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
).

 A
 j
o

in
t 
w

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 

a
g
re

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
6

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 i
n

te
n
d

e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

a
n

d
fi
ll 

D
ir
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 W

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 T

ra
d

in
g
 

(W
E

T
) 

A
c
t.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
: 

- 
p

la
c
e

 g
re

a
te

r 
e
m

p
h
a

s
is

 o
n

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
; 

re
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
e

n
e

rg
y
 f

ro
m

 w
a

s
te

 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 c

a
n
 

m
a

k
e
; 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 s
e

n
t 
to

 l
a

n
d
fi
ll.

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
W

L
W

A
 

G
L

A
 

 
 

55



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

2

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 -
 W

a
s

te
 

R
e

f 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

3
2
 

P
u
b

lis
h
 a

 r
e

v
is

e
d
 w

a
s
te

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t
o

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

m
u
n
ic

ip
a

l 
w

a
s
te

 w
e
 r

e
c
y
c
le

 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
t 
–
 t
o
 5

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 W
a
s
te

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 o
n

 
th

is
 a

g
e
n

d
a

 

N
e

w
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

S
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 
5

0
%

. 

F
la

ts
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 L

W
A

R
B

, 
in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 t
o
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 8

0
0

0
 f

la
ts

 
(n

o
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

e
rv

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
) 

F
la

ts
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

fu
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

3
2
A

 
P

u
b

lis
h
 a

 m
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 P
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

W
e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
. 

 

 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

W
L
W

A
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y
 w

a
s
te

 
m

in
im

is
a

ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 w
a

s
te

 
m

in
im

is
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
o
p

te
d
 

b
y
 W

L
W

A
 (

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1

1
) 

H
a
rr

o
w

 h
a
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 W

L
W

A
 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

W
L
W

A
 o

n
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
la

n
 

3
2
B

 
T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

c
iv

ic
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 s

it
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 f

ro
m

 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t
o

 W
L
W

A
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
p

e
a

l 
o
f 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

 o
f 

th
e
 R

e
fu

s
e
 D

is
p
o
s
a
l 
A

m
e
n
it
y
 A

c
t 

 
D

e
fr

a
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

l 
to

 r
e
p

e
a
l 
R

D
A

. 
D

e
fr

a
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r/
re

p
e
a
l 
o
f 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

 o
f 

R
D

A
. 

W
e
s
t 
W

a
s
te

 B
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 

a
g
re

e
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
 

s
ta

tu
s
 q

u
o
 f

ro
m

 A
p
ri
l 
1
 

2
0
1
2

. 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
s
it
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

 o
f 

R
D

A
 

re
p
e
a

le
d

 1
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
2
. 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 C

A
 S

it
e
s
, 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 W

L
W

A
 

3
3
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 W

L
W

A
 a

n
d
 t
h
e

 o
th

e
r 

fi
v
e

 
c
o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o

 p
ro

c
u
re

 a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 

to
 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
la

n
d
fi
ll 

fo
r 

th
e
 d

is
p
o
s
a

l 
o
f 

re
s
id

u
a

l 
w

a
s
te

. 
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
s
 t
h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

 e
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
n

y
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 o

f 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 j
o

in
t 
W

a
s
te

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y
. 

 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 W
L
W

A
’s

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 j
o

in
t 

w
a

s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 o
n

 
th

is
 a

g
e
n

d
a

. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 j
o

in
t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

w
it
h

 W
L
W

A
. 

W
L
W

A
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

s
 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
jo

in
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 r
a

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

 b
y
 

c
o

n
s
ti
tu

e
n

t 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 b

y
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
1

 

J
o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 W

L
W

A
 

W
L
W

A
 s

ta
rt

 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

w
a
s
te

 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 t

o
 

re
p
la

c
e
 l
a

n
d
fi
ll 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

w
a
s
te

 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
te

c
h
n
o

lo
g

y
 

p
ro

c
e
e
d
s
 t
o

 a
w

a
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
b

y
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
3
 

56



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

3

6
5
%

. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 

jo
in

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d
 

3
4
 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 W

L
W

A
 t
o
 s

o
u
rc

e
 a

 l
o
c
a
l 
A

n
a

e
ro

b
ic

 
D

ig
e
s
ti
o
n

 (
A

D
) 

p
la

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 w

a
s
te

. 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

J
o

in
t 

w
a

s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

W
L
W

A
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 o
th

e
r 

fi
v
e

 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 

in
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
n

g
 t
h

is
 o

p
ti
o

n
. 
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

£
5
0

,0
0
0

 
–

 p
a

rt
ly

 o
ff

s
e

t 
b

y
 r

e
d
u

c
e

d
 

la
n

d
fi
ll 

c
o
s
ts

 

W
o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

in
g
 w

it
h
 

L
W

a
R

B
 f

o
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

A
D

 
p
la

n
t 
in

 W
e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
jo

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

 W
L
W

A
 

h
a

v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g

 W
L
W

P
 

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

jo
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

it
h
 W

L
W

A
 

h
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

e
m

e
rg

in
g
 W

L
W

P
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

D
 p

la
n
t 

is
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

b
y
 L

W
a
R

B
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t

o
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
 f

o
o
d
 

w
a
s
te

 w
h

e
n
 p

la
n
t 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 A

D
 

p
la

n
t 

3
5
 

P
ro

d
u
c
e

 a
 j
o
in

t 
w

a
s
te

 D
P

D
, 

th
e
 W

e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

W
a
s
te

 P
la

n
 (

W
L
W

P
) 

w
it
h

 f
iv

e
 o

th
e
r 

W
e
s
t 

L
o
n
d

o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t
o

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 s
it
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 

w
a
s
te

 w
it
h
in

 t
h

e
 w

e
s
t 
L

o
n
d

o
n
 

a
re

a
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 L
o
n

d
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

A
 c

o
n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 

W
o
rk

 i
s
 p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h
e

 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 d

ra
ft

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 g

o
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 

R
e
v
is

e
d
 w

a
s
te

 
a
p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t 
fi
g
u
re

s
 

is
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 G

L
A

. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 j
o

in
t 

w
a
s
te

 D
P

D
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

in
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
 

F
in

a
l 
s
u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 a

n
d

 
s
e

n
t 
to

 t
h
e

 S
e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 i
n

 
th

e
 n

e
w

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 s
u
it
a

b
le

 s
it
e
s
 

J
o
in

t 
W

a
s
te

 D
P

D
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
s
 t
o

 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
, 
s
it
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

w
e
s
t 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

fo
r 

w
a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

J
o
in

t 
W

a
s
te

 D
P

D
 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 S

o
S

 f
o
r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a

l 

3
6
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
s
it
e
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e

 S
it
e
 

W
a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
s
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 t
h

e
 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 a

p
p
ly

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 
P

la
n

 p
o

lic
y
, 

w
h

e
re

 
a

p
p

lic
a
b

le
, 
a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
D

P
D

 

 
M

a
jo

r 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d
 t

o
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
 w

a
s
te

 

57



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

4

w
a
s
te

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
. 

v
a

lid
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 S
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 B
u
ild

in
g

 
D

e
s
ig

n
 S

P
D

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
W

M
P

).
 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 B
u

ild
in

g
 

D
e

s
ig

n
 S

P
D

  

In
te

rn
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h

 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

W
e
b
s
it
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 w

h
e
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
  

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
s
 t
h

a
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 p

h
a
s
e
s
 

3
7
 

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o

n
 

 
W

e
b
s
it
e

 t
o

 b
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
  

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

58



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

5

6
 

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 N

a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
 6

.1
 

Is
s

u
e

 
C

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 m
e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
a

s
o

n
a

l 
w

e
a

th
e

r 
p
a

tt
e

rn
s
 w

e
 a

re
 f

a
m

ili
a

r 
w

it
h

 a
re

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
. 

It
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
o

 p
re

d
ic

t 
p

re
c
is

e
ly

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
t 
it
 s

e
e

m
s
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 

w
e

 w
ill

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 m
ild

e
r 

w
in

te
rs

, 
e

a
rl
ie

r 
s
p

ri
n

g
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
rm

e
r 

s
u

m
m

e
rs

. 
P

e
ri
o

d
s
 o

f 
d
ro

u
g
h

t 
o

r 
lo

w
 r

a
in

fa
ll 

w
ill

 b
e

c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u

e
n

t 
a

s
 w

ill
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
h

e
a

v
y
, 

p
ro

lo
n

g
e

d
 r

a
in

fa
ll.

 T
h

e
re

 
is

 a
ls

o
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

d
a
n

g
e

r 
th

a
t 

s
to

rm
s
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 m
o

re
 f

re
q
u

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 o
f 

h
ig

h
e

r 
in

te
n

s
it
y
. 

A
ll 

th
is

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 
n

a
tu

ra
l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

T
re

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

rb
a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a
t 
is

la
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
t 

b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

h
a

d
e
 a

n
d

 c
o
o

lin
g
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

s
u

c
h
 t

re
e

s
 n

e
e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 s
u

rv
iv

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

o
rt

 o
f 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 e

x
is

t.
  

O
f 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 i
s
 t

h
e

 a
g
e

 o
f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
tr

e
e

 s
to

c
k
, 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

o
m

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
it
s
 n

a
tu

ra
l 
lif

e
 

a
n

d
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 r

e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n

t.
 

T
h
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

tr
e

e
s
 i
s
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
is

s
u
e

. 
P

ro
p

e
r 

c
y
c
lic

a
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 h
e

lp
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h
e

 s
a
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
p

re
v
e

n
t 

ro
o

t 
d

a
m

a
g
e

 t
o

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 

P
ro

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

o
o

d
 c

h
ip

 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

tr
e

e
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o
n

s
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
o

u
rc

e
 o

f 
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

 e
n

e
rg

y
. 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 -
 B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 N

a
tu

ra
l 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

R
e

f  
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

3
8
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

d
o
p

te
d
 a

 B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 w

ill
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

e
ri

o
d

ic
a
lly

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

it
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

 c
h
a
n

g
in

g
 c

lim
a
te

. 

  

B
A

P
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
o
p

te
d
. 

1
0

 s
it
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 –
 o

u
t 

o
f 
3

0
 

s
it
e
s
 i
n

 t
o

ta
l.
 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
it
e

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
o
 1

4
. 

N
e

w
 B

A
P

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
B

A
P

. 
B

A
P

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
ta

n
tl
y
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 

In
c
re

a
s
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
it
e

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 t
o

 2
0
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
B

A
P

. 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

 

F
o
rm

a
l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
B

A
P

 
n
o
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d
. 

 

59



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

6

re
c
ru

it
e

d
 

3
9
 

P
u
b

lis
h
 a

n
 A

llo
tm

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 a

n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 a

llo
tm

e
n
t 

h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 a

d
o

p
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 
e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 L

D
F

).
 

 

A
llo

tm
e

n
t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
d

o
p
te

d
. 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 S

P
D

 
to

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
P

G
1

7
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 
a

n
 O

p
e
n

 
s
p

a
c
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 a

llo
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
 

S
P

D
. 

P
re

p
a

re
 O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

c
e
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

to
 b

e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 A

llo
tm

e
n
t 
R

u
le

s
. 

A
llo

tm
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 t
o
: 

• 
im

p
ro

v
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 g

re
a

te
r 

u
s
e
 

• 
R

e
c
la

im
 l
o
s
t 
p
lo

ts
 t

o
 

m
a
x
im

is
e
 u

s
e
 

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

u
s
e
rs

 

• 
A

c
ti
v
e
 s

it
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

A
llo

tm
e
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

in
g
 

4
0
 

P
u
b

lis
h
 a

 t
re

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
id

e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 s

p
e
c
ie

s
 

o
f 

tr
e
e
 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
rv

iv
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

c
h
a
n
g

in
g
 c

lim
a
te

, 
e
n
s
u
ri

n
g

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

tr
e
e
s
 h

e
lp

s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
t 

is
la

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
t,
 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 h
o

w
 t
re

e
 w

a
s
te

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o

 h
e

lp
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
n

e
rg

y
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 L

D
F

).
 

D
ra

ft
 t

re
e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 f
o

r 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 

T
re

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 S

P
D

 t
o

 b
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
e

d
 -

 d
e

fe
rr

e
d

 

S
P

D
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 
s
u

p
e

rs
e

d
e

d
 b

y
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 

fo
r 

a
 H

a
rr

o
w

 G
re

e
n

 G
ri

d
. 

H
a

rr
o

w
 G

re
e

n
 G

ri
d

 t
o

 b
e

 
p

re
p

a
re

d
 

D
ra

ft
 T

re
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
M

a
y
o

r’
s
 T

re
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
G

L
A

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 G
re

e
n

 G
ri
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
to

 2
n
d
 

y
e

a
r.

 

A
d
o

p
t 
T

re
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

(N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
) 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
re

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 G

L
A

 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

R
e
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
T

re
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 

4
1
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 w
ild

 
a
re

a
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
d

u
c
e
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 r

e
g
im

e
s
 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 (

a
n

d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
) 

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 3

0
3

 
h

e
c
ta

re
s
 o

f 
G

re
e
n

 B
e

lt
 

la
n

d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 m

a
n

a
g
e

d
 t
o

 
p

ro
m

o
te

 b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

T
h

re
e

 p
a

rk
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
a

w
a

rd
e

d
 G

re
e

n
 P

a
rk

 
s
ta

tu
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 

b
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d
. 

O
n

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rk

 t
o

 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 G
re

e
n

 f
la

g
 s

ta
tu

s
 

–
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 

m
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e

 a
re

a
. 

D
e

fe
rr

e
d

 

N
e

w
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 r
e

g
im

e
s
 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

to
 b

e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
.i
n
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
1
 

T
h
re

e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
p

a
rk

s
 

to
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 G

re
e

n
 f

la
g
 

s
ta

tu
s
 –

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
c
e
m

e
te

ry
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

tr
ia

lle
d
 a

s
 w

ild
 f

lo
w

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 

60



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

7

a
re

a
s
. 

 

in
tr

o
d
u

c
e
d

 i
n

 S
ta

n
m

o
re

 
M

a
rs

h
e

s
 a

n
d
 W

e
s
t 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

R
e

c
 –

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 
b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

a
re

a
. 
- 

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

a
p
p

ly
in

g
 f

o
r 

m
o
re

 G
re

e
n
 

F
la

g
 p

a
rk

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

P
in

n
e
r 

M
e
m

o
ri
a
l 
P

a
rk

 
a

w
a
rd

e
d
 G

re
e
n

 F
la

g
 

s
ta

tu
s
  
  
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

4
3
 

R
e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
it
e
s
 w

it
h

 s
e
a
s
o
n

a
l 

b
e
d
d

in
g
 d

is
p
la

y
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 w

it
h

 
h
e
rb

a
c
e

o
u
s
 p

la
n
ti
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 l
e
s
s
 w

a
te

r,
 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
a
n

d
 e

n
e
rg

y
 i
n
p
u
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

. 

 

A
ll 

m
a

jo
r 

p
u

b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 
b

e
d

d
in

g
 d

is
p

la
y
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
p

la
c
e
d

 w
it
h

 
p

e
re

n
n
ia

l 
p

la
n

ti
n

g
 o

r 
s
h

ru
b

 
b

e
d

s
. 

S
o

m
e

 a
re

a
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 g
ra

s
s
 

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
. 

A
 l
im

it
e

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

re
a

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
la

n
te

d
 w

it
h

 
b

e
d

d
in

g
 p

la
n
ts

 

A
ll 

b
e

d
d

in
g

 a
re

a
s
 

re
p
la

c
e

d
 

S
o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
v
e
rt

e
d

 t
o
 

h
e
rb

a
c
e

o
u
s
 p

la
n
ti
n

g
 

4
4
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 h

a
n

g
in

g
 b

a
s
k
e
t 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 (

fo
r 

s
im

ila
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
).

 

  

H
a

n
g

in
g

 b
a
s
k
e

ts
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 i
n

s
ta

lle
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
o

w
n

 
c
e

n
tr

e
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 
c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 T
o

w
n

 
C

e
n

tr
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
 g

u
id

e
 S

P
D

 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
 S

P
D

 n
o

 
lo

n
g

e
r 

b
e
in

g
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 
p

re
fe

re
n

c
e
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
n

 A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

e
a

rt
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

. 

A
ll 

h
a

n
g

in
g

 b
a
s
k
e
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 

N
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

4
5
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

s
tr

e
e
t 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
tr

e
e

 p
it
s
, 

w
h
e
re

 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 
 

  

T
re

e
 p

it
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 s

tr
e

e
t 

re
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

s
 

a
 m

a
tt
e

r 
o

f 
c
o
u

rs
e

. 
It

 r
e

lie
s
 

o
n

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
tr

e
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 
tr

e
e

 p
it
s
 

to
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 a
ll 

s
tr

e
e

t 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n

ts
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

s
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 m

e
t 
b

y
 

P
u

b
lic

 R
e

a
lm

 
In

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 –

 u
n
le

s
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
s
u
c
h

 p
it
s
 i
s
 

c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o

 b
e
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

tr
e

e
 p

it
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e

m
e
s
 

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

N
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

 

61



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

8

in
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 b

y
 t

h
e

 T
re

e
 

O
ff

ic
e

r.
 

4
6
 

A
im

 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 t
re

e
 p

la
n
ti
n

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

to
 p

la
n
t 

2
0

0
0
 t
re

e
s
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

llo
w

s
 t

h
e

 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
1
0

0
0

 t
re

e
s
 

a
 y

e
a

r,
  

B
id

 f
o

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
in

 
M

T
F

S
. 

P
la

n
t 

2
0

0
0
 t

re
e
s
 e

a
c
h

 
y
e

a
r.

 A
p

p
ro

x
 1

0
0

0
 t

re
e

s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

la
n

te
d

 –
 

d
u

e
 t

o
 l
im

it
e

d
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 G

re
e

n
 G

ri
d

 t
o

 b
e

 
p

re
p

a
re

d
. 

P
la

n
t 
2

0
0

0
 t
re

e
s
 e

a
c
h
 

y
e

a
r 

–
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

A
p
p
ro

x
. 

1
0
0

0
 p

la
n

te
d
 

P
la

n
t 
2

0
0

0
 t
re

e
s
 –

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 f
u
n
d

in
g
 

 A
p
p
ro

x
. 

1
0
0

0
 t
o

 b
e
 

p
la

n
te

d
 

4
7
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

 o
f 

tr
e
e
s
 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 
th

e
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

s
tr

o
n
g
e
r 

w
in

d
s
 e

tc
. 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
d

 t
h
e

 l
if
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 t

re
e
 s

to
c
k
. 

  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
a

n
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

o
n

ly
 r

e
a
c
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

. 
 

C
y
c
lic

a
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 a
 

fo
u

r 
y
e

a
r 

c
y
c
le

 w
o

u
ld

 
a

llo
w

 t
re

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
o

u
ld

 l
e

a
d

 
to

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 i
n
s
u

ra
n
c
e

 
c
la

im
s
 f

o
r 

ro
o

t 
d
a

m
a

g
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 c

o
s
t 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

£
5

0
0
k
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r.

  

C
y
c
lic

a
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 
w

o
u

ld
 c

o
s
t 

a
p
p

ro
x
. 

£
3

0
0

k
 

p
e

r 
y
e

a
r.

 

A
g
re

e
 t
o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 

c
y
c
lic

a
l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
tr

e
e
s
 a

s
 a

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

p
o
lic

y
 

T
re

e
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
a

ll 
tr

e
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

In
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

£
1

5
0
k
 i
n
to

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

fo
r 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 t
o
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 p
ri
o

r 
to

 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
y
c
lic

a
l 

m
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

N
o

t 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 c
y
c
lic

a
l 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
tr

e
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0

1
1
 o

v
e
r 

a
 

tw
o
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
ri
o

d
. 
. 

In
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a

l 
£
1
5
0
k
 i
n
to

 b
u

d
g
e

t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
2

/1
3
 

D
e
fe

r 
u
n
ti
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 
b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 

S
ti
ll 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

4
8
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 

m
a
in

ta
in

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
te

d
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 a

 
m

a
n
n
e
r 

th
a
t 
e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s
 w

ild
lif

e
 

A
d

o
p

t 
a
 b

e
d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

B
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

62



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
2

9

4
9
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o
f 

th
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 C
o
re

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
m

a
in

ta
in

in
g
 a

n
d

, 
w

h
e
re

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
, 
e
n

h
a
n
c
in

g
 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

’s
 b

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 o

ff
e
r.

  
T

h
e
 C

o
re

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

im
e
d
 a

t 
m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 b

a
c
k
la

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h

e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 H

a
rr

o
w

 B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

   

C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

re
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

w
a

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
0

8
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 f
o

r 
s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 i
n
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

. 

P
re

-s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 

to
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

a
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
p

la
n

. 
N

o
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 f

o
r 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 B

e
lm

o
n

t 
tr

a
il 

w
a

lk
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 i
n

 a
 

m
a

n
n
e

r 
s
y
m

p
a

th
e

ti
c
 t

o
 t
h

e
 

lo
c
a
l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y
. 

B
e

lm
o
n

t 
tr

a
il 

n
a

tu
re

 t
ra

il 
to

 
b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
to

 
tr

a
il.

 

P
re

-s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
o

re
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
 f

o
llo

w
e

d
 b

y
 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 P
u
b

lic
 i
n

 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

1
. 

 

P
re

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 b

e
g
in

 o
n

 
th

e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
o

lic
ie

s
 

D
P

D
 a

n
d

 S
it
e

 S
p

e
c
if
ic

 
A

llo
c
a

ti
o
n

s
 D

P
D

 

 

H
a
rr

o
w

 C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

a
d
o
p

te
d
 i
n
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
1
2

. 
  

O
th

e
r 

L
o
c
a

l 
P

la
n
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 

to
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 s

ta
g

e
. 

S
P

D
 o

n
 b

a
c
k
g
a
rd

e
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
b
e

in
g
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 /
 

re
in

fo
rc

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

‘p
re

s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 a

g
a

in
s
t’
 

p
o
lic

y
 

5
0
 

W
h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
u
s
e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
b

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y
 

  

D
ra

ft
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

S
P

D
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 

fo
r 

p
u

b
lic

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o
n

 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
 i
n

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 

g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
b

lig
a

ti
o

n
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
n
d

e
re

d
 

th
e

 S
P

D
 o

b
s
o
le

te
. 

 

W
o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
g
u

n
 o

n
 

p
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
P

la
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 t
h

e
 

b
a

s
is

 f
o

r 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 a
 

c
h

a
rg

in
g

 s
c
h

e
d
u

le
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

L
e

v
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

 
H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 L

e
v
y
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 

ta
n
d

e
m

 w
it
h
 a

 
P

la
n
n

in
g

 O
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

S
P

D
 –

 t
h
e
 f

o
rm

e
r 

to
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 
g
re

e
n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 

la
tt

e
r 

to
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 s

it
e

 

63



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

0

re
g

u
la

ti
o
n

s
, 
th

e
 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 k

e
p

t 
u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

64



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

1

7
 

F
o

o
d

, 
F

a
ir

 T
ra

d
e

 a
n

d
 S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 S

h
o

p
p

in
g

 
 

7
.1

 
Is

s
u

e
 

A
g
ri
c
u

lt
u

re
 a

n
d
 f

o
o

d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u
e

 o
f 
g
ro

w
in

g
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 i
n

 t
h
e
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 d
e

b
a
te

. 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
in

te
n

s
iv

e
 f

a
rm

in
g
 

m
e

th
o

d
s
 a

re
 o

il 
d

e
p

e
n
d

a
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 h

ig
h

 c
a

rb
o
n

 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 u
s
e

 a
rt

if
ic

ia
l 
fe

rt
ili

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 f
u

e
l 

u
s
e

d
 i
n

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
. 

 

C
o

tt
o

n
 g

ro
w

in
g
 a

c
c
o

u
n
ts

 f
o

r 
5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rl
d

w
id

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

p
e

s
ti
c
id

e
s
. 

D
E

F
R

A
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
2

0
0
6

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 U
K

 w
a

s
 o

n
ly

 5
8

%
 s

e
lf
-s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
 f

o
o

d
, 

w
it
h

 9
0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

fr
u

it
 a

n
d

 5
0

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
v
e

g
e

ta
b

le
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
o
rt

e
d

. 
 T

h
e

 c
a

rb
o

n
 f

o
o

t 
p

ri
n

t 
fr

o
m

 s
o
u

rc
in

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
c
o
u

n
tr

ie
s
 i
s
 h

ig
h

 a
n
d

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 
ri
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
. 

W
R

A
P

 (
W

a
s
te

 R
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
) 

re
p

o
rt

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 f
a

m
ily

 w
a

s
te

s
 2

2
%

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

o
d
 i
t 

b
u

y
s
. 

O
n

 a
 g

lo
b

a
l 

th
is

 w
a

s
te

d
 f
o

o
d
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 a
n

 u
n

-n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 c

a
rb

o
n
 f

o
o

tp
ri
n

t 
o
f 

2
0

 m
ill

io
n

 t
o
n

n
e

s
 p

.a
. 

A
N

D
 6

.2
 b

ill
io

n
 c

u
.m

 o
f 

w
a

te
r 

is
 

u
s
e

d
 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

c
e

 i
t.

 T
h

is
 w

a
s
te

d
 f

o
o

d
 i
s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
s
t 

th
e

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 f
a
m

ily
 £

6
0

0
 a

 y
e

a
r.

 

T
h
e

 d
iv

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 
fo

o
d

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

to
 b

io
-f

u
e

ls
 i
s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 f

a
c
to

rs
 d

ri
v
in

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

ra
in

 f
o

re
s
ts

 a
n

d
 r

is
in

g
 f

o
o

d
 

p
ri
c
e

s
. 

 

T
h
e

 l
iv

e
s
to

c
k
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

s
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

g
re

e
n

h
o
u

s
e

s
 g

a
s
, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 m

e
th

a
n

e
. 
In

 2
0

0
6

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 N

a
ti
o

n
s
 F

o
o
d

 a
n

d
 

A
g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 l
iv

e
s
to

c
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
1
8

%
 o

f 
th

e
 h

u
m

a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 c

lim
a

te
. 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ri
v
in

g
 f

o
rc

e
s
 b

e
h

in
d

 f
o

r 
c
le

a
ra

n
c
e

 o
f 

ra
in

fo
re

s
ts

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
ro

p
s
 f

o
r 

a
n

im
a

l 
fe

e
d
. 

 

T
h
e

 U
K

 C
lim

a
te

 I
m

p
a

c
ts

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

re
d

ic
ts

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

 t
e
m

p
e

ra
tu

re
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 S
o

u
th

 E
a

s
t 

c
o
u

ld
 r

is
e

 b
y
 u

p
 t

o
 5

°C
 b

y
 

2
0

5
0

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 e
ff

e
c
t 

th
e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 a
g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
in

d
u

s
tr

y
, 

a
s
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 m
e
a

n
 t
h

a
t 

c
e

rt
a

in
 c

ro
p

s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 l
o

n
g
e

r 
s
e

a
s
o
n

s
, 

b
u

t 
it
 w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 a
ff

e
c
t 

w
h

a
t 

c
ro

p
s
 w

o
u

ld
 s

u
rv

iv
e

 a
n

d
 r

a
is

e
s
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

s
 t

o
 h

o
w

 w
e

 w
ill

 s
u

s
ta

in
 t

h
e
m

 w
it
h

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

p
re

s
s
u

re
s
 o

n
 w

a
te

r 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 
T

o
d

a
y
, 

tw
o

-t
h

ir
d

s
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
a
b

s
tr

a
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
is

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 i
rr

ig
a

te
 c

ro
p

s
. 

H
ig

h
e

r 
te

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

re
a
ts

 f
ro

m
 p

e
s
ts

 a
n

d
 d

is
e

a
s
e
. 

 

S
e

a
s
o
n

a
l,
 l
o

c
a

lly
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

d
 f
o

o
d

, 
o

rg
a

n
ic

 a
n

d
 (

to
 s

o
m

e
 e

x
te

n
t)

 f
a

ir
-t

ra
d

e
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

 h
a

v
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
c
a

rb
o
n

 f
o
o

t 
p

ri
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o
u

ld
 

h
e

lp
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 c
a

rb
o
n

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 f
o
o

d
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
. 

 

65



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

2

   A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 -
 F

o
o

d
, 

F
a

ir
 T

ra
d

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 S
h

o
p

p
in

g
 

R
e

f 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

5
1
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

b
u

y
in

g
 l
o
c
a

l 
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

5
2
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 f
a
rm

e
rs

 m
a
rk

e
t.
 

P
in

n
e

r 
F

a
rm

e
rs

 m
a

rk
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 o
n

ly
 o

n
e

 i
n

 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

fe
w

 y
e

a
rs

. 

D
u

c
k
 P

o
n

d
 M

a
rk

e
t 

a
t 

T
it
h

e
 

B
a

rn
 w

a
s
 l
a

u
n

c
h
e

d
 i
n

 
J
u

n
e
 2

0
0
9

 

 

 
N

o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

5
3
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

h
o

w
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n
 v

e
g

e
ta

b
le

s
 

 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

5
4
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

a
llo

tm
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 g
a
rd

e
n
s
 

fo
r 

g
ro

w
in

g
 f

o
o

d
. 

 

In
c
lu

d
e

 i
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

A
llo

tm
e

n
ts

 S
P

D
?

 

A
w

a
it
in

g
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
P

G
1

7
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

p
re

p
a

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 
a

n
 O

p
e
n

 
S

p
a

c
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 a

llo
tm

e
n

ts
 a

n
d
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
a

n
 

S
P

D
 

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

llo
tm

e
n

t 
c
h

a
rg

e
s
?

 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e

s
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 

b
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d
. 

T
a

k
e

-u
p

 o
f 
a

llo
tm

e
n

ts
 h

a
s
 

im
p

ro
v
e
d

. 
O

c
c
u

p
a
n

c
y
 r

a
te

 
is

 n
o

w
 9

8
%

. 
C

u
rr

e
n
t 

w
a

it
in

g
 l
is

t 
is

 3
0

0
. 

O
p
e
n
 S

p
a
c
e
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

to
 b

e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 

 

66



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

3

5
5
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o
 s

h
o
p
 l
o
c
a
lly

. 
 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

H
a

rr
o

w
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

d
is

c
o

u
n

t 
c
a

rd
 a

n
n

o
u

n
c
e

d
. 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

5
6
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 

fr
o
m

 f
a
rm

e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 E
a
s
t 
re

g
io

n
. 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

5
7
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 o

rg
a
n

ic
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 

u
s
u
a
lly

 y
ie

ld
s
 a

 l
o

w
e
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 f

o
o
t 
p
ri

n
t 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

5
8
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 H

a
rr

o
w

 a
s
 a

 f
a
ir
 t

ra
d
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 

C
a

te
ri

n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
u

rr
e
n

tl
y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f

a
ir
 t

ra
d
e

 t
e
a

 a
n
d

 
c
o

ff
e
e

 

D
e

c
is

io
n
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

 F
a
ir

 
tr

a
d

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
. 

D
e

c
is

io
n
 o

n
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 a

 
F

a
ir

 T
ra

d
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 

 

A
p
p

lic
a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

F
a
ir
 

T
ra

d
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
e

d
. 
A

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

w
a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
. 

 

N
e

w
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

F
a

ir
 

tr
a
d
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 s

ta
tu

s
 i
s
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2

. 

5
9
 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 s
c
h
o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

in
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 t
h

e
m

 t
o
 g

ro
w

 t
h
e

ir
 o

w
n
 c

ro
p
s
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
m

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 

w
w

w
.l
o
c
a
lf
o
o
d

g
ra

n
ts

.o
rg

  

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

6
0
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

u
s
in

g
 r

e
-u

s
e
a
b

le
 b

a
g
s
 

w
h
e
n
 s

h
o
p
p

in
g
, 
a

n
d
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 c

u
t 
d

o
w

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

c
a
rr

ie
r 

b
a
g
s
 t
h

e
y
 u

s
e
. 
 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

6
1
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

p
u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 g

o
o
d
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 r

e
-f

ill
e

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
u
s
e

d
, 

a
n
d
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 u

s
e
 l
e
s
s
 p

a
c
k
a
g
in

g
  

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

67



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

4

8
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 P

u
b

li
c
 S

e
c
to

r 
 8

.1
 

Is
s
u

e
 

T
h
e

 c
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
a
n

d
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
fo

r 
3

3
%

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n
d

u
s
tr

ia
l 
s
e

c
to

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

fo
r 

a
n

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
7

%
. 
T

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r’
s
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a

n
g
e

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
 3

9
%

 o
f 

th
e
 c

a
rb

o
n

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

2
0

2
5

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 t
a

rg
e

t 
c
a
n

 b
e
 m

e
t 

b
y
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

is
 s

e
c
to

r.
  

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ta

c
ts

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
, 

I.
e
. 
 

• 
L

a
rg

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

r 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 (
L

E
N

).
 I

.e
. 
m

a
jo

r 
e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 

• 
H

a
rr

o
w

 i
n

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 (

H
IB

).
 H

o
ld

s
 f
o

u
r 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

 y
e

a
r 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

 T
h
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
o

u
te

 f
o

r 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 S
M

E
s
. 

O
n

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
6
0

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

tt
e

n
d

 e
a

c
h

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
. 

• 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

(B
ID

) 
fo

r 
th

e
 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

. 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 b

e
e

n
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 “

E
n

te
rp

ri
s
in

g
 H

a
rr

o
w

” 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

 
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 -

 B
u

s
in

e
s

s
e
s

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 P
u

b
li

c
 S

e
c

to
r 

R
e

f 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

6
2
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

v
ia

 o
u
r 

tr
a
d
e
 w

a
s
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 

R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 f

o
r 

m
ix

e
d

 
re

c
y
c
la

b
le

 w
a

s
te

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 t
o

 t
ra

d
e

 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 s

in
c
e

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

0
5

 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 i
n

v
o
ic

in
g

 
s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
d

 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a

 l
a

rg
e

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 w
it
h

in
 

th
e

 w
a

s
te

 m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

C
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 
tr

a
d

e
 w

a
s
te

 

T
h

e
 t

ra
d

e
 w

a
s
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
to

 e
x
te

n
d

 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t
o

 m
o

re
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 

T
h

is
 m

a
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
a

 f
o
o

d
 w

a
s
te

 
c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o
 f

e
e
d

 
in

to
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 A

D
 

p
la

n
t.
 S

e
e

 i
te

m
 3

4
. 

A
 c

o
-m

in
g
le

d
 d

ry
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 

o
ff

e
re

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 –
 a

t 
a
 

d
is

c
o
u
n
te

d
 r

a
te

 

N
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

68



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

5

w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
c
o

rd
e
d

 v
ia

 a
n

 
R

fI
D

 s
y
s
te

m
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 
e

n
a

b
le

 t
h
e

 e
x
a

c
t 

ti
m

e
 a

n
d

 
lo

c
a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
. 

R
fI

D
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

6
3
 

P
ro

v
id

e
, 
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h

 t
h
e
 L

o
n

d
o
n
 S

m
a
rt

 
w

o
rk

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

 f
re

e
 e

n
e
rg

y
, 

w
a
te

r 
a
n
d

 
w

a
s
te

 a
u
d
it
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
’s

 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

. 
T

h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 r

u
n
 f

ro
m

 2
0
0
9
 –

 2
0

1
1
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

o
v
e
r 

4
0
 a

u
d
it
s
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 6
 m

o
n
th

s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

u
d

it
. 
 

S
c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

2
0

 a
u
d

it
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
b

y
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0

 

A
u
d

it
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

re
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 i
n
to

 
2
0
1
1

/1
2
. 

 

T
a
k
e
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 S
M

E
s
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 w

e
a
k
 

2
0

 a
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
a

u
d

it
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0

1
1

. 

T
o

ta
l 
o

f 
4
0

 a
u
d

it
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
o

n
e

 b
y
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
 –

 w
h

e
n

 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

fu
n
d

in
g

 e
n
d

s
. 

S
m

a
rt

 w
o
rk

s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

e
n
d
e

d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0

1
1
 

N
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

6
4
 

O
u
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 v

ia
 t
h
e

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

a
n

d
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 o

u
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

e
 w

ill
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 o
th

e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 
b
o
d

ie
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h

e
ir
 c

a
rb

o
n
 f

o
o
t 
p
ri
n
t 

 T
h
e
 S

u
st

a
in

a
b
le

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s 

n
o
w

 
o
u
t 

o
f 

d
a
te

 a
n
d
 i
s 

u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fr

e
sh

e
d
 a

s 

th
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

th
e
se

 d
o
cu

m
e
n
ts

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 b

y
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

  
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 
jo

in
t 

a
ct

io
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 B

u
d
g
e
ts

, 
jo

in
t 

co
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

se
e
k
in

g
 e

co
n
o
m

ie
s 

o
f 

sc
a
le

 w
ill

 d
ri
v
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 i
n
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
n
g
 t

o
 

h
e
lp

 o
th

je
r 

p
u
b
lic

 b
o
d
ie

s 
to

 r
e
d
u
ce

 t
h
e
ir
 

ca
rb

o
n
 f

o
o
tp

ri
n
t.

 

T
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

a
s
 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
9

. 

A
g

re
e

 a
 j
o

in
t 
c
lim

a
te

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 b
y
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0

. 

J
o

in
tl
y
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

te
 o

p
ti
o
n

s
 

fo
r 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 h

e
a

ti
n

g
 

s
c
h
e

m
e
s
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 t
o

 N
o

rt
h

w
ic

k
 

P
a

rk
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l,
 

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te

r 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
, 

H
a

rr
o

w
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
H

a
rr

o
w

 H
ig

h
 S

c
h

o
o

l,
 

N
o

rb
u

ry
 s

c
h

o
o
l,
 C

iv
ic

 
C

e
n

tr
e

  
a
n

d
 H

a
rr

o
w

 
L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e

 a
n

d
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a

 j
o

in
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

d
 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 b

u
t 
s
o
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 –

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a

 j
o
in

t 
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 W
a
rm

th
/F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
a

 j
o

in
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 o
n

 
d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 c
a

rb
o
n

 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

u
b
lic

 
s
e

c
to

r 

In
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s 

in
to

 t
h
e
 

p
o
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

d
u
ci

n
g
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l's
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 b
o
d
ie

s'
 u

se
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
-

lo
ca

ti
o
n
, 
m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
sa

g
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
 

w
h
ic

h
, 
w

h
e
re

 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
l,
 w

ill
 

co
n
tr

ib
u
te

 r
e
d
u
ce

d
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 u

se
. 

 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
ct

o
r 

e
st

a
te

. 

 

69



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

6

W
e
a
ld

s
to

n
e

 t
o

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

 

6
7
 

P
ro

m
o
te

 n
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e

 C
a

rb
o
n
 T

ru
s
t’
s
 

in
te

re
s
t 
fr

e
e
 l
o
a

n
s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

S
M

E
’s

. 
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

m
a
d
e
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 

 

D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

6
8
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 s

ig
n
 u

p
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

M
a

y
o

r 
o
f 

L
o
n

d
o
n

’s
 G

re
e
n

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
C

o
d
e
. 

 
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

6
8
a
 

E
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
 

P
ri

m
a

ri
ly

 d
o

n
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h
 t

h
e

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
n

 
a

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
. 

E
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

 B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
D

is
tr

ic
ts

 

 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 G
L

A
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
p

o
lic

y
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
tr

a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
b
u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 T

fL
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
, 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
te

n
t 

o
f 

tr
a
v
e

l 
p

la
n
s
. 
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t

o
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
o
o
s
in

g
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 a

 p
ro

-a
c
ti
v
e
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

 

G
re

e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 H

e
a
rt

 o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 
b
e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 

70



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

7

9
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 F

o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

 9
.1

 
Is

s
u

e
 

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 d

e
a

ls
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 s

ta
ff

, 
in

-h
o

u
s
e

 a
n
d

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
te

d
 o

u
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 f
le

e
t 
a

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

to
c
k
 –

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

T
h
e

 C
a

rb
o

n
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a

n
g
e

 A
c
t 

a
n
d

 i
s
 l
e

g
a

lly
 b

in
d

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 t

o
 c

u
t 
th

e
ir
 C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
. 
T

h
e
 C

R
C

 
s
ta

rt
s
 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
0

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 e

n
e

rg
y
 u

s
e

 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

It
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
 l
e

g
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t 
to

 d
is

p
la

y
 a

 “
D

is
p

la
y
 E

n
e

rg
y
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

” 
–

 D
E

C
 –

 i
n
 e

a
c
h

 b
u

ild
in

g
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 u
s
e

r 
o
f 

e
n

e
rg

y
, 

s
h

o
w

in
g

 
th

e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
. 

H
a

rr
o

w
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 s
u

rv
e

y
s
 i
n

 t
h
e

 6
2

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 (

th
a

t 
e

x
c
e

e
d
 t

h
e

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

) 
w

it
h

 a
n

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

ra
n

g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 B
 (

e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t)

 t
o

 G
 (

lo
w

e
s
t 

g
ra

d
e

).
 T

h
e

 D
E

C
s
 r

a
ti
n

g
s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
7

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e

d
 a

re
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

. 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 a
 c

le
a

r 
n

e
e
d

 f
o

r 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 e

n
e

rg
y
 s

a
v
in

g
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
o

 b
ri
n
g
 t

h
e

m
 t
o

 t
h

e
 t
y
p

ic
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
o

r 
a

b
o

v
e

. 
 

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 -
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 F

o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

R
e

f 
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3
  

6
9
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 o

u
r 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 c

a
rb

o
n
 f

o
o
tp

ri
n
t.
 

W
e
 r

e
p
o

rt
e

d
 o

u
r 

b
a

s
e

lin
e

 
C

O
2

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8
/9

 
u

n
d

e
r 

N
I 
1

8
5

 b
y
 t

h
e

 J
u

ly
 

3
1

s
t  d

e
a

d
lin

e
. 

S
im

ila
rl

y
, 

w
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 o

u
r 

b
a

s
e
lin

e
 N

O
x
 a

n
d

 P
M

1
0
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8
/9

 
u

n
d

e
r 

N
I 
1

9
4

 b
y
 t

h
e

 3
1

s
t  

J
u

ly
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
. 

 

B
a

s
e

 l
in

e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
c
a

lc
u
la

te
d

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 

re
v
is

e
d

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

 w
ill

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 s
o
m

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 t
h
a

t 
h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 

i.
e

. 
S

tr
e

e
t 

lig
h
ti
n

g
 

d
a

ta
b
a

s
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
w

s
 a

 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 
in

s
ta

lle
d

 c
a

p
a
c
it
y
 (

~
2
5

%
) 

c
f.

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 

in
 2

0
0

8
/9

 

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0

1
0
/1

1
 w

a
s
 

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 

d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0

1
0
/1

1
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

 

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0

1
1
/1

2
 

p
u
b

lis
h
e

d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

2
 

7
1
 

P
la

n
 t
o

 m
a
k
e
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
s
a

v
in

g
 o

f 
4
.0

%
 o

n
 

o
u
r 

c
a
rb

o
n

 f
o
o
tp

ri
n
t 
b

y
 t

a
rg

e
ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t
h

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 h

ig
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 f

o
o

tp
ri

n
ts

 a
n
d
 l
o

w
 t
h
e
rm

a
l 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
. 
(N

o
te

: 
th

is
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 a

n
n

u
a
l 

s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
£
2

4
0
k
 a

t 
to

d
a

y
’s

 p
ri
c
e
s
 –

 e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

a
n

y
 c

a
rb

o
n
 p

ri
c
in

g
) 

T
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

e
ts

 t
h
is

 a
s
 

a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fr
o

m
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0

. 
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 

s
e

t 
o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

 

C
a

rb
o

n
 R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

rt
s
. 

£
2

7
0
k
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 (

in
te

re
s
t 

fr
e

e
 l
o

a
n
s
) 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

o
b

ta
in

e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

A
L

IX
 t

o
 

fu
n

d
 e

n
e

rg
y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 a
b

o
u
t 

1
.2

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

s
. 

 

C
R

C
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

p
h

a
s
e
 

s
ta

rt
s
 w

it
h
 i
n

it
ia

l 
p
ri
c
e
 o

f 
£
1
2
/t

o
n
n

e
 o

f 
c
a
rb

o
n

. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 F

o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

R
e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 f

ir
s
t 
A

n
n

u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

 
2
0
1
1

. 

 

P
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 o

f 
a
llo

w
a

n
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
1
-1

2
 

w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 
2
0
1
2

. 
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
-

1
2
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 J

u
ly

 3
1
 d

e
a

d
lin

e
 

C
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 

71



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

8

£
6

3
k
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 c
a

p
it
a
l 

fu
n

d
in

g
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u
c
e

d
 a

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
p

p
ro

x
. 

h
a

lf
 o

f 
o

n
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

t.
. 

A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 

fo
r 

s
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 a

n
d
 c

lim
a

te
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 

T
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
e

e
t-

lig
h

ti
n

g
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e

 m
e

a
n
s
 

th
a

t 
to

ta
l 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 w
ill

 
s
h

o
w

 a
n

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 o
v
e

r 
2

0
0

8
/9

 

S
e

p
a

ra
te

 C
R

C
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
–

 D
e
c
 2

0
1

0
 –

 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 f
u
n

d
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
. 

  R
E

:F
IT

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 

re
tr

o
fi
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

it
h
 

e
n
e
rg

y
s
a

v
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

w
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 i
n

 F
e
b
 2

0
1

2
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 1

.2
6
%

 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 2

0
1

0
-

1
1
. 

R
E

:F
IT

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

s
ix

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e
 C

iv
ic

 C
e

n
tr

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 d

u
ri

n
g
 2

0
1

2
-

1
3
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

a
n

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
c
a
rb

o
n
 s

a
v
in

g
 o

f 
6
6

0
 

to
n
n

e
s
 (

3
.7

%
) 

–
 o

n
c
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

7
2
 

P
la

n
 t
o

 r
e
d
u
c
e

 o
u
r 

p
o
ta

b
le

 w
a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 2

.5
%

 a
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 
a
n
 a

n
n
u

a
l 
s
a

v
in

g
 o

f 
£
2
5
k
 a

t 
p
re

s
e
n
t 

d
a

y
 

p
ri
c
e
s
. 

T
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

e
ts

 t
h
is

 a
s
 

a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fr
o

m
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0

. 
 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 

s
e

t 
o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
. 

W
a
te

r 
re

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
e
d

 b
y
 s

p
e

c
if
y
in

g
 

n
e

w
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

w
a

s
h

ro
o

m
s
 

a
n

d
 t

o
ile

ts
. 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

2
n
d
 

fl
o
o
r 

o
f 

th
e
 c

iv
ic

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

w
ill

 e
n
a
b

le
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 t
o

 
b
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

1
s
t  

fl
o
o
r 

o
f 

th
e
 c

iv
ic

 c
e

n
tr

e
 

w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

h
is

 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

7
3
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

: 
- 

h
o

w
 t

h
is

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

d
; 
h

o
w

 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
p

la
n
s
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e
r 

th
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

; 
w

h
a
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d
 t

o
 c

lo
s
e

 
a
n

y
 g

a
p
 (

e
.g

. 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 
re

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 r

e
a

lis
e
 s

o
m

e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 e

n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
);

 a
n
d
, 

h
o

w
 r

e
v
e
n
u

e
 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 p
a

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 

A
g

re
e

 a
n

 i
n

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
h

ic
h

 b
ri
n

g
s
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

ro
u

ti
n
e

 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

, 
a
s
s
e
t 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 D

E
C

 r
a

ti
n
g

s
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
a

rb
o
n

 a
g
e

n
d

a
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
is

 
d

ir
e

c
te

d
 t
o

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
g

re
a

te
s
t 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

re
p

a
ir

s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
n

e
w

a
ls

 a
im

 f
o

r 
B

e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 e

tc
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 I

T
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
p

o
lic

y
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 i
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 

fo
r 

s
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 a

n
d
 c

lim
a

te
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 

 

 
C

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 £

5
0
0
k
 C

a
rb

o
n

 
re

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 b

u
d
g

e
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 R

E
:F

IT
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

R
E

:F
IT

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

v
e
s
t 
to

 
s
a
v
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

72



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
3

9

o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 

 

7
4
 

R
e
q
u

ir
e
 a

ll 
C

a
b

in
e
t 
re

p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
th

e
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
/c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a

n
g
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 

A
ll 

c
a

b
in

e
t 

re
p

o
rt

s
 a

re
 

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

d
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n
m

e
n

ta
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
s
e

 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 
s
tr

e
n
g

th
e
n

e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a

n
g
e

 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
. 

 

A
u

th
o

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 g

u
id

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 N

o
tt
in

g
h

a
m

 
D

e
c
la

ra
ti
o
n

 w
e

b
s
it
e
. 

N
e

w
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 i
n

 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e

d
 i
n

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

0
. 

S
e

e
 A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 B

 

N
e

w
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d
 

N
o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
 

7
5
 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e

 a
 s

y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
a
rb

o
n
 b

u
d
g

e
ts

 t
o
 

e
n
a
b

le
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

m
e
e
ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 
to

 b
e

 d
e

le
g

a
te

d
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 

T
h

e
 C

a
rb

o
n

 R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 

a
ll 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
e

 
(g

a
s
 a

n
d

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
) 

fr
o
m

 
A

p
ri

l 
2
0

1
0

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
q

u
ir
e

 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

to
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

 
c
a

rb
o
n

 a
llo

w
a

n
c
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 
c
a

rb
o
n

 t
h
e

y
 e

m
it
. 

F
o

r 
th

e
 

fi
rs

t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a

rs
 t
h

e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

c
a

rb
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e
 £

1
2
 /

 t
o
n

n
e

. 
A

ft
e

r 
th

is
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

llo
w

a
n

c
e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b
le

 w
ill

 
b

e
 r

e
d
u

c
e
d

 a
n
n

u
a
lly

 a
n

d
 

w
ill

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

d
 

v
ia

 a
 t

ra
d
in

g
/a

u
c
ti
o
n

 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

T
h

e
 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 p

ri
c
e

 i
s
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 £

4
0

 /
 

to
n

n
e

. 

T
h

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 

o
f 

th
e

 C
R

C
 s

c
h
e

m
e

 a
re

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

th
e
 

C
a

b
in

e
t 
re

p
o

rt
 

P
o

lic
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
h
a

t 
a
ll 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
le

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 
e

n
e

rg
y
 g

ro
w

th
 s

h
o

u
ld

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 a
 c

o
s
t 
o

f 
£
4

0
/t
o

n
n

e
 

to
 c

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 C

a
rb

o
n

 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0

 –
 C

a
rb

o
n

 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
s
c
h
e

m
e
 s

ta
rt

s
. 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

w
it
h

 
C

R
C

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 b

y
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0
. 

R
e

g
is

tr
a

ti
o
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

A
ll 

C
o

u
n
c
il 

e
n
e

rg
y
 u

s
e

rs
 t
o

 
s
ta

rt
 t
o

 p
a

y
 c

a
rb

o
n

 
b

u
d

g
e
ts

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

fo
o

tp
ri
n

t.
 

C
R

C
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 
C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a
n

g
e

 T
e

a
m

’s
 

b
u

d
g

e
t.

 C
R

C
 c

o
s
ts

 c
a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 c

h
a

rg
e
d

 t
o

 s
c
h

o
o
ls

 
b

u
d

g
e
ts

. 
N

e
t 

e
ff
e

c
t 
(a

ft
e

r 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

) 
c
a

n
 

b
e

 r
e
c
h

a
rg

e
d

. 
D

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 

o
n

 m
e

c
h
a

n
is

m
 c

o
n
ti
n
u

in
g
 

w
it
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
s
’ 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
e

 n
e

w
 S

L
A

 o
n

 a
ll 

e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
e

rs
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
c
o

s
ts

 o
f 

e
n
e

rg
y
 

p
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t,
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

D
E

C
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 

C
R

C
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
m

e
n
d
e
d
. 
D

o
u
b

le
 

a
llo

w
a

n
c
e
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e

d
. 

F
ir
s
t 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o
rt

 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1
 

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
re

a
c
h

e
d
 

w
it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

o
n
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

C
R

C
 

fo
o
tp

ri
n
t 
fo

r 
s
c
h
o
o

ls
 

        N
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 a

 n
e

w
 S

L
A

 

 

73



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

0

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t.
  

S
im

ila
rl

y
, 

in
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
e

n
e

rg
y
 s

a
v
in

g
 s

h
o
u

ld
 p

ri
c
e

 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
£

4
0

/t
o
n

n
e

. 
 

 

o
f 

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 t

e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
ie

s
. 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 

In
s
ta

ll 
A

M
R

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 
to

 
a

ll 
e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 m

e
te

rs
 b

y
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
1

. 

A
M

R
 f

it
te

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 a

n
d
 g

a
s
 m

e
te

rs
 

b
y
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
0

. 

S
ig

n
 u

p
 t

o
 C

a
rb

o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
r 

s
im

ila
r 

s
c
h
e

m
e
. 

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
C

a
rb

o
n

 
T

ru
s
t 

S
ta

n
d
a

rd
 n

o
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
 

b
e

in
g
 p

u
rs

u
e
d

 d
u
e

 t
o

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
n

 C
R

C
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o
n

s
. 

 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 e
n

e
rg

y
 

s
a

v
in

g
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 e

tc
. 
to

 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
R

C
 

s
c
h
e

m
e
. 

S
e

p
a

ra
te

 r
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 C

R
C

 t
o

 
C

a
b

in
e

t 
–

 D
e
c
 2

0
1

0
. 

o
n
 a

ll 
e
n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 

c
o
v
e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

e
n
e
rg

y
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

E
C

, 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

 
te

c
h
n
o

lo
g

ie
s
. 

 

7
6
 

F
o
rm

u
la

te
 a

 p
u
b
lic

it
y
 a

n
d
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

fo
r 

a
ll 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 

a
n
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
. 

 
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 P

la
n
 

b
y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
 

N
o
t 
im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

la
c
k
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

 

7
7
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a
n

g
e
 i
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 

in
to

 t
h
e

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

re
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 S
u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

s
’ 

g
ro

u
p

 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
a

n
 

u
m

b
re

lla
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h

a
n
g

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

G
ro

u
p
 h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
a

 j
o

in
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
e

d
 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 b

u
t 
s
o
m

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 –

 
p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a

 j
o
in

t 
A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 W
a
rm

th
/F

u
e

l 
P

o
v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
  

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 
a

 j
o

in
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 o
n

 
d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 c
a

rb
o
n

 

In
v
e
st

ig
a
ti
o
n
s 

in
to

 t
h
e
 

p
o
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
re

d
u
ci

n
g
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
ci

l's
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
lic

 b
o
d
ie

s'
 u

se
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
 c

o
-

lo
ca

ti
o
n
, 
m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
sa

g
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

co
n
ti
n
u
e
 

w
h
ic

h
, 
w

h
e
re

 
su

cc
e
ss

fu
l,
 w

ill
 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

p
u
b
lic

 s
e
ct

o
r 

e
st

a
te

. 

 

74



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

1

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 j
o
in

t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

u
b
lic

 
s
e

c
to

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u
te

 r
e
d
u
ce

d
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 u

se
. 

 

7
8
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e

 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 

 

 
 

 
 

7
9
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 h
o

w
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

e
n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e

d
 i
n
 s

tr
e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n

g
. 
 

 
A

g
re

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
e

n
e

rg
y
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n
d

 
p

u
b

lic
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0

1
1

. 

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

p
o
rt

 o
n
 d

ra
ft

 
p
u
b

lic
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

w
a
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o

 A
p
ri
l 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 

P
u
b

lic
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

o
lic

y
 i
n
 

J
a
n
/F

e
b
 2

0
1

2
 

D
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
o
n
 L

E
D

 
p
ro

je
c
ts

  
in

s
ta

lle
d
. 

P
u
b

lic
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

re
v
is

e
d
 p

o
lic

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 
b
a
c
k
 i
n
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1
2

. 

R
e
v
is

e
d
 p

u
b

lic
 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 n

o
w

 b
e

in
g
 

u
s
e
d
 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 f
u
tu

re
 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

 

8
0
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 o

ff
ic

e
 w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

in
 a

ll 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 t
o
 r

e
c
y
c
le

 o
r 

c
o
m

p
o
s
t 

5
0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 o

w
n
 w

a
s
te

 b
y
 2

0
1
0
. 

T
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

e
ts

 t
h
is

 a
s
 

a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fr
o

m
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0

. 
 

A
ll 

c
o

u
n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 t

o
 

in
tr

o
d
u

c
e
 5

0
%

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 

fr
o

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

0
. 

 
T

o
 b

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

d
e

p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 
fo

llo
w

 t
h
is

 p
o
lic

y
. 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

G
re

e
n
 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 

8
1
 

A
g
re

e
 a

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
le

d
 p

a
p
e
r.

 

A
g

re
e

 t
h
a

t 
a
ll 

p
a

p
e

r 
a

n
d
 

e
n

v
e

lo
p
e

s
 u

s
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
h

o
u
ld

 b
e

 f
ro

m
 

re
c
y
c
le

d
 p

a
p

e
r 

s
u

p
p

lie
rs

, 
w

it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 c
o

n
te

n
t 
o

f 
5

0
%

 p
o

s
t-

c
o

n
s
u
m

e
r 

p
a

p
e

r.
 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 a

ll 
p

ri
n

te
rs

 a
n

d
 

p
h

o
to

c
o

p
ie

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e
 

s
e

t 
to

 a
 d

e
fa

u
lt
 s

e
tt
in

g
 f
o

r 
d

o
u

b
le

-s
id

e
d
 p

ri
n

ti
n
g

. 

T
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

e
ts

 t
h
is

 a
s
 

a
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fr
o

m
 

A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
0

. 

 
 

T
o
 b

e
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

a
ll 

d
e

p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 
fo

llo
w

 t
h
is

 p
o
lic

y
. 

75



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

2

8
2
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 p
ro

m
o
te

 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 
it
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

. 
 

A
 s

m
a
ll 

C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a

n
g

e
 

te
a

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
o

 d
ri

v
e

 t
h
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 

R
e

fl
e

c
t 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 i
n

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
, 
e

n
s
u

ri
n
g

 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
c
lim

a
te

 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 

is
 o

n
e

 o
f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

k
e

y
 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 g

iv
e

n
 t
o

 n
e

w
 

s
ta

ff
. 

T
w

o
 v

a
c
a

n
c
ie

s
 a

ro
s
e
 i
n

 
th

e
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

T
h

e
s
e
 

w
e

re
 h

e
ld

 o
p

e
n

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

 

T
w

o
 u

n
fi
lle

d
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

 s
e
c
ti
o

n
 

h
a
v
e
 p

re
v
e

n
te

d
 t
h

is
. 

  

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

c
o
n
ti
n

u
e
d

 v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g

e
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 

 

8
3
 

E
x
p
lo

re
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 c
a

p
it
a
l 

fu
n
d
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
e
n
e
rg

y
 s

a
v
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 

T
h

e
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
re

p
o

rt
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 t
h
e

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 C

lim
a

te
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 –

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

t 

 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
re

m
a

in
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
. 

R
e

p
o

rt
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e

 R
E

:F
IT

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 

e
x
p

lo
re

d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 i
ts

 
s
u

it
a

b
ili

ty
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
fu

n
d
in

g
. 

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
 

a
p
p
o

in
t 

M
IT

IE
 a

s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
  
R

E
:F

IT
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
in

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 
2
0
1
2

. 

C
a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

c
a
p
it
a

l 
fu

n
d
 o

f 
£
5
0
0
k
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0
1

2
/1

3
 

R
E

:F
IT

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
2

. 
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
3

/1
4
 a

n
d

 2
0

1
4
/1

5
 t

o
 

b
e
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 s

to
c
k
 

8
4
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 G

re
e

n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 t
ra

v
e
lli

n
g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
 f

o
r 

m
o
re

 s
ta

ff
 t
o
 u

ti
lis

e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

, 
w

a
lk

in
g
 

a
n
d
 c

y
c
lin

g
. 

 
 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 p

a
p
e
r 

to
 b

e
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
a
ll 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 f
le

e
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 
c
o
m

m
u
ti
n
g
 

G
re

e
n
 T

ra
v
e
l 
P

la
n
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
3
 

8
5
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 

th
a
t 
s
h

o
w

s
 a

 s
te

a
d

y
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
a
rk

in
g
 

a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 a
t 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

O
ff

ic
e
s
. 
 

 
A

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 
s
e

t 
u
p

 t
o

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 p

o
lic

y
 

a
t 

th
e

 c
iv

ic
 c

e
n

tr
e
 t

o
 

in
tr

o
d
u

c
e
 s

ta
ff

- 
p
a

rk
in

g
 

c
h

a
rg

e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u
c
e

 t
h

e
 

a
v
a

ila
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p

a
rk

in
g

 
s
p

a
c
e

s
 o

v
e

r 
a

 p
e

ri
o
d

 o
f 

ti
m

e
. 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
: 

e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
u
s
e

rs
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
; 

c
a

r 
s
h

a
ri
n

g
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
; 

S
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 P
a
rk

in
g
 

P
o
lic

y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e
 

in
it
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 c
a
r 

u
s
a
g
e
 b

y
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 

T
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 G

re
e
n
 

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
 

76



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

3

p
a

rk
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
; 
e

tc
. 

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

p
a

rk
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
b

o
ro

u
g
h

 b
y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1

. 

8
6
 

A
g
re

e
 a

 c
a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
 

o
u
r 

p
ri

v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 (
E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
, 
K

ie
r 

a
n
d
 L

e
is

u
re

 c
o
n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
) 

P
ri

v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
  

s
u

p
p
lie

d
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p
ti
o

n
 

d
a

ta
 b

y
 e

n
d

 o
f 

J
u

ly
 2

0
0
9

 

A
 c

a
rb

o
n

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

b
y
 e

n
d

 o
f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

0
 

 

 A
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r 
h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o
in

te
d

 t
o
 r

u
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 l
e

is
u

re
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e
s
 

fo
r 

2
 y

e
a

rs
 f

ro
m

 1
 M

a
y
 

2
0

1
1

. 
G

re
e

n
w

ic
h

 L
e

is
u

re
 

L
td

.,
 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 

h
a

s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 
p

ro
v
id

in
g

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 e
n
e

rg
y
 

c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 t
h
is

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.
 G

L
L

 h
a
s
 a

 t
ra

c
k
 

re
c
o

rd
 i
n

 r
e

d
u
c
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 
e

n
e

rg
y
 s

a
v
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

M
a

jo
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
 f
o

r 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 o
c
c
u

r 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
re

 
re

le
t.

  

 

R
e
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

H
a
rr

o
w

 L
e

is
u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 

–
 a

t 
s
o
m

e
 p

o
in

t 
in

 t
h
e
 

fu
tu

re
 –

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

c
a
rb

o
n
 f

o
o
tp

ri
n
t.
 

N
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

is
 

d
u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

O
p
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
t 
th

e
 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e
, 
H

a
tc

h
 

E
n
d
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 p

o
o

l 
a
n

d
 

B
a
n

n
is

te
r 

to
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e

d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 G

L
L
 

8
7
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

 t
h
e

 G
O

L
D

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 G

re
e

n
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
C

o
d
e
 

b
y
 2

0
1

2
. 

B
ro

n
z
e

 

A
c
h
ie

v
e

d
 

S
ilv

e
r 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 

G
o
ld

 

S
ilv

e
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

th
is

 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
is

c
o
n
ti
n
u

e
d
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 a

 
s
u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 t

o
 

u
s
e
 o

n
 a

ll 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 

8
8
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

in
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

to
c
k
 

T
h

is
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
o

lic
y
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
C

O
2

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 4

%
 p

a
. 

 

S
e

e
 7

1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

 

A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 

fo
r 

s
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 a

n
d
 c

lim
a

te
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 

 
R

E
:F

IT
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 

c
a
p
it
a

l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 a

re
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 o
p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 i
n
s
u

la
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

77



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

4

8
9
 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

n
e

w
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
) 

c
o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 B

R
E

E
A

M
 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
ra

ti
n

g
 

T
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

e
ts

 t
h
is

 a
s
 a

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fr

o
m

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
0

 

 

 
C

u
rt

a
ilm

e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

F
u
tu

re
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

T
h
e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 S
c
h
o

o
ls

 
B

u
ild

in
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
n
o

u
n
c
e

d
. 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 t
a
k
e
n
 

p
la

c
e
 o

n
 e

n
s
u
ri

n
g
 n

e
w

 
d
e
s
ig

n
s
 a

re
 e

n
e
rg

y
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t.
 

U
n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
n
s
is

t 
th

a
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
s
 m

e
e
t 
B

R
E

E
A

M
 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
ra

ti
n

g
 

9
0
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

u
s
in

g
 r

e
n

e
w

a
b
le

 
e
n
e
rg

y
 i
n
 a

ll 
o
u
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
, 
s
c
h
o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 p
la

y
in

g
 

fi
e
ld

s
 e

tc
.)

 i
.e

. 
s
o

la
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
, 

g
ro

u
n

d
 s

o
u
rc

e
 

h
e
a
t 

p
u
m

p
s
, 
w

in
d
 t

u
rb

in
e
s
 e

tc
. 

T
h

is
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
o

lic
y
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
C

O
2

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 4

%
 p

a
. 

 

S
e

e
 7

1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

 

A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 

fo
r 

s
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 a

n
d
 c

lim
a

te
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
s
o

la
r 

P
V

 
is

 b
e

in
g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 t

o
 t
a

k
e
 

a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
F

e
e

d
-i
n

 
T

a
ri

ff
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 (

F
IT

),
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
a

s
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
c
e
d

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
0

 b
y
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
 

U
n
a
b

le
 t

o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
F

IT
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 f

o
r 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e

 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
re

d
u
c
e
d

 
th

e
 l
e

v
e
l 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

  

A
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

R
e
n
e

w
a
b

le
 H

e
a
t 

In
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1

 
(t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

G
S

H
P

, 
A

S
H

P
 a

n
d
 s

o
la

r 
h
o
t 

w
a
te

r)
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 

2
0
1
3

. 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

o
p
ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 

th
e
 R

H
I 
a
n

d
 G

re
e

n
 

D
e
a
l 
c
o
m

e
s
 o

n
 s

tr
e
a
m

 

9
1
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 
in

s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 (

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r)
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
C

o
m

b
in

e
d
 H

e
a
t 

a
n
d
 P

o
w

e
r 

P
la

n
ts

 
fo

r 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
, 
s
c
h
o
o

ls
, 
a
d
ja

c
e
n

t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

s
e
. 

T
h

is
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
o

lic
y
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 
C

O
2

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 4

%
 p

a
. 

 

S
e

e
 7

1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

 

A
s
s
e

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 

fo
r 

s
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

b
u

ild
in

g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 

is
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

 
b

a
c
k
lo

g
 a

n
d
 c

lim
a

te
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 

 
R

E
:F

IT
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 

in
s
ta

ll 
C

H
P

 i
n
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
is

 i
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

9
2
 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t
h
e

 c
a
rb

o
n

 
fo

o
tp

ri
n
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

d
ir

e
c
t 
tr

a
n
s
p

o
rt

 f
le

e
t 
a
s
 t

h
e
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 f

le
e
ts

 a
re

 r
e
n
e

w
e
d
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 f
o

u
r 

m
a

jo
r 

fl
e

e
ts

 o
f 

v
e
h

ic
le

s
: 

w
a

s
te

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t;
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e

a
lm

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
; 

A
d
u

lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

; 
a

n
d

, 
C

h
ild

re
n

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

. 

T
h

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 
u

n
d

e
r 

a
 c

e
n

tr
a
l 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

b
y
 

F
ra

ik
in

 p
lc

. 
 

S
tr

e
e

t 
c

le
a

n
s

in
g

 f
le

e
t.

 

T
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
t 
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 f

le
e

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
a

lly
 

re
p

la
c
e

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 –

 
re

s
u

lt
in

g
 i
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 m
o

re
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

(E
u

ro
 4

 a
n
d

 5
) 

e
n

g
in

e
s
. 
T

h
re

e
 e

le
c
tr

ic
 

s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 h

a
n

d
c
a

rt
s
 

w
e

re
 s

o
u

rc
e
d

 f
o

r 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 p

a
p
e
r 

to
 b

e
 

p
re

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
a
ll 

th
e
 c

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 f
le

e
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s
, 
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

tr
a
v
e

l 
a

n
d
 s

ta
ff

 
c
o
m

m
u
ti
n
g
. 

A
 f

le
e
t 

o
f 

lo
w

-c
a
rb

o
n
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
o

l 
c
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 G

re
e
n
 

T
ra

v
e
l 
P

la
n
  

S
e
e
 8

4
 a

n
d
 8

5
 a

b
o

v
e
 

  

78



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

5

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 O

 l
ic

e
n
c
e

 i
s
 

h
e

ld
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
e
a

d
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 
R

e
a

lm
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

A
b

o
u

t 
1
5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

a
re

 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 s

o
u

rc
e
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

d
if
fe

re
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 (

to
 

th
e

 F
ra

ik
in

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t)

. 

T
h

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
, 
u

s
a

g
e

, 
fu

e
l 
ty

p
e
 e

tc
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
ly

 b
y
 

e
a

c
h
 u

s
e

r 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t.
 

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

o
lic

y
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

T
h

e
 w

a
s
te

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
fl
e

e
t 

w
a

s
 r

e
n

e
w

e
d

 i
n

 
2

0
0

8
/9

. 
E

u
ro

 V
 d

ie
s
e
l 

e
n

g
in

e
s
 w

e
re

 s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 

T
h

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 s

e
ts

 t
h
e

 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

O
2

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 f

le
e

t 
a

s
 a

 
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 t
a

rg
e

t 
w

it
h

 
im

m
e

d
ia

te
 e

ff
e
c
t.

 F
le

e
t 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
y
e

t 
b

e
e

n
 o

rd
e

re
d

 s
h

o
u
ld

 
b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

 t
o

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 
th

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

w
ill

 
re

d
u

c
e

 C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

S
im

ila
rl

y
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
N

O
x
 

s
h

o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 

w
h

e
n

 p
u

rc
h
a

s
in

g
 n

e
w

 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
re

p
o

rt
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 
s
c
o
p

e
 f

o
r 

re
d
u

c
ti
o

n
, 

fi
n

a
n
c
ia

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

N
o

te
: 

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 

re
a

lm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

le
e

t 
w

ill
 f
a

ll 

th
e

 t
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e

. 

R
e

fu
s

e
 f

le
e

t.
  

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 f

le
e

t 
la

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

h
a

s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 r

e
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

in
 f

u
e

l 
u
s
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

 o
f 
 n

e
w

 R
o

u
te

-
s
m

a
rt

 t
e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 
W

a
s
te

 C
o

lle
c
to

r 
in

-c
a
b

 
te

c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 
a

llo
w

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

fu
e
l 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 

o
n

c
e
 f

u
lly

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

a
l.
 

S
p

e
c

ia
l 

N
e

e
d

s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
p

e
c
ia

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
 

n
e

w
 f

le
e

t 
o

f 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 l
e

a
s
e

d
/r

e
n

te
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

R
o

u
ti
n
g

 
s
o

ft
w

a
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 
p

ro
c
u

re
d

 t
o

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e

 
ro

u
te

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 
m

o
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
. 

 T
h

e
 

n
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
v
e
h

ic
le

s
 h

a
s
 

re
d

u
c
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
 h

ig
h

 o
f 

9
6

 
to

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

8
7

 o
r 

w
h

ic
h
 7

6
 a

re
 o

n
 l
o
n

g
 

te
rm

 l
e

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 1

1
 o

n
 s

p
o

t 
h

ir
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 
 O

f 
th

e
s
e

, 
3

6
 a

re
 E

u
ro

 5
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
a
n

d
 5

1
 E

u
ro

 4
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

t.
 

D
ri

v
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

, 
a

ll 
d

ri
v
e

rs
 

a
re

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 D

ri
v
e

r 
C

P
C

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 V

e
h
ic

le
 

S
a

fe
ty

, 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
S

y
s
te

m
s
 

a
n

d
 F

u
e

l 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 f
u

e
l 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

d
ri

v
in

g
 s

k
ill

s
. 

 

S
m

a
rt

 c
a
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 d

e
p
o

t 
to

 r
e
p

la
c
e
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

v
a
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

ri
v
a
te

 c
a
r 

u
s
e
. 

                D
ri
v
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 

       

                   D
ri
v
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 

79



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

 
4

6

o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

o
lic

y
 

c
h

a
n
g

e
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e

in
g

 r
e

p
la

c
e

d
. 

E
u

ro
 I

V
 d

ie
s
e

l 
e
n

g
in

e
s
 

h
a

v
e

 l
a

rg
e

ly
 b

e
e

n
 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 (

E
u

ro
 V

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

).
 A

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

e
le

c
tr

ic
-p

o
w

e
re

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
ro

c
u

re
d

 f
o

r 
u

s
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
o

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e

. 

 

   

 

80



Appendix B 
Warm Homes, Healthy People – summary report 
 

Harrow Housewarmers was a project funded by the Department of Health under its Warm 
Homes, Healthy People programme.   
 
Warm Homes, Healthy People was a one-off £20m programme covering the period mid-
December to the end of January. The programme arose because of the publication, by the 
NHS, of the Cold Weather Plan for 2011/12, which identifies that an average of 27,000 excess 
deaths occur each year during the December to March period. This combined with ill-health and 
falls during cold weather cost the NHS an estimated £850m each year. Early intervention should 
be possible at relatively low cost and enable these larger costs to be avoided. 
 
 
The Harrow Housewarmers project received £68,500 from the DoH. This was a partnership 
project with Harrow CAB and Age UK (Harrow) and the NHS (Northwest London Hospitals Trust 
and Harrow PCT). Funding was divided as follows: - 
 

  Original budget 
£ 

Out-turn 
£ 

Staffing 8,000 550 

Checklists and toolkits 5,000 3,995 

Communications 10,000 945 

Harrow council 

Consultancy 1,000 - 

Staffing 6,000 6,000 

Staff and volunteer recruitment 12,000 18,000 

Age UK Harrow  

Transport and support 4,900 4,900 

Staffing 16,000 26,800 Harrow CAB 

Briefing and training 2,000 2,000 

Firm Foundation Homeless shelter 3,600 3,600 

Total  68,500 66,790 

  
In addition to the above, Harrow council also coordinated the programme with its affordable 
warmth programme to provide free insulation to cavity walls and lofts across the borough. This 
was mostly funded by CERT money but the council provided grants for loft insulation top-ups 
and Able-to-pay customers. 
 
 
Outputs 

• A total of £66,790 has been spent to date. Council under-spends (in the Jan to March 
period) were transferred to Harrow CAB to enable them to extend their debt advice 
service for energy for a further three months (i.e. April to June). A balance of £1710 
would be available to support a similar programme in the current year 

 
 
Harrow Council 

• A launch event was held in the Members Lounge on 16 Jan 2012, addressed by Bill 
Stephenson - the Leader of the Council; Brendon Hills - the Corporate Director of 
Community and Environment, and Carol Furlong from the PCT 

• A press release was issued promoting the project which was picked up by the Harrow 
Observer 

• A half page advert was placed in Harrow People 

• 5000 liquid crystal thermometers were printed, 2000 of these were distributed to partners 

81



Appendix B 
• 8000 Harrow Housewarmer leaflets were printed and 5000 were distributed to partners 

and social work teams. 

• Team Briefings were made to social work teams at Kenton NRC, Civic 3; Byron NRc and 
with Meals on wheels teams at the CDU.  

• 88 homes were insulated and or draught-proofed under the Affordable Warmth 
programme –  resulting in an additional £15,500 being invested into home energy 
efficiency 

 
 
Harrow CAB 

• Harrow CAB employed two dedicated FTE posts to handle fuel poverty issues 

• 271 clients attended 400+ face-to-face interviews at CAB to resolve fuel debt problems 
etc. 

• 32 residents received home visits. Of these, 16 went on to claim Attendance allowance 
and 15 to claim disability living allowance – helping them to pay their fuel bills 

• £32,500 of additional annual income from grants and benefits was secured 

• Fuel debts of £344k were managed 

• £10k of fuel and/or water debts were written off 

• 31 applications were successfully made to charities (to clear fuel/water debts) 

• 7 other charitable applications were made for equipment (bedding, pans etc.) 
 
 
Age UK (Harrow) 

• Buddy Volunteers project 
- 6 new Buddy Volunteers were recruited 
- 10 new clients were assisted through the project. Assistance provided by the volunteers 

was; assistance with shopping, collection of pension on a regular basis, setting up IT 
for a visually impaired client and assistance with hospital appointments 

- Funding available for staffing allowed time for new systems put in place for risk 
assessments, task procedures and project plan for future 

• 4 loft clearances which then enabled the service users to have their loft insulated 

• 1 small handy person  

• Additional support: 
- 1 application for Attendance Allowance  
- Advocacy services 
- 1 taxi and blue badge application  

 
 
Firm Foundation 
The project was able to make funding available to a local homeless shelter to fund;  

• breakfast, lunch and dinner for an additional 70 guest per week in January, February and 
March 

• an additional 840 meals 
 
 
Equality of Access 
The project was well used by all groups.  BME breakdown for CAB shows project clients were  

37% Asian (unspecified)  
20% White (unspecified)   
11% Black (unspecified) 
4% Iranian  
3% Somali 

82



Appendix B 
3% Polish  
3% Mixed heritage  
2% Tamil  
17% other or not known (including Romanian, Lithuanian, Eritrean, Iraqi,  Afghani, Dutch, 
Moroccan, Sudanese, Portuguese)        

  
The majority of clients were aged 50-64 with health problems, with the next largest group being 
younger people with children.  Male and female clients were represented evenly.  
   
 
  
Case studies  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

One of the HHW referral forms that CAB received was quite general – “finds 
home hard to heat”, so we called the client in for an interview to discuss with 
her.  It turns out that the client had been given a new flat for herself and 
disabled daughter but there were no carpets.   Client could not afford  carpets 
and therefore there were terrible draughts and it was freezing.  One of our 
advisers applied for a charitable payment and over £700 was awarded.  It was 
agreed with the client that payment was made direct to a local carpet supplier 
who arranged everything for her.  Client is delighted and the home is much 
warmer. 

Client was in debt for a water bill at a previous address owing £1522 in total.  
A grant was obtained from Severn Trent Trust Fund for £1000 towards his 
debt. A payment plan was set up for him to pay the remainder in small 
instalments, leaving more money available to pay current fuel bills. 

In another case, we were able to assist a single father and his 9-year-old son 
who were living without essentials such as pots and pans, bedclothes and 
proper heating.  We were able to help the family by supplying duvets and 
some basic cooking equipment.   We also made applications for further 
charitable grants for them which meant they could purchase of some further 
essential items.  The father was absolutely overwhelmed by the service and 
so grateful. 
 

83



84

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix C 
 

Climate Local Harrow Council: 
 

Our commitment to taking action in a changing climate 
 
We recognise that our council has an important role to help our residents and businesses 
to capture the opportunities and benefits of action on climate change. These include 
saving money on energy bills, generating income from renewable energy, attracting new 
jobs and investment in ‘green’ industries, supporting new sources of energy, managing 
local flood-risk and water scarcity and protecting our natural environment. 
 
We will progressively address the risks and pursue the opportunities presented by 
a changing climate, inline with local priorities, through our role as: 
 

• Community leader – helping local people and businesses to be smarter about their 
energy use and to prepare for climate impacts; 

 

• Service provider – delivering services that are resource efficient, less carbon 
intensive, resilient and that protect those who are most vulnerable to climate 
impacts; 

 

• Estate manager – ensuring that our own buildings and operations are resource 
efficient, use clean energy, and are well prepared for the impacts of a changing 
climate. 

 
In signing this commitment, we will: 
 

• Set locally-owned and determined commitments and actions to reduce carbon 
emissions and to manage climate impacts. These will be specific, measurable and 
challenging; 

 

• Publish our commitments, actions and progress, enabling local communities 
to hold us to account; 

 

• Share the learning from our experiences and achievements with other 
councils; and 

 

• Regularly refresh our commitments and actions to ensure they are current and 
continue to reflect local priorities. 

 
 

[Date] 
 
 

Harrow Council 
 

[Signature of Leader or Mayor of Council] 
 
 
 

85



86

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

 

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
 D

ra
ft

 C
li

m
a
te

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
  

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
3
 o

n
w

a
rd

s
 

  C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
 D

R
A

F
T

  
- 

 S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0

1
2
 

           

87



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
2

 

C
o

n
te

n
ts

 
 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

  
 

In
tr

o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

 

G
lo

s
s
a

ry
 o

f 
te

rm
s
 

 

 
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 –

 D
R

A
F

T
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 

 -
  

P
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

 

 -
  
W

a
te

r 
a
n

d
 F

lo
o

d
in

g
 

 

 -
  
W

a
s
te

 
 

 -
  

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 N
a

tu
ra

l 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
 

 -
  

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
 

 -
  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 F

o
o
tp

ri
n

t 
 

a
n

d
 

 
 -

  
W

a
rm

e
r 

H
o
m

e
s
 

 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
 Q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 

 

88



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
3

 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
 T

h
e

 E
a

rt
h

’s
 c

lim
a
te

 i
s
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 a
c
t 
n

o
w

 t
o

 l
im

it
 t

h
e

 s
c
a

le
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 (
m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
) 

a
n
d

 t
o

 a
d

a
p

t 
to

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 

c
lim

a
te

 (
a

d
a
p

ta
ti
o

n
).

 P
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 o

u
r 

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
s
e
 g

a
s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 

it
 i
s
 p

a
ra

lle
l 
a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

. 
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 s

ig
n

e
d

 t
h

e
 N

o
tt
in

g
h

a
m

 D
e

c
la

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n

 J
u

ly
 2

0
0

7
. 
W

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 t
h

e
n
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 m

u
c
h

 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

o
u

ld
 

n
e

e
d

 t
o
 u

n
d

e
rg

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 g

lo
b

a
l,
 E

u
ro

p
e
a

n
 a

n
d

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 d

ro
v
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
T

h
is

 n
e

w
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 t

a
k
e

s
 o

n
 b

o
a

rd
 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 e
it
h
e

r 
ta

k
e

n
 p

la
c
e

 o
r 

a
re

 a
b
o

u
t 
to

 b
e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 

 W
e
 e

n
v
is

a
g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
 t

h
a

t 
fo

s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 o

il 
a

n
d

 g
a

s
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 p
ri
c
e

 a
s
 w

o
rl
d

 d
e

m
a

n
d

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
a

c
it
y
 e

it
h

e
r 

la
g
s
 b

e
h

in
d

 o
r 

fa
lls

. 
E

v
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

is
 t

re
n

d
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
th

e
 i
n
d

ic
a

ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 t

h
a

t 
e

n
e

rg
y
 p

ri
c
e

s
 w

ill
 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 r
is

e
 a

s
 (

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
) 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 p
ro

lo
n

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 o
u

r 
e
n

e
rg

y
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 

A
s
 b

e
fo

re
, 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 u

s
e

 f
o

s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
 a

re
 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
le

 a
n
d

 w
e

 n
e
e

d
 t

o
 p

re
p

a
re

 f
o

r 
a
 f

u
tu

re
 w

h
e

re
 f

o
s
s
il 

fu
e

l 
is

 
e

x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
. 

 
 T

h
is

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
in

g
 o

n
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e
, 

a
n
d

 c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n

ts
 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
x
t 

s
te

p
 i
n

 a
 l
o

n
g
 j
o

u
rn

e
y
 w

h
ic

h
 a

ll 
o
f 

u
s
 m

u
s
t 
m

a
k
e

. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

is
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o

 p
la

y
in

g
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
 a

s
 

a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 l
e

a
d
e

r.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 d

e
p

e
n

d
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 t

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
h

re
a

t 
o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 
a

n
d

, 
to

g
e

th
e

r,
 m

a
k
in

g
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 s
ig

n
 u

p
 t

o
 C

lim
a

te
 L

o
c
a

l,
 t

h
e

 L
G

A
’s

 n
e

w
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

, 
to

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 o
u

r 
c
o

n
ti
n
u

in
g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 

 M
ic

h
a

e
l 
L
o
c
k
w

o
o
d
 

  C
llr

 P
h
ill

ip
 O

’D
e
ll 

89



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
4

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 
 T

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
H

a
rr

o
w

 a
s
 a

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g
e

. 
A

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 
re

q
u

ir
e

s
 a

ll 
o
f 

u
s
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 m
a

k
e
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 w

e
 l
iv

e
 a

s
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 i
s
 s

e
c
u

re
d
. 

 A
s
 a

 n
a

ti
o
n

 w
e

 u
s
e

 3
1
%

 o
f 

fo
s
s
il 

fu
e

l 
fo

r 
p
o

w
e

r 
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

, 
2
2

%
 f
o

r 
ro

a
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
2
0

%
 f

o
r 

in
d

u
s
tr

y
, 

1
5

%
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

ti
n

g
 

a
n

d
 1

2
%

 f
o

r 
o
th

e
r 

u
s
e
s
. 

7
5

%
 o

f 
o
u

r 
e

le
c
tr

ic
it
y
 i
s
 g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 f
ro

m
 f
o

s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
 (

c
o
a

l,
 o

il,
 g

a
s
);

 1
8

%
 f

ro
m

 n
u

c
le

a
r 

e
n

e
rg

y
 a

n
d

 o
n

ly
 3

%
 f

ro
m

 r
e
n

e
w

a
b

le
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 (

h
y
d

ro
 

e
le

c
tr

ic
, 

w
in

d
 a

n
d
 s

o
la

r)
].

  

U
s
in

g
 f

o
s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
 i
s
 u

lt
im

a
te

ly
 u

n
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 a
s
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 f

in
it
e

 r
e

s
o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 e
v
e

n
tu

a
lly

 r
u

n
 o

u
t.

 B
u

rn
in

g
 f

o
s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
 a

ls
o
 r

e
le

a
s
e

s
 

c
a

rb
o

n
 d

io
x
id

e
 i
n

to
 t

h
e
 a

tm
o

s
p
h

e
re

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

ri
v
e

r 
b

e
h

in
d

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
a

lly
, 

fo
s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 o

il 
a
n

d
 g

a
s
 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 p

ri
c
e

 a
s
 w

o
rl
d

 d
e
m

a
n

d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 e

it
h

e
r 

la
g
s
 b

e
h

in
d

 o
r 

fa
lls

. 
C

h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 w

e
 u

s
e

 f
o

s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
 a

re
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 i
n

e
v
it
a

b
le

 a
n
d

 w
e

 a
ls

o
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 f

o
r 

a
 f

u
tu

re
 w

h
e

re
 f
o

s
s
il 

fu
e

l 
is

 e
x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 u
s
e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
. 

  W
h

a
t 

is
 c

li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e
?

 
C

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 i
s
 h

a
p
p

e
n

in
g
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 g
re

e
n

h
o

u
s
e
 g

a
s
e

s
 –

 p
re

d
o
m

in
a

n
tl
y
 c

a
rb

o
n

 d
io

x
id

e
 –

c
a

u
s
e

d
 b

y
 h

u
m

a
n

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 b
u

rn
in

g
 o

f 
fo

s
s
il 

fu
e

ls
 a

n
d
 d

e
fo

re
s
ta

ti
o

n
. 
T

h
e
 g

re
e

n
h
o

u
s
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 

is
 a

 n
a

tu
ra

l 
p

h
e

n
o
m

e
n

o
n
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 n
a
tu

ra
lly

 o
c
c
u

rr
in

g
 g

a
s
e

s
 

tr
a

p
 t

h
e

 s
u
n

’s
 e

n
e

rg
y
 a

n
d

 w
a

rm
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
e

t.
 T

h
e

 m
a

in
 g

re
e

n
h

o
u

s
e

 g
a
s
 i
s
 c

a
rb

o
n
 d

io
x
id

e
, 

C
O

2
. 

  
 

C
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
s
 a

 g
lo

b
a

l 
is

s
u
e

. 
In

te
rn

a
ti
o
n
a

lly
, 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n

d
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 –

 s
ta

rt
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 R

io
 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

1
9
9

2
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 K
y
o

to
 P

ro
to

c
o

l,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 i
n

 1
9
9

7
 a

n
d

 c
a

m
e

 i
n

to
 f
o

rc
e
 i
n

 2
0
0

5
. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

te
rn

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e

 f
u
tu

re
. 

It
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
c
c
e
p

te
d
 t

h
a

t 
if
 w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
, 

th
e

 E
a

rt
h

’s
 c

lim
a

te
 w

ill
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
. 

 
M

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

 
M

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h
a

n
g
e

 i
s
 t

h
o

s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 f
o

s
s
il 

fu
e
l 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

im
p

a
c
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 o
n

 t
h
e

 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

 A
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
a

ls
 w

it
h

 m
it
ig

a
ti
o

n
. 
I.

e
. 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n

s
u

la
ti
o
n

, 
e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 e

tc
. 

 
 

90



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
5

 

A
d

a
p

ta
ti

o
n

 
C

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 i
s
 a

lr
e
a

d
y
 h

a
p

p
e

n
in

g
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 s
e

v
e

ri
ty

 d
e

s
p

it
e

 o
u

r 
e
ff

o
rt

s
 a

t 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
. 

 

• 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 d

e
m

a
n

d
 f
o

r 
s
u

m
m

e
r 

c
o
o

lin
g
  

• 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 u

n
c
o

m
fo

rt
a

b
ly

 h
o

t 
 

• 
a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
fl
o
o

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
ro

s
io

n
  

• 
g
re

a
te

r 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 o

n
 d

ra
in

a
g
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
  

• 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d

 o
f 
w

in
te

r 
s
to

rm
 d

a
m

a
g
e

  

• 
s
u

m
m

e
r 

w
a

te
r 

s
h

o
rt

a
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
 s

tr
e

a
m

 f
lo

w
s
  

• 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
s
u
b

s
id

e
n

c
e

 (
in

 a
re

a
s
 w

h
e

re
 s

u
b

s
id

e
n

c
e

 i
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
) 

 

• 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
h

a
b

it
a

t 
fo

r 
w

ild
lif

e
 /

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 w
ild

lif
e

 a
n

d
 b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
  

• 
a

 r
a

n
g
e

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

  W
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
lo

n
e
 

A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 c

lim
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 
W

e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
is

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g
 o

f 
fu

tu
re

 g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 i
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l,
 s

o
c
ia

l 
a
n

d
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 o
f 

c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n
g
e

 a
re

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 

m
e

a
s
u

ra
b

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e
 a

re
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 t
o

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 a

n
d

 t
o

 g
ro

w
 i
n

 s
e

v
e

ri
ty

. 
 

T
h

e
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
 t
a

rg
e

t 
to

 r
e

d
u
c
e

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
C

O
2

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 8

0
%

 b
y
 2

0
5
0

 –
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o
 a

 1
9

9
0

 b
a

s
e

lin
e

. 
T

h
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e

s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 i
n

te
rn

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
s
h

ip
p

in
g
 a

n
d

 a
v
ia

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 
th

e
s
e

 a
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 f
u

tu
re

. 
 

 
T

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
fo

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a

n
g
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
. 
T

h
e

 C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a

n
g
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 s
e

ts
 a

 
ta

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 l
im

it
 i
ts

 t
o

ta
l 
c
a

rb
o
n

 d
io

x
id

e
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 t
o

 6
0

0
 m

ill
io

n
 t

o
n

n
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 n

o
w

 a
n

d
 2

0
2

5
 –

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
4

%
 p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 l
a

rg
e

 s
c
a
le

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 m

e
e

t 
o

u
r 

e
n

e
rg

y
 d

e
m

a
n
d

s
, 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 u

s
in

g
 C

o
m

b
in

e
d

 H
e

a
t 
a

n
d
 P

o
w

e
r 

(C
H

P
),

 i
t 

a
ls

o
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 t
h

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

C
O

2
 t

h
a

n
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
a

v
e

d
 b

y
 m

a
k
in

g
 s

m
a

ll 
c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 c

a
v
it
y
 w

a
ll 

a
n

d
 l
o
ft

 i
n

s
u

la
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

a
u

d
it
s
 (

b
y
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
).

 L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a
n

g
e

 A
d

a
p

ta
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

s
 a

 s
e

ri
e

s
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
: • 

P
re

v
e

n
t 

–
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t

a
k
e
n

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
b
a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e

 o
c
c
u

rr
in

g
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 r

a
is

in
g
 f

lo
o
d

 d
e
fe

n
c
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 

• 
P

re
p

a
re

 –
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
a

k
e
n
 t

o
 b

e
tt
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

lim
a

te
 r

is
k
 o

r 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
, 

to
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 v
u

ln
e
ra

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 r

a
is

in
g
 p

u
b

lic
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 

• 
R

e
s
p

o
n
d

 –
 a

c
ti
o
n

 t
a

k
e
n

 t
o

 l
im

it
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
 o

f 
a
n

 e
v
e

n
t,
 f

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
n

g
 n

o
n

-e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
w

a
te

r 
u

s
e

 d
u
ri
n

g
 a

 
d

ro
u

g
h

t 

91



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
6

 

• 
R

e
c
o

v
e

r 
–

 a
c
ti
o
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 a

ft
e

r 
a

n
 e

v
e

n
t 

to
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
 r

a
p

id
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

tu
rn

 t
o

 a
 n

o
rm

a
l,
 m

o
re

 s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 s

ta
te

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 e

n
h
a

n
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
lo

o
d

 r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

a
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 w

h
e

n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 f

lo
o

d
 d

a
m

a
g
e

 r
e

p
a

ir
s
 

  

T
h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 S

tr
a

te
g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
d

o
p
te

d
 t

h
e

 S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 o

n
 2

n
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
0

9
. 

 T
h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 r
e
d
u

c
e

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 ,

 t
o

 f
in

d
 c

o
s
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t

o
 t
a

c
k
le

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

 
e

x
tr

e
m

e
 w

e
a

th
e

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 p

la
n

n
in

g
. 

  

 T
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 a

im
s
 t
o

: 

- 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 a
ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 r
e

d
u

c
e
d

 u
s
e
 o

f 
c
a

rs
 a

s
 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 m
o

d
e

 o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 
to

 H
a

rr
o

w
 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
; 

- 
R

e
d

u
c
e
 C

O
2

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
; 

- 
A

g
re

e
 a

 C
lim

a
te

 C
h
a

n
g
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

; 

- 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 s
tr

e
e

t 
a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
; 

- 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
; 

- 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 t

re
e

 r
e

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o

 p
re

s
e

rv
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
's

 t
re

e
s
; 

a
n

d
 

- 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e

 d
e

c
e
n

t 
h

o
m

e
s
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 t
o

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

o
w

n
e

d
 h

o
m

e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 o
u

t 
o
f 

d
a

te
 a

n
d

 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
n

e
w

e
d

 a
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
s
u
c
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

re
m

o
v
e

d
 b

y
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 j
o

in
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 B

u
d

g
e

ts
, 

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
k
in

g
 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ie

s
 o

f 
s
c
a

le
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
s
 a

 b
e

n
e
fi
c
ia

l 
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a

c
t.
  

 

  
T

h
e

 c
o
u

n
c
il 

s
ig

n
e

d
 t
h

e
 N

o
tt

in
g
h

a
m

 D
e

c
la

ra
ti
o
n

 i
n

 2
5

 J
u

ly
 2

0
0
7

. 
B

y
 s

ig
n

in
g
 i
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
c
k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
 “

th
a

t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a

t 
c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
s
 o

c
c
u
rr

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

it
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 f
a

r 
re

a
c
h

in
g
 e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e

 U
K

’s
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e

s
, 
e

c
o

n
o
m

y
, 

s
o

c
ie

ty
 a

n
d
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t.

” 

W
e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 t
h
e

 C
lim

a
te

 L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 L

G
A

 (
L
o

c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
) 

in
 N

o
v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 (

to
 b

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

) 
u

s
in

g
 i
t 

a
s
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 r

e
it
e

ra
te

/r
e

in
v
ig

o
ra

te
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a

n
g
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

92



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
7

 

W
h

o
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

d
e
li

v
e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
?

 
 

T
h

is
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
o

lv
e

s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
 :

  

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

T
h
e

 m
e

rg
e

r 
o
f 

P
la

c
e

 S
h

a
p

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
w

ill
 b

ri
n

g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 b

ro
a

d
 h

e
a

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a
n

g
e

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

p
p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 l
e

a
d
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
D

ir
e

c
to

r.
 

• 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

• 
W

a
te

r 
a

n
d

 f
lo

o
d

in
g
 

• 
B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 

• 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 

• 
W

a
s
te

 

• 
S

tr
e

e
t 

lig
h

ti
n

g
 

• 
C

a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
) 

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
  

S
c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 

It
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 t

h
a

t 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 n

e
e
d

 t
o
 p

la
y
 a

 
m

a
jo

r 
ro

le
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 s

e
t 
b

y
 t

h
e

 c
lim

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

th
e

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 r

e
s
id

e
s
 w

it
h

 C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 F
a
m

ili
e

s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 d

e
liv

e
r 

c
a

rb
o

n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
. 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

ill
 s

ti
ll 

h
a

v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 C

a
rb

o
n

 R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 R

E
:F

IT
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

-b
e
in

g
  

It
 s

e
e
m

s
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 

in
 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 w

id
e

r 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o
n

 t
o

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
 w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g
, 

s
o
c
ia

l 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 f
u

e
l 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
. 

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
le

a
r 

lin
k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 o

f 
h
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
’s

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

; 
h
e

lp
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
; 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t;
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 
a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

O
u

r 
D

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 W

a
rm

e
r 

H
o

m
e

s
 (

H
E

C
A

) 
re

p
o

rt
 w

ill
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t

h
e

s
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
. 

  T
h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
lim

a
te

 L
o

c
a

l 
te

m
p

la
te

s
. 

A
ll 

fu
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 t
e
m

p
la

te
. 

 

93



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
8

 

H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 

m
e

a
s

u
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s

?
 

 

C
a

rb
o

n
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

(C
R

C
) 

 A
ll

 e
m

is
s

io
n

s
 i
n

 T
o

n
n

e
s

 

 
C

O
R

E
 (

A
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 R

E
S

ID
U

A
L

 (
B

) 
T

O
T

A
L

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

 
 

 
(A

)+
(B

) 
(A

)+
(B

) 

 
G

a
s
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

P
u

b
li

c
 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 

O
il
 

G
a
s
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

O
il
 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 

P
u

b
li

c
 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 

E
X

c
lu

d
in

g
 

P
u

b
li

c
 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 
9

,0
5
0

 
9

,6
0
2

 
4

,0
7
8

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
7

4
 

2
2

,8
0

4
 

1
8
,7

2
6
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 
6

,9
9
5

 
9

,3
9
9

 
4

,1
0
7

 
n

il 
0

 
0

 
0

 
2
0
,5

0
1
 

1
6

,3
9

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

1
0
.1

%
 

1
2

.5
%

 

 

S
h
a
d
e
d
 f

ig
u
re

 s
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

e
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 C

R
C

 r
e
p
o
rt

 
in

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

R
C

 r
u
le

s
 a

n
d
 a

 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 p
u
b
lic

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 

 
B

o
ld

 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

R
C

 r
e
tu

rn
. 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 b

o
ld

 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

o
u

ld
 

s
h

o
w

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

2
8
%

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 

d
is

to
rt

e
d

 b
e
c
a
u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 l
ig

h
ti

n
g

 f
ig

u
re

s
 i
n

 2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

n
g

 l
ik

e
 w

it
h

 l
ik

e
 s

h
o

w
s
 a

 
re

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

1
0
.1

 o
r 

1
2
.5

%
 

 C
a

rb
o

n
 I

n
te

n
s

it
y
 (

e
x

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

u
b

li
c

 l
ig

h
ti

n
g

) 

 
C

a
rb

o
n

 E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 

T
o

n
n

e
s

 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r 

£
 

C
a

rb
o

n
 i

n
te

n
s

it
y
 

K
g

 o
f 

C
a

rb
o

n
/£

 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 
1

8
,7

2
6

 
4

3
5

,0
2

3
,0

0
0

 
.0

4
3

 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 
1

6
,3

9
4

 
4

2
5

,0
2

4
,0

0
0

 
.0

3
9

 

94



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
9

 

G
re

e
n

h
o

u
s

e
 G

a
s

 E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 (

G
H

G
) 

 A
ll

 e
m

is
s

io
n

s
 i
n

 t
o

n
n

e
s

 
  

 
G

a
s

 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 
O

il
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

L
E

S
S

 

G
re

e
n

 E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0
 

1
0

,9
4

5
 

2
,1

2
0

 
1

1
6

 
1

5
,5

0
8

 
4

,0
6
6

 
2

4
,6

2
3

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1
 

1
1

,2
8

8
 

2
,0

1
4

 
7

6
 

1
5

,9
4

6
 

4
,0

6
6

 
2

5
,2

5
0

 

 C
O

2
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2
 

9
,9

7
7

 
1

,9
4
2

 
N

il 
1

6
,3

8
4

 
4

,0
9
5

 
2

4
,2

0
8

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0
 

1
5

.9
 

3
.2

 
N

e
g
 

7
.7

 
2

.0
4

 
2

4
.7

6
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1
 

1
6

.5
 

3
.1

 
N

e
g
 

7
.9

 
2

.0
4

 
2

5
.4

6
 

 C
H

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2
 

1
4

.6
 

2
.9

 
N

il 
8

.1
 

2
.0

5
 

2
3

.5
5

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0
 

1
9

0
.0

 
2

.1
 

1
.0

 
3

2
.5

 
8

.5
 

2
1

7
.1

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1
 

1
9

5
.8

 
1

.8
 

0
.6

 
3

3
.4

 
8

.5
 

2
1

8
.0

 

 N
O

x
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2
 

1
7

4
.4

 
1

.2
 

N
il 

3
4

.2
 

8
.6

 
2

0
1

.2
 

    C
a

rb
o

n
 E

m
is

s
io

n
s

 p
e

r 
c

a
p

it
a

 (
N

I 
1

8
6

) 
P

e
r 

c
a

p
it
a

 C
a

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d

 b
y
 D

E
C

C
 c

e
n

tr
a

lly
 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.d

e
c
c
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
/c

o
n

te
n

t/
c
m

s
/s

ta
ti

s
ti

c
s
/l

o
c
a
l_

a
u

th
/c

o
2
_
la

s
/c

o
2
_
la

s
.a

s
p

x
 

   

95



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

0
 

W
a
s
te

  
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3

 
(e

s
ti

m
a

te
) 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

T
o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a

g
e

 o
f 

h
o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a

s
te

 
 

8
8

,3
2

6
 

9
0

,4
6

1
 

8
8

,7
0

0
 

 

P
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 

H
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 p
e

r 
h
e

a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 
(k

g
) 

3
8

5
.5

 
3

9
3

.4
 

 
 

T
o
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 

 
2

3
,7

6
7

 
2

2
,0

4
1

 
1

9
,7

0
0

 
 

T
o
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

o
s
te

d
 

 
2

0
,1

6
0

 
2

1
,6

5
3

 
2

1
,8

0
0

 
 

%
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
  

 
 

 
 

 

%
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o

s
te

d
 

 
 

 
 

 

T
o
n

n
a

g
e

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 l
a
n

d
fi
lle

d
 

 
4

4
,0

1
3

 
4

3
,6

9
6

 
3

1
,5

0
0

 
 

%
 o

f 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 l
a

n
d
fi
lle

d
 

 
5

0
.0

 
 

 
 

C
a

rb
o

n
 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
o
f 
W

M
 s

y
s
te

m
 

 
n

/a
 

n
/a

 
n

/a
 

(t
o

 b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
) 

  

96



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

1
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

li
g

h
ti

n
g

  
(t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

) 

 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 
2

0
1
1

/1
2

 
2

0
1
2

/1
3

 
 

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

T
o
ta

l 
k
w

h
 u

s
e

d
 i
n

 y
e

a
r 

 
 

 
 

 

In
s
ta

lle
d

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
n
e
w

 f
it
ti
n

g
s
 (

k
W

) 
 

 
 

 
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 n

e
w

 f
it
ti
n

g
s
 (

k
W

h
) 

 
 

 
 

 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 o

f 
o

ld
 f

it
ti
n

g
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 (

k
W

) 
 

 
 

 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
e

d
 b

y
 o

ld
 f

it
ti
n

g
s
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 

fr
o
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 (

K
W

h
) 

 
 

 
 

A
n

n
u
a

l 
e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 s

a
v
e

d
 b

y
 

re
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

97



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

2
 

G
lo

s
s
a
ry

 o
f 

T
e
rm

s
 

C
E

R
T

 
C

a
rb

o
n
 E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 T

a
rg

e
t 

C
E

S
P

 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
e
rg

y
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

C
O

2
 

C
a
rb

o
n
 D

io
x
id

e
 

C
R

C
 

C
a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
–
 E

n
e
rg

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 

D
E

C
 

D
is

p
la

y
 E

n
e
rg

y
 C

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

: 
A

 G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 r

a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 t
o

 b
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
e
d
 

H
S

P
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

L
A

 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

L
D

S
 

L
o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
: 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
, 

w
h
ic

h
 w

it
h
 r

e
p
la

c
e
s
 t

h
e
 U

D
P

 (
U

rb
a
n
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
) 

in
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 

L
IP

 
L
o
c
a
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

A
g

re
e
d
 w

it
h
 T

fL
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 M

a
y
o
r’
s
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 

N
O

x
 

A
 g

e
n
e
ri
c
 t
e
rm

 f
o
r 

m
o
n
o
-n

it
ro

g
e
n
 o

x
id

e
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 c

o
m

b
u
s
ti
o
n
. 
 

P
M

1
0
 

P
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
M

a
tt

e
r 

–
 t

in
y
 p

a
rt

ic
le

s
 o

f 
s
o
lid

 o
r 

liq
u
id

 o
f 

d
ia

m
e
te

r 
o
f 

1
0
 m

ic
ro

m
e
tr

e
s
 o

r 
le

s
s
 -

 s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 a

 g
a
s
. 

S
A

P
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

: 
A

 m
e
th

o
d
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
. 

S
P

D
 

S
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t:
 A

 s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 L

D
F

 d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 a

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
a

re
a
 

S
U

D
S

 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 U
rb

a
n
 D

ra
in

a
g

e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

S
W

M
P

 
S

u
rf

a
c
e
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 

T
fL

 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

W
L
W

A
 

W
e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

: 
T

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 j
o
in

t 
w

a
s
te

 d
is

p
o
s
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

B
re

n
t,
 E

a
lin

g
, 

H
a
rr

o
w

, 
H

ill
in

g
d
o
n
, 

H
o
u
n
s
lo

w
 a

n
d
 R

ic
h
m

o
n
d
. 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 d

is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
m

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

W
L
W

P
 

W
e
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
: 

a
 j
o
in

t 
p
la

n
 f
o
r 

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 w

a
s
te

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
 s

it
e
s
 i
n
 w

e
s
t 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 (

c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 B

re
n
t,
 E

a
lin

g
, 

H
a
rr

o
w

, 
H

ill
in

g
d
o
n
, 

H
o
u
n
s
lo

w
 a

n
d
 R

ic
h
m

o
n
d
) 

–
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

98



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

3

C
li

m
a
te

 L
o

c
a
l 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
 C

li
m

a
te

 l
o

c
a
l 

–
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il

: 
 O

u
r 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
  

 C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N
 D

R
A

F
T

  
 H

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
ig

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 C
lim

a
te

 L
o

c
a

l 
C

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 3

0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 i
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

ro
le

 t
h
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

h
a

v
e

 i
n

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

. 
 In

 s
ig

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

w
e

 p
le

d
g
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
t 

lo
c
a

lly
-o

w
n

e
d

 a
n
d

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 b

o
th

 m
it
ig

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 a
d

a
p
ta

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

p
u

b
lis

h
 t
h

e
s
e

 w
it
h

in
 s

ix
 m

o
n

th
s
. 
 

 T
h
e

 t
a
b

le
 b

e
lo

w
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
o
u

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

ill
 u

n
d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
m

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
o
u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 o

n
 o

u
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 r
e

g
u

la
rl
y
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

 t
h

is
 l
is

t 
o
f 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 u

p
-t

o
-

d
a

te
 a

n
d

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 

lo
c
a

l 
p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
lim

a
te

 L
o

c
a

l 
te

m
p

la
te

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 t

w
o

 b
ro

a
d
 a

im
s
: 

- 

 L
o

w
 C

a
rb

o
n

 P
a

th
w

a
y
s

 –
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
 “

e
n

e
rg

y
 s

m
a

rt
” 

lo
w

 c
a

rb
o

n
 f

u
tu

re
 

 C
li

m
a

te
 R

e
s
il

ie
n

c
e

 –
 a

d
a
p

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
o
u

r 
c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 c

lim
a

te
 p

re
s
e

n
ts

. 

 

99



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

4

1
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
 L

o
w

 C
a

rb
o

n
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s

 
 C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t:

 W
e

 w
il
l 
e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 l

o
w

-c
a

rb
o

n
 f

u
tu

re
 

J
u

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

: 
O

v
e

r 
5

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 c

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
. 
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 

a
 6

0
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
 C

O
2

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 2

0
2

5
. 

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 A
c

ti
o

n
(s

) 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

A
ll 

n
e

w
 m

a
jo

r 
d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

H
e

a
rt

 o
f 

H
a

rr
o

w
 a

re
a

 t
o

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 
c
o

n
n
e

c
ti
o

n
 t
o

 a
 d

e
c
e

n
tr

a
lis

e
d

 e
n
e

rg
y
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
. 

  

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

m
a

jo
r 

d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
p
o

s
a

ls
 

g
ra

n
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
rt

 o
f 

H
a

rr
o

w
 a

re
a

 
to

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

 c
o
n

n
e

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 a

 d
e

c
e

n
tr

a
lis

e
d

 
e

n
e

rg
y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

. 
  

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

In
 a

c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 P

la
n

, 
im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a
n

 a
re

a
 w

id
e

 
d

is
tr

ic
t 

e
n

e
rg

y
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 t
o

 b
e

 p
a

rt
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 C
IL

 r
e

c
e

ip
ts

. 

F
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
y
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 e

n
d

 
o
f 

2
0

1
3
/1

4
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 p

la
n

 c
o

s
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 b

y
 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 P

a
rt

n
e

r 
s
e

c
u

re
d

 b
y
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

S
c
o

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
e

a
s
ib

ili
ty

 w
o

rk
 –

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 p

ip
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 P
re

-a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
, 

to
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

re
tr

o
fi
tt

in
g
 o

f 
e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e

rg
y
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

o
n

/w
it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

8
0

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
, 

to
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

/o
r 

re
n
e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e

rg
y
 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 o

n
/w

it
h

in
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

N
e

w
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 

to
 e

x
c
e

e
d
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
a

rb
o
n

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
  

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
n

e
w

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 C

o
d

e
 f
o

r 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 
H

o
m

e
s
 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 o
r 

b
e

tt
e
r.

 

U
n

ti
l 
s
u

c
h

 t
im

e
 a

s
 C

o
d
e

 4
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
b
u

ild
in

g
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 

 

100



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

5

2
 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
 

L
o

w
 C

a
rb

o
n

 P
a

th
w

a
y
s

  
 

  C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t:
 W

e
 w

il
l 
e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

lo
w

 c
a

rb
o

n
 f

o
rm

s
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
n

d
 e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
d

 

J
u

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

: 
E

m
is

s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
c
c
o
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
2

2
%

 o
f 

a
ll 

c
a

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n

 L
o

n
d
o
n

 -
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

v
ia

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
h

ip
p

in
g
, 

T
h

is
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
: 

- 
c
a

rs
 a

n
d

 m
o

to
rc

y
c
le

s
 (

4
9

%
);

 r
o

a
d

 f
re

ig
h

t 
(2

3
%

);
 g

ro
u

n
d

-b
a

s
e
d

 a
v
ia

ti
o

n
 –

 t
a

x
iin

g
 e

tc
. 

(1
1
%

);
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 
is

 f
ro

m
 p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 (

tr
a

in
s
, 

th
e

 u
n

d
e

rg
ro

u
n

d
, 
b

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
a

x
is

 e
tc

. 
–

 a
p

p
ro

x
. 

4
%

 e
a

c
h

).
 

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 A
c

ti
o

n
(s

) 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

T
h
e

 a
g
re

e
d
 L

IP
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

M
a

y
o

r 
fo

r 
L
o

n
d
o

n
 i
s
 t
h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d

 a
d
d

re
s
s
e

s
 a

ll 
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 

L
IP

 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 
M

a
y
o

r’
s
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

M
e

a
s
u

re
 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

: 
- 

• 
2

0
m

p
h

 z
o

n
e

s
  

• 
B

u
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
  

• 
L

o
c
a

l 
s
a
fe

ty
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
  

• 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
p

ro
m

o
ti
o

n
s
 

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 w

a
lk

in
g
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

• 
Im

p
ro

v
e

d
 g

re
e
n

w
a

y
s
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h

e
s
e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 v
ia

 T
A

R
S

A
P

 (
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

ro
a

d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

d
v
is

o
ry

 p
a

n
e

l)
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

101



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

6

C
a

r 
P

a
rk

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

ir
 c

a
rs

 b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 f

re
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
p

a
rk

in
g
 p

e
rm

it
s
 f

o
r 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
lly

 
fr

ie
n
d

ly
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
. 

 

N
u

m
b
e

r 
o
f 

fr
e

e
 p

e
rm

it
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 

 W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
  

to
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
a

rs
 t
h

e
y
 o

w
n

 b
y
 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
p
a

rk
in

g
 p

e
rm

it
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 
m

o
re

 e
x
p

e
n

s
iv

e
 f

o
r 

m
u
lt
ip

le
 c

a
r 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
. 

 

T
fL

 L
o
n

d
o

n
 T

ra
v
e

l 
D

e
m

a
n
d

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
s
h

o
p

s
 b

y
 

d
is

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

te
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d
 p

a
rk

in
g
 z

o
n

e
s
. 

 

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 r
o

a
d

s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 C
P

Z
  

(P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l)
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
a

r 
c
lu

b
s
 

W
e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 H
A

2
1

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 

e
le

c
tr

ic
 c

a
r 

c
lu

b
 i
n

 t
h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 
fr

o
m

  
2

0
1

4
 

102



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

7

3
 

W
a
te

r 
a
n

d
 F

lo
o

d
in

g
 

 C
li

m
a

te
 R

e
s
il

ie
n

c
e

 
 C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t:

 W
e

 w
il
l 
e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

fl
o

o
d

 r
is

k
s

 a
re

 u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c

e
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 r

is
k

s
 

J
u

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

: 
C

lim
a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t
o

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 t
w

o
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 w

it
h

 w
a

te
r 

s
u

p
p

ly
 –

 p
e

ri
o
d

s
 o

f 
d

ro
u

g
h

t;
 a

n
d

 p
e

ri
o

d
s
 o

f 
h
e

a
v
y
 

ra
in

fa
ll.

 C
o

u
p

le
d
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 g

ro
w

th
 i
n

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
, 

th
e

re
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 o

n
 t

h
e

 
a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

w
a

te
r 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
o

re
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

f 
fl
o
o

d
in

g
. 

D
a

ily
 w

a
te

r 
c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 p

e
r 

h
e
a

d
 i
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
 a

t 
1

7
0

 l
it
re

s
/h

e
a

d
 o

f 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 (

c
f.

 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
a

v
e

ra
g
e

 o
f 

1
5

0
 

lit
re

s
/h

e
a
d

).
  

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
re

d
u

c
e

d
 w

a
te

r 
c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
a
d

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
iv

e
ly

 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 h
o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
d
e

r 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 b

u
t,

 
a

s
 w

it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
e

, 
b

ri
n

g
in

g
 d

o
w

n
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

re
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
. 

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 A
c

ti
o

n
(s

) 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

N
e

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 i
n

s
ta

lla
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

m
a

in
s
 

w
a

te
r,

 w
it
h

 a
 t

a
rg

e
t 
o
f 

1
0

5
lt
rs

 o
f 

le
s
s
 p

e
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
. 

 

9
5

%
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

th
a

t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

 w
a

s
te

 u
s
e

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
1

0
5

lt
rs

 
p

e
r 

p
e

rs
o

n
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
 o

r 
b

e
tt
e

r 
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 b

u
t 

w
it
h

 t
h
e

 a
m

b
it
io

n
 o

v
e

r 
ti
m

e
 

to
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

to
 8

0
lt
rs

 p
e

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

 p
e

r 
d
a

y
 

 
%

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 H

a
rr

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 

w
a

te
r 

m
e

te
r 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

N
e

w
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
to

 i
n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
U

D
S

 
to

 c
o
n

tr
o

l 
th

e
 r

a
te

 a
n

d
 v

o
lu

m
e

 o
f 

s
u

rf
a

c
e

 
w

a
te

r 
ru

n
-o

ff
 t

o
 g

re
e

n
-f

ie
ld

 r
a

te
s
 w

h
e

re
 

fe
a

s
ib

le
. 

7
5

%
 o

f 
q
u

a
lif

y
in

g
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 g
re

e
n

-f
ie

ld
 r

u
n
-o

ff
 r

a
te

s
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

 

103



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

8

4
 

W
a
s
te

 
 L

o
w

 C
a

rb
o

n
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s

 

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t:
 W

e
 w

il
l 
e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 o

u
r 

w
a
s

te
 m

in
im

is
e

s
 t

h
e

 c
a

rb
o

n
 i

m
p

a
c

t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

o
ll
e

c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

d
is

p
o

s
a

l 
s

y
s

te
m

 

J
u

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

: 
T

h
e

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 m
a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 h
a

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
e
ff

e
c
t 
o

n
 c

a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 s

e
e

k
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e

 
w

a
s
te

, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

o
s
ti
n

g
, 

re
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 l
a

n
d
fi
lli

n
g
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
a

rb
o

n
 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
w

a
s
te

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 A
c

ti
o

n
(s

) 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 c

a
rb

o
n

 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
w

a
s
te

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

W
e
 w

ill
 u

s
e
 t

h
e
 W

a
s
te

d
a

ta
fl
o

w
 m

e
tr

ic
 t

o
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 c

a
rb

o
n

 f
o
o

tp
ri
n

t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
w

a
s
te

 
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 

W
a
s
te

 m
in

im
is

a
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

  

w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

e
s
t 

L
o
n

d
o
n

 W
a
s
te

 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 t
h

e
y
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

 

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

 w
a

s
te

 

H
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s
te

 p
e

r 
h
e

a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 

 

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
  

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 e

x
p

lo
re

 w
a

y
s
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 
w

e
 c

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

a
n

d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 w

a
s
te

 

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p
o

s
te

d
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p
o

s
te

d
 

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 l
a

n
d
fi
ll 

 

T
o
ta

l 
o
f 

w
a

s
te

 l
a

n
d
fi
lle

d
 

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 

w
a

s
te

 l
a
n

d
fi
lle

d
 

F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 

 

104



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
1

9

5
 

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 N

a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
 C

li
m

a
te

 r
e
s

il
ie

n
c

e
 

 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t:
 W

e
 w

il
l 
e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

o
u

r 
n

a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

is
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 a
n

d
 h

e
lp

s
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

u
s

, 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 a

d
v
e

rs
e

 
e

ff
e

c
ts

 o
f 

c
li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 

J
u

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

: 
C

lim
a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 m
e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

e
a

s
o
n

a
l 
w

e
a

th
e

r 
p

a
tt
e

rn
s
 w

e
 a

re
 f

a
m

ili
a

r 
w

it
h

 a
re

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
. 

It
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 p

re
d

ic
t 

p
re

c
is

e
ly

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
t 
it
 s

e
e

m
s
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 

w
e

 w
ill

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 m
ild

e
r 

w
in

te
rs

, 
e

a
rl
ie

r 
s
p

ri
n

g
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
rm

e
r 

s
u

m
m

e
rs

. 
P

e
ri
o

d
s
 o

f 
d
ro

u
g
h

t 
o

r 
lo

w
 r

a
in

fa
ll 

w
ill

 b
e

c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u

e
n

t 
a

s
 w

ill
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
h

e
a

v
y
, 

p
ro

lo
n

g
e

d
 r

a
in

fa
ll.

 T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 
a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d
a

n
g
e

r 
th

a
t 

s
to

rm
s
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 m
o

re
 f

re
q
u

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 o
f 

h
ig

h
e

r 
in

te
n

s
it
y
. 

A
ll 

th
is

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 

T
re

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

rb
a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a
t 
is

la
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
t 

b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

h
a

d
e
 a

n
d

 c
o
o

lin
g
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

s
u

c
h

 t
re

e
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 s
u

rv
iv

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
o

rt
 o

f 
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 e

x
is

t.
  

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 A
c

ti
o

n
(s

) 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

U
rb

a
n

 G
re

e
n

in
g
 –

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 
s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 H

a
rr

o
w

’s
 G

re
e

n
 

G
ri
d

 a
n

d
 S

tr
e
e

t 
T

re
e
 P

la
n

ti
n

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

5
0

0
 t
re

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 p
la

n
te

d
 p

.a
. 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a

lm
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

U
rb

a
n

 g
re

e
n

in
g
 –

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 
a

ll 
e

x
is

ti
n

g
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

, 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
p

u
b

lic
 o

r 
p

ri
v
a

te
, 

fr
o

m
 i
n

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.
 

N
o

 n
e

t 
lo

s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

m
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 (
2

0
1

1
 b

a
s
e
 

y
e

a
r)

 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

U
rb

a
n

 G
re

e
n

in
g
 –

 C
o
u
n

c
il’

s
 u

rb
a

n
 r

e
a

lm
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
n

d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 

g
re

e
n

 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
. 

M
a

jo
r 

u
rb

a
n
 r

e
a

lm
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o
f 
s
u

rf
a

c
e

 a
re

a
 

g
re

e
n

e
d

 b
y
 l
e

a
s
t 

a
 5

%
 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

 p
u

b
lic

 o
p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

 t
o

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 
it
s
 m

u
lt
if
u

n
c
ti
o
n

a
l 
u

s
e

  
C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 p

re
p
a

re
 a

n
d
 p

u
b

lis
h
 a

n
 O

p
e
n

 
S

p
a

c
e

s
 S

tr
a

te
g
y
  

2
0

1
3

/1
4

 

105



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
2

0

E
n

s
u

re
 S

it
e

 o
f 

Im
p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
N

a
tu

re
 

C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
re

 
u

n
d
e

r 
a

c
ti
v
e

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
S

IN
C

’s
 u

n
d
e

r 
a

c
ti
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
fr

o
m

 3
3

%
 (

1
0
/3

0
) 

to
 

6
6

%
  

3
 p

.a
. 

to
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

T
h
e

 H
a

rr
o

w
 B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

e
x
p

ir
e

s
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

re
fo

re
 n

e
e
d

s
 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 u
p
d

a
ti
n

g
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 H
a

rr
o

w
 B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
 

p
re

p
a

re
d

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lis
h
e
d

 
2

0
1
3

/1
4

 

 

 

 

 

   

106



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
2

1
 

6
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 F

o
o

tp
ri

n
t 

 L
o

w
 C

a
rb

o
n

 P
a

th
w

a
y
s

 

 C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t:
 W

e
 w

il
l 
e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

o
u

r 
b

u
il

d
in

g
s

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

s
 a

re
 e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

n
d

 l
o

w
 c

a
rb

o
n

 

J
u

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

: 
C

lim
a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 m
e
a

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 s

e
a

s
o
n

a
l 
w

e
a

th
e

r 
p

a
tt
e

rn
s
 w

e
 a

re
 f

a
m

ili
a

r 
w

it
h

 a
re

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
. 

It
 i
s
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 p

re
d

ic
t 

p
re

c
is

e
ly

 w
h

a
t 

th
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
t 
it
 s

e
e

m
s
 c

le
a

r 
th

a
t 

w
e

 w
ill

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 m
ild

e
r 

w
in

te
rs

, 
e

a
rl
ie

r 
s
p

ri
n

g
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
rm

e
r 

s
u

m
m

e
rs

. 
P

e
ri
o

d
s
 o

f 
d
ro

u
g
h

t 
o

r 
lo

w
 r

a
in

fa
ll 

w
ill

 b
e

c
o
m

e
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u

e
n

t 
a

s
 w

ill
 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
h

e
a

v
y
, 

p
ro

lo
n

g
e

d
 r

a
in

fa
ll.

 T
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 
a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d
a

n
g
e

r 
th

a
t 

s
to

rm
s
 w

ill
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 m
o

re
 f

re
q
u

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 o
f 

h
ig

h
e

r 
in

te
n

s
it
y
. 

A
ll 

th
is

 w
ill

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 n

a
tu

ra
l 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y
. 

T
re

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

rb
a

n
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
h

a
v
e

 t
h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a
t 
is

la
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
t 

b
y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

h
a

d
e
 a

n
d

 c
o
o

lin
g
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

s
u

c
h

 t
re

e
s
 n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 s
u

rv
iv

e
 i
n

 t
h
e

 s
o

rt
 o

f 
c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
w

ill
 e

x
is

t.
  

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 A
c

ti
o

n
(s

) 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
tr

o
fi
t 

o
u

r 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 t
o

 
re

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
ir
 e

n
e

rg
y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 

R
E

:F
IT

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  

R
e

d
u

c
e
 o

u
r 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
a

rb
o

n
 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
b

y
 

4
%

 a
 y

e
a

r 
O

n
g
o

in
g
 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 r

e
p
la

c
e

 o
u

r 
s
tr

e
e

tl
ig

h
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
L

E
D

 
lig

h
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
e

rg
y
 s

a
v
in

g
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 p
u
b

lic
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 J
a
n

/F
e
b

 2
0
1

2
 

Il
lu

m
in

a
te

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 
fu

rn
it
u

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
-

ill
u

m
in

a
te

d
 w

h
e

re
v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

 

R
e

d
u

c
e
d

 e
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

u
r 

s
tr

e
e

t 
lig

h
ti
n

g
  

R
e

d
u

c
e
 o

u
r 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
a

rb
o

n
 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
b

y
 

4
%

 a
 y

e
a

r 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

fo
s
s
il 

fu
e

l 
w

e
 u

s
e
 

in
 o

u
r 

fl
e
e

t 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s
 

- 
 R

o
u

te
 o

p
ti
m

is
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

- 
 L

o
w

 c
a

rb
o

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 

 

T
o
ta

l 
a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

fu
e

l 
u

s
e

d
 

 

107



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
2

2
 

R
e

d
u

c
e
 t

h
e
 c

a
rb

o
n

 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
o
f 

o
u

r 
s
ta

ff
 

- 
 E

n
c
o
u

ra
g
in

g
 t

h
e

 u
s
e
 o

f 
p
u

b
lic

 
tr

a
n

s
p

o
rt

, 
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 w
a

lk
in

g
 

- 
 R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 c

a
r 

a
llo

w
a

n
c
e

s
 

- 
 R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 p
a

rk
in

g
 p

o
lic

y
 

- 
 C

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

lo
w

-
c
a

rb
o

n
 p

o
o

l 
c
a

rs
 

N
o

 o
f 

s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 e
s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
u

s
e

r 
c
a

r 
a

llo
w

a
n

c
e

s
 

 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

N
e

w
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 B
R

E
E

A
M

 
‘v

e
ry

 g
o

o
d

’ 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 
2

0
1
2

 -
 2

0
1

4
 

108



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
2

3
 

7
 

W
a
rm

e
r 

H
o

m
e
s
 

 L
o

w
 c

a
rb

o
n

 P
a

th
w

a
y
s

 
 C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t:

 W
e

 w
il
l 
e

n
s

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 h
o

m
e
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 e

n
e

rg
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 t

o
 h

e
a

t 

J
u

s
ti

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

: 
H

e
a
ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

h
o
m

e
s
 a

c
c
o
u

n
ts

 f
o
r 

6
6

%
 o

f 
c
a

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n

 H
a

rr
o

w
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 f
o

r 
s
p
a

c
e

 h
e

a
ti
n

g
/c

o
o

lin
g
 (

5
4

%
);

 
h

o
t 

w
a

te
r 

(1
8

%
);

 a
p
p

lia
n

c
e

s
 (

1
8

%
);

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 (

5
%

) 
a

n
d

 c
o

o
k
in

g
 (

3
%

).
 T

h
e

 M
a

y
o

r 
o
f 

L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
 C

lim
a

te
 C

h
a

n
g
e

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
e

n
v
is

a
g
e

s
 t

h
e

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 3

9
%

 o
f 

th
e
 2

0
2

5
 c

a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 A
c

ti
o

n
(s

) 
M

e
a

s
u

re
 

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 D
E

C
C

 u
n
d

e
r 

H
E

C
A

  
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 c
a
b

in
e

t 
w

it
h

 d
ra

ft
 D

e
liv

e
ri
n

g
 

W
a
rm

e
r 

H
o
m

e
s
 (

H
E

C
A

) 
re

p
o

rt
. 

 
 Is

s
u

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

ra
ft

 
 P

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti
o

n
  
 

 R
e

p
o

rt
 b

a
c
k
 t
o

 C
a

b
in

e
t 
 

 S
u

b
m

it
 H

E
C

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o
 S

o
S

 
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
 

N
o

v
 2

0
1

2
 

  D
e

c
 2

0
1

2
 

 D
e

c
 2

0
1

2
/J

a
n

 2
0

1
3

. 
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
 

 3
1

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
2

. 
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 o
n

w
a

rd
s
 

G
re

e
n

 D
e
a

l 
L

ia
is

e
 w

it
h

 G
L

A
 o

n
 p

a
n

 L
o
n

d
o
n

 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
3

 o
n

w
a

rd
s
 

W
a
rm

 H
o

m
e

s
, 

H
e
a

lt
h

y
 P

e
o
p

le
 

S
u

b
m

it
 b

id
 t

o
 D

o
H

 
 R

u
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
 

 D
e

c
 2

0
1

2
 t
o

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0
1

3
 

  

109



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 D
 

 
2

4
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 Q
u

e
s

ti
o

n
s

 
 Q

. 
D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it

h
/s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 b
ro

a
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 f
a

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

c
il

, 
it

s
 r

e
s

id
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 b

u
s

in
e
s

s
e
s

?
 

Y
E

S
 

N
O

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t:

 
 

 Q
. 

D
o

 y
o

u
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

e
v
e

n
 A

c
ti

o
n

 a
re

a
s

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 r

e
fl

e
c

t 
th

e
 a

re
a

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 c

o
u

n
c

il
 c

a
n

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t

a
k

e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 o
n

?
 

Y
E

S
 

N
O

 
C

o
m

m
e

n
t:

 
 

 Q
. 

D
o

 y
o

u
 a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
p

ro
p

o
s

e
d

 a
c

ti
o

n
s

?
 D

o
 y

o
u

 t
h

in
k

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

h
a
s

is
 i

s
 r

ig
h

t 
a

n
d

/o
r 

d
o

 y
o

u
 t

h
in

k
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 o
m

it
te

d
 

a
n

y
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
?

 
Y

E
S

 
N

O
 

C
o

m
m

e
n

t:
 

 
 Q

. 
A

re
 t

h
e

re
 a

n
y
 o

th
e

r 
c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 y
o

u
 w

is
h

 t
o

 m
a

k
e

?
  

   P
le

a
s

e
 l
im

it
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
t 

to
 a

 m
a
x

im
u

m
 o

f 
2

0
0

 w
o

rd
s

. 
 R

e
s

p
o

n
s

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 o

n
 l

in
e

 a
t 

L
IN

K
 

 P
o

s
ta

l 
s

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
s

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

e
n

t 
to

 :
  

C
li

m
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 s

e
c

ti
o

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 C
iv

ic
 C

e
n

tr
e

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
ta

ti
o

n
 R

o
a

d
 

H
a

rr
o

w
 

H
A

1
 2

U
Z

 

110



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 E
 

C
a

rb
o

n
 R

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

(C
R

C
) 

 A
ll

 e
m

is
s

io
n

s
 i
n

 T
o

n
n

e
s

 

 
C

O
R

E
 (

A
) 

R
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 R

E
S

ID
U

A
L

 (
B

) 
T

O
T

A
L

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

 
 

 
(A

)+
(B

) 
(A

)+
(B

) 

 
G

a
s
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

P
u

b
li

c
 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 

O
il
 

G
a
s
 

E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

O
il
 

In
c
lu

d
in

g
 

P
u

b
li

c
 L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 

E
X

c
lu

d
in

g
 

P
u

b
li

c
 L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 
9

,0
5
0

 
9

,6
0
2

 
4

,0
7
8

 
0

 
0

 
0

 
7

4
 

2
2

,8
0

4
 

1
8
,7

2
6
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 
6

,9
9
5

 
9

,3
9
9

 
4

,1
0
7

 
n

il 
0

 
0

 
0

 
2
0
,5

0
1
 

1
6

,3
9

4
 

 
 

 
 

 
%

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

1
0
.1

%
 

1
2

.5
%

 

 

S
h
a
d
e
d
 f

ig
u
re

 s
h
o
w

 t
h
e
 

v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
p
u
b
lic

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g

 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 C

R
C

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

R
C

 
ru

le
s
 a

n
d
 a

 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

 p
u
b
lic

 l
ig

h
ti
n
g
 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 

 
B

o
ld

 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
e
 v

a
lu

e
s
 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

R
C

 r
e
tu

rn
. 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 b

o
ld

 f
ig

u
re

s
 

w
o

u
ld

 s
h

o
w

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

2
8
%

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

is
to

rt
e
d

 b
e
c
a
u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

e
x
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 l
ig

h
ti

n
g

 
fi

g
u

re
s
 i

n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
. 

C
o

m
p

a
ri

n
g

 l
ik

e
 w

it
h

 l
ik

e
 s

h
o

w
s
 

a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

1
0
.1

 o
r 

1
2
.5

%
 

 C
a

rb
o

n
 I

n
te

n
s

it
y
 (

e
x

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

u
b

li
c

 l
ig

h
ti

n
g

) 

 
C

a
rb

o
n

 E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 

T
o

n
n

e
s

 

T
u

rn
o

v
e

r 

£
 

C
a

rb
o

n
 i

n
te

n
s

it
y
 

K
g

 o
f 

C
a

rb
o

n
/£

 t
u

rn
o

v
e

r 

2
0

1
0

/1
1

 
1

8
,7

2
6

 
4

3
5

,0
2

3
,0

0
0

 
.0

4
3

 

2
0

1
1

/1
2

 
1

6
,3

9
4

 
4

2
5

,0
2

4
,0

0
0

 
.0

3
9

 

111



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 E
 

G
re

e
n

h
o

u
s

e
 G

a
s

 E
m

is
s

io
n

s
 (

G
H

G
) 

  
 

G
a

s
 

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 

O
il

 
E

le
c

tr
ic

it
y
 

L
E

S
S

 

G
re

e
n

 E
le

c
tr

ic
it

y
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0
 

1
0

,9
4

5
 

2
,1

2
0

 
1

1
6

 
1

5
,5

0
8

 
4

,0
6
6

 
2

4
,6

2
3

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1
 

1
1

,2
8

8
 

2
,0

1
4

 
7

6
 

1
5

,9
4

6
 

4
,0

6
6

 
2

5
,2

5
0

 

 C
O

2
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2
 

9
,9

7
7

 
1

,9
4
2

 
N

il 
1

6
,3

8
4

 
4

,0
9
5

 
2

4
,2

0
8

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0
 

1
5

.9
 

3
.2

 
N

e
g
 

7
.7

 
2

.0
4

 
2

4
.7

6
 

2
0

1
0

/1
1
 

1
6

.5
 

3
.1

 
N

e
g
 

7
.9

 
2

.0
4

 
2

5
.4

6
 

 C
H

4
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2
 

1
4

.6
 

2
.9

 
N

il 
8

.1
 

2
.0

5
 

2
3

.5
5

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0
 

1
9

0
.0

 
2

.1
 

1
.0

 
3

2
.5

 
8

.5
 

2
1

7
.1

 

2
0

1
0

/1
1
 

1
9

5
.8

 
1

.8
 

0
.6

 
3

3
.4

 
8

.5
 

2
1

8
.0

 

 N
O

x
 

2
0

1
1

/1
2
 

1
7

4
.4

 
1

.2
 

N
il 

3
4

.2
 

8
.6

 
2

0
1

.2
 

E
m

is
s
io

n
s
 i
n

 t
o
n

n
e

s
 

 C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 

G
a

s
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 w

e
a

th
e

r.
 T

h
u

s
 t

h
e

 h
a

rd
 w

in
te

r 
o

f 
2

0
1
0

/1
1

 s
a

w
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 r

is
e

, 
w

h
e

re
a
s
 t

h
e

 m
ild

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

in
 2

0
1

1
/1

2
 

re
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 f
a

ll 
in

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 f
a

lle
n

 8
.4

%
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

 r
e

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 a

 m
o

v
e

 t
o

 f
e

w
e

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
, 

m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

e
n

g
in

e
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 
d

ri
v
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 (

to
 b

o
o

s
t 
fu

e
l 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
) 

 O
il.

 E
m

is
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 f
a

lle
n

 t
o
 n

il 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

la
c
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 l
a

s
t 

o
il-

fi
re

d
 b

o
ile

r 
in

 2
0
1

0
/1

1
 

 E
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 t
o

 r
is

e
 s

tr
o

n
g
ly

 –
 u

p
 5

.6
%

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
is

 r
e
fl
e

c
ts

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
d
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 

e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 p

o
o

r 
c
o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

e
n

e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 w

h
e

n
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 n

e
w

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n

t/
s
y
s
te

m
s
. 

 G
re

e
n

 e
le

c
tr

ic
it
y
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 (

fr
o

m
 p

u
b

lic
 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
) 

a
re

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 -

 a
g
re

e
d

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 
b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
–
 s

h
o
u

ld
 

m
e

a
n

 t
h

a
t 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 f

ro
m

 p
u

b
lic

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 s

ta
rt

 t
o

 f
a

ll 
a

s
 n

e
w

 l
ig

h
ti
n

g
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
n

s
ta

lle
d

. 

112



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 F
: 

 C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 -

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
S

ta
tu

s
 

 
S

ta
rt

e
d

 
o
r 

D
T

A
 

o
r 

IG
P

 

T
o

ta
l 

c
o

s
t 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

c
a
rb

o
n

 
s
a
v

in
g

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

E
n

e
rg

y
 

s
a
v

in
g

 

In
it

ia
l 
 

P
a

y
b

a
c
k
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
  

C
a
rb

o
n

 
R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
  

C
a
p

it
a
l 

M
a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

fr
o

m
  

S
c
h

o
o

l 
 

R
e
s
e

rv
e
s
 &

 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

B
a
la

n
c

e
 

F
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 

In
v

e
s
t 

to
 S

a
v

e
 

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 

 
(A

s
s
u

m
in

g
 n

o
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 
re

s
e
rv

e
s
) 

F
in

a
l 

P
a

y
b

a
c
k
 

p
e
ri

o
d

 
(o

n
 i
n

v
e
s
t 

to
 

s
a
v

e
 

b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
) 

 
N

o
te

 1
 

N
o

te
 1

 
N

o
te

 1
 

N
o

te
 1

 
N

o
te

 1
 

N
o

te
 4

 
 

 
N

o
te

 2
 

N
o

te
 3

 

 
 

£
0
0
0

s
 

T
o

n
n

e
s
 

£
 

Y
e
a
rs

 
£
0
0
0

s
 

£
0
0
0

s
 

£
0
0
0

s
 

£
0
0
0

s
 

Y
e
a
rs

 

P
h

a
s

e
 1

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

B
e
d
fo

rd
 H

o
u
s
e
 

IG
P

 
3
1
.8

 
2
9
.1

 
4
,4

0
0
 

7
.2

 
3
1
.8

 
0
.0

 
n
/a

 
0
.0

 
0
.0

 

B
e
n
tl
e

y
 N

R
C

 
D

T
A

 
4
1
.1

 
2
0
.6

 
3
,4

9
0
 

1
1
.8

 
4
1
.1

 
0
.0

 
n
/a

 
0
.0

 
0
.0

 

B
e
lm

o
n
t 
F

&
M

 s
c
h
o
o

l 
IG

P
 

8
6
.2

 
5
9
.3

 
9
,0

8
4
 

9
.5

 
1
2
.9

 
8

.5
 

0
.0

 
6
4
.8

 
7
.1

 

C
a
n
n

o
n
 L

a
n
e

 F
&

M
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
IG

P
 

9
7
.0

 
6
5
.1

 
1
0
,3

4
3
 

9
.4

 
1
4
.6

 
0
.0

 
0
.0

 
8
2
.4

 
8
.0

 

N
o
rb

u
ry

 F
&

M
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
 

IG
P

 
1
5
6
.3

 
6
6
.9

 
1
0
,8

3
6
 

1
1
.8

 
1
8
.9

 
7
8
.7

 
0
.0

 
5
8
.7

 
5
.4

 

S
ta

n
b
u
rn

 F
&

M
 s

c
h

o
o
l 

 
IG

P
 

1
4
3
.5

 
6
6
.9

 
1
0
,0

0
5
 

1
0
.8

5
 

1
9
.8

 
7

1
.7

 
5
2
.0

 
0
.0

 
0
.0

 

P
h

a
s

e
 1

A
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
in

n
e
rw

o
o
d
 F

&
M

 s
c
h
o

o
l 

 
IG

P
 

1
1
6
.1

 
6
5
.0

 
1
0
,2

8
7
 

1
1
.3

 
1
7
.4

 
5
8
.6

 
tb

c
 

4
0
.1

 
3
.9

 

G
le

b
e

 F
&

M
 s

c
h
o
o

l 
  

 
IG

P
 

1
2
6
.8

 
4
8
.7

 
7
,8

9
2
 

1
6
.1

 
1
9
.0

 
5
9
.2

 
tb

c
 

4
8
.6

 
6
.2

 

P
h

a
s

e
 2

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
 

D
T

A
 

2
9
1
.0

 
2
3
0
.1

 
3
8
,0

3
4
 

7
.6

5
 

2
9
1
.0

 
0
.0

 
n
/a

 
0
.0

 
0
.0

 

P
h

a
s

e
 3

 –
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 F

e
e
s
 (

IG
P

) 
N

o
te

 5
 

 
3
7
.5

 
 

 
 

3
3
.5

 
 

 
 

 

T
O

T
A

L
S

  
 

 
1
1
0
0

.4
 

6
5
4
.3

 
1
0
3
,3

5
5
 

1
0
.3

 
5
0
0
.0

 
2
7
6
.7

 
5
2
.0

 
2
7
1
.7

 
2

.6
 

  

113



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 F
: 

 C
a
rb

o
n

 R
e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 -

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h

 p
ro

je
c
t 

N
o

te
s
 

N
o
te

 1
: 
 F

in
a
l 
p
ri
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 I

n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
G

ra
d
e
 P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
p
ri
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 D

e
s
k
 T

o
p
 A

u
d
it
. 
 

N
o
te

 2
: 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

m
a
k
in

g
 r

e
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 u
n
d
e

r 
in

v
e
s
t 

to
 s

a
v
e
 w

ill
 r

e
s
id

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
/o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o

n
 p

a
y
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 b

ill
s
. 

 

N
o
te

 3
: 
C

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
a
y
b
a
c
k
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

s
s
u
m

e
s
 n

o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 s
c
h
o
o
l’s

 m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

o
r 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
 

N
o
te

 4
: 
C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 C

a
rb

o
n
 R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b

u
d
g

e
t 

is
 a

 m
in

im
u
m

 o
f 

1
5
%

. 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 F

in
a
l 
p
a
y
b
a
c
k
 p

e
ri
o
d
 t

o
 a

 
m

a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

8
 y

e
a
rs

 

N
o
te

 5
: 
C

o
m

m
it
ti
n
g
 t

o
 p

a
y
in

g
 d

e
s
ig

n
 f

e
e
s
 f
o
r 

S
ta

g
e
 3

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
y
e
a
r 

w
ill

 e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 M

IT
IE

 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e
 l
o
n
g

e
r 

le
a
d
 t

im
e
s
, 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 g

o
v
e
rn

in
g
 b

o
d
ie

s
, 

a
n
d
 a

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 
In

 e
ff

e
c
t 
th

is
 m

o
v
w

e
s
 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
c
o
s
ts

 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 

 

114



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 G
 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

H
o

m
e
 I

n
s
u

la
ti

o
n

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

 B
u

d
g

e
ts

 -
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

a
la

ry
 c

o
s
ts

) 
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u

n
c
il
 

L
D

A
 

G
L

A
 

T
S

B
 

W
a
rm

 F
ro

n
t 

D
o

H
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

 
A

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 

W
a
rm

th
 

H
E

E
P

 
R

E
:N

E
W

 
W

a
rm

 
Z

o
n

e
s
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e
tr

o
fi

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 F

u
tu

re
 

M
a
in

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 

W
L

H
P

 t
o

p
-

u
p

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 

6
0
 p

lu
s
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 
H

o
u

s
e
-

w
a
rm

e
rs

 

In
v

e
s
tm

e
n

t 
in

 e
n

e
rg

y
 

s
a
v

in
g

 

P
re

 2
0

0
9
 

8
3
,8

2
7
 

- 
- 

4
6
7
,3

0
9
 

9
7
,5

2
2
 

- 
8
3
2
,3

9
2
 

6
3
,0

8
4
 

6
5
9
,1

0
0
 

- 
2
,2

0
3
,2

3
4
 

2
0
0
9

/1
0
 

6
8
,6

6
2
 

1
2
4
,5

0
0
 

- 
2
9
0
,2

6
9
 

7
,0

3
5
 

- 
8
7
3
,7

9
3
 

1
4
,4

7
1
 

- 
- 

1
,3

7
8
,7

2
9
 

2
0
1
0

/1
1
 

4
6
,2

1
5
 

- 
- 

3
3
8
,3

4
0
 

1
3
,9

6
6
 

1
7
0
,0

0
0
 

7
7
4
,9

9
8
 

6
,3

8
1
 

- 
- 

1
,3

4
9
,9

0
0
 

2
0
1
1

/1
2
 

7
,1

4
7
 

- 
2
6
2
,5

0
4
 

1
8
7
,1

3
6
 

1
4
,4

2
2
 

- 
1
3
8
,2

9
9
 

4
,0

2
1
 

- 
6
6

,7
8
9
 

6
8
0
,3

1
8
 

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 

 

7
5
,0

0
0
 

(b
u
d
g

e
t)

 

- 
8
0
,0

0
0
 

(e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
) 

5
0
0
0

0
 

(e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
) 

2
0
0
0
 

(e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
) 

- 
2
0
,0

0
0
 

(e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
) 

1
0
,0

0
0
 

(e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
) 

- 
- 

2
3
7
,0

0
0
 

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s

e
h

o
ld

s
 a

s
s

is
te

d
 

 
H

a
rr

o
w

 
C

o
u

n
c
il
 

L
D

A
 

G
L

A
 

T
S

B
 

W
a
rm

 F
ro

n
t 

D
o

H
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

 
A

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 

W
a
rm

th
 

H
E

E
P

 
R

E
:N

E
W

 
W

a
rm

 
Z

o
n

e
s
 

R
e
s
id

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e
tr

o
fi

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 F

u
tu

re
 

M
a
in

 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 

W
L

H
P

 t
o

p
-

u
p

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 

6
0
 p

lu
s
 

s
c
h

e
m

e
 

H
a
rr

o
w

 
H

o
u

s
e
-

w
a
rm

e
rs

 

 

P
re

 2
0

0
9
 

 
- 

- 
4
1
8
 

n
/a

 
- 

4
8
1
 

1
2
0
 

2
1
9
7
 

- 
3
2
1
6
 

2
0
0
9

/1
0
 

 
6
7
4
 

- 
1
5
9
 

n
/a

 
- 

4
4
5
 

3
3
 

- 
- 

1
3
1
1
 

2
0
1
0

/1
1
 

 
- 

- 
3
7
3
 

n
/a

 
1
 

5
1
7
 

1
2
 

- 
- 

9
0
2
 

2
0
1
1

/1
2
 

 
- 

1
7
0
2
 

2
6
3
 

n
/a

 
- 

8
8
 

7
 

- 
3
0
3
 

2
3
6
3
 

2
0
1
2

/1
3
 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

 
- 

1
2
0
0
 

(e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
) 

1
0
0
 

(e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
) 

n
/a

 
- 

2
2
 

(t
o
 d

a
te

) 

N
il 

(t
o
 d

a
te

) 

- 
- 

1
3
2
2
 

 

115



116

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix H 
Insulation Standards in Harrow’s Homes 

 

There is significant scope to improve the thermal efficiency of homes in Harrow. Data from the 
Energy Savings Trust indicates the following: - 

 
 
 
 
Two thirds of static carbon emissions in Harrow come from residents’ homes.  

Carbon Emissions in Harrow

66%

34%

Homes Other

 
 
 
 
 
 
75% of homes in the borough (63,750) have loft insulation that falls below current 
recommended standards (i.e. 270 mm). 

Loft Insulation levels in Harrow

75%

25%

Inadequate To standard

 
 
 
 
 

117



Appendix H 
58% of homes (49,300) in the borough have solid walls. The vast majority of these not been 
insulated. Solid wall insulation is expensive but is expected to qualify for ECO payments under 
the Green Deal. 
 
40% of homes (34,000) have cavity walls. Of these, two-thirds (22,500) have not been 
insulated. 

Wall insulation in Harrow

58%26%

14%

2%

Solid (uninsulated)

Cavity (uninsulated)

Cavity (insulated)

Other

 
 
 
 
In summary: 
 

• 67,750 Loft insulations 
 

• 49,300 Solid wall insulations 
 

• 22,500 Cavity wall insulation 
 
 
Need to be carried out over the next five to ten years in Harrow.  The vast majority of these will 
be in the private sector 

118



Appendix I 
 

1 

 
 

Harrow Council 
 

Delivering Warmer Homes 
 

 
HECA Report 

to the 
Secretary of State for Energy and Climate Change 

 
 

CONSULTATION DRAFT 
 
 

For the period April 2013 to March 2018 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

119



Appendix I 
 

2 

 Contents 
 

1. Introduction 
 
2. The Effects of Cold Homes 

 
3. The Challenge 

 
4. Supporting low-income families 

 
5. The Green Deal 

  
6. Housing sectors 

a. Owner occupied 
b. Private rented sector 
c. Social and council housing 

 
7. Action Plan 
 

 
  

 
Appendices:    
A Further Reading 
B Options for a Green Deal Programme 
C Distribution of household type by ward 
 

 
 
 

Public consultation questions

120



Appendix I 
 

3 

1. Introduction 
 
This document is the Council’s Report to the Secretary of State for Energy and Climate Change 
under the Home Energy Conservation Act 2000.  It is the Council and its partners’ plan for 
improving energy efficiency of the borough’s housing stock and builds on the previous strategy 
(published in July 2011). 
 
A person’s home can have a major impact on the quality of their life and general health, 
wellbeing and plays an important role in sustaining communities. The Council has been 
reviewing its strategies and policies following the government’s reforms to welfare and housing. 
Particularly, important to this strategy is the council’s development of its housing and related 
strategies. This strategy contributes to the delivery of the Council’s Housing Strategy, the 
Private Sector Housing Strategy and its Climate Change strategy.  
 
In the development of this report we have also addressed the following issues: 
 
Health:  The publication of the Cold Weather Plan, by the NHS, in 2011, which identified the 
clear links between cold homes and poor health: -  

• On average 27,000 excess deaths occur during December to March each year. 

• The estimated cost to the NHS of ill health and hospital admissions during this 
period is £850m each year 

Poor health of residents also places additional burdens on the council’s social services.  
 
Wellbeing: The transfer of Wellbeing functions to local authorities under the Health Act 2012 
has resulted in the development of a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Harrow 2012-
2015, which also seeks to address the health impacts of cold homes. The strategy consists of 
seven priority topics, including long term conditions, worklessness, cancer, poverty, dementia, 
mental health and supporting parents and the community to protect children and maximise their 
life chances.. 
 
Energy costs:  In recent years energy costs have risen significantly above the level of inflation. 
This trend is expected to continue as fossil fuels become more difficult and costly to extract. 
Global demand is increasing and there are concerns about the security of our energy supplies. 
We need to invest significantly in our energy infrastructure to replace old, inefficient and high 
C02 output generating capacity. 
 
Energy prices: Households in the borough currently spend approximately £120m a year on gas 
and electricity. This is a significant expenditure which is spent outside of the local economy. 
OFGEM predicts that energy costs will rise by between 20% and 60% by 2020. Improving 
energy efficiency of the housing stock would therefore protect people from rising energy costs 
and help to retain spending within the local economy. 
 
Economy:  The current economic situation means that people’s real incomes are under 
pressure and , for some people, are falling in real terms. Together with rising energy costs, we 
expect more households to fall into fuel poverty. Changes to the benefit system are also 
expected to impact adversely on people with low incomes. 
 
Welfare reform: The Government is current introducing the biggest overhaul of the benefits 
system since 1940. The Welfare Reform Act aims to simplify the system, improve the incentives 
to work and cut the welfare bill by £18bn by 2015. The changes cover: the introduction of 
universal credit, a cap on the total benefits an individual or couple can receive, changes to 

121



Appendix I 
 

4 

housing benefit, Disability Living Allowance, Employment Support Allowance, and localisation of 
the social fund and council tax support. 
 
Fuel Poverty: The government is consulting on proposed changes to the way in which fuel 
poverty is measured in England. The previous definition was where a household spent more 
than 10% of its income on electricity and gas. The suggested new definition is to identify Low 
Income High Cost (LIHC) as the measure 
 
Climate change: We know that carbon dioxide emissions and the resulting increase in levels of 
Co2 in the atmosphere are driving climate change. Half of our emissions in Harrow come from 
heating our homes. Poor standards of insulation mean that much of the heat we use is 
effectively wasted.  
 
The Green Deal: The introduction of the Green Deal in October 2012 and the end of the 
previous energy efficiency initiatives such as CERT and CESP 
 
Core Outcomes; The Council has agreed a set of Core Outcomes, as a way of articulating 
where they wish to focus the Council’s limited resources and capacity to deliver maximum 
impact. Improving the energy efficiency of housing addresses the following Core Outcomes:- 

• 3 Harrow residents are helped to overcome poverty, worklessness and 
homelessness 

• 4 Harrow residents enjoy good mental health 

• 5 Harrow residents are able to lead independent and fulfilling lives 

• 6 Harrow residents are healthy and live longer 

• 9 Harrow residents and businesses enjoy local economic prosperity 

• 10 Harrow residents and businesses minimise their impact on the environment 

• 14 Narrow the gap in educational attainment in Harrow. 
These outcomes covers fuel poverty and is particularly important/timely given the knock on 
effect of welfare reform reducing household income and pushing more people into fuel poverty. 
 
HECA: New guidance under HECA, which requires the council to establish a programme that 
will improve the thermal efficiency of all housing types and all residents. Under the timetable, in 
the HECA guidance, the council needs to develop and publish a report to the SoS by 31 March 
2013 setting out the energy conservation measures that the council considers practicable, cost-
effective and likely to result in significant improvement in the energy efficiency of residential 
accommodation in its area. Progress reports will be required at two-yearly intervals. 
 
This HECA report aims to  

1. Increase the energy efficiency of homes in the private rented, social 
housing , and owner occupied sectors. 

2. Ensure that vulnerable groups such as the elderly, the disabled and 
children under the age of 16 are put first. 

3. Provide advice on benefit and employment to maximise incomes. 

4. Work together to ensure that the strategy is properly resourced and carried 
out. 

5. Review progress and adapt policies to meet changing circumstances. 

 

122



Appendix I 
 

5 

These aims and objectives will be delivered through the action plan, which is at the back of this 
document. The action plan sets out in more detail, how we will deliver the objectives, who will 
deliver these objectives and over what period we will aim to deliver these. 
 
 
 
Partners: 
Harrow Council  
Harrow PCT 
Harrow CCG 
North West London Hospitals NHS Trust 
Greener Harrow 
Metropolitan Police 
Fire Brigade 
Job Centre Plus 
Department for Work and Pensions 
Age Concern Harrow 
Citizens Advice Bureau 
Registered Providers (Housing Associations) 
Delivery Providers (Contractors/ Energy companies?) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

123



Appendix I 
 

6 

2.  The Effects of Cold Homes  
 

Health implication of cold homes 
The UK’s Chief Medical Officer highlighted in his Annual Report, 2009 that living in cold, damp 
homes is a major cause of illness: -  

• two days after a cold snap begins there is a large increase in heart attacks;  

• five days later strokes peak; and  

• 12 days later respiratory conditions reach a maximum.  
There is also a range of sub-clinical conditions where people are not admitted to hospitals, GPs 
surgeries or clinics, but have to take time off work, such as the common cold.  The report 
suggests that the most effective preventative healthcare approach is to promote a home 
insulation programme, every £1 of which will result in 42p savings in healthcare costs.  
 

 
Table 2.1: Effect of temperature on health 
  

Indoor temperature Effect 

21 °C Recommended living room temperature 

18 °C Minimum temperature with no health risk, though may feel cold 

Under 16 °C Resistance to respiratory disease may be diminished 

9–12 °C Increases blood pressure and risk of cardiovascular disease 

5 °C High risk of hypothermia 

 
 
The Cold Weather Plan, published by the NHS in 2011, set out: - 

• There are, on average, 27,000 excess deaths occur during December to March each 
year. 

• The estimated cost to the NHS of ill health and hospital admissions during this period 
is £850m each year 

  
 
Health and Well-being Strategy  
The Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board have developed a Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy to identify the inequalities in health in Harrow and to highlight the areas where actions 
can be taken to address them.  The strategy aims to bring together a wide variety of areas that 
impact on health and make those links explicit.   
 
No single person or agency determines a populations’ health.  Our age, gender and genetic 
makeup, our decisions we take about our lifestyle and the way we interact with society around 
us all have an impact on our health.  Where we live, what we do, how much we earn, the quality 
of our food, our water, our natural and built environment and what services are available to us 
can make us more or less healthy.   
 
The priority topic “long term conditions” has a significant impact on peoples wellbeing and 
quality of life.  Coronary Vascular Disease is the highest and respiratory disease the 3rd highest 
cause of death in Harrow.  Standard of living has a significant impact on the individual impacted 

124



Appendix I 
 

7 

with the condition and also their family.  Effective prevention will have a long term impact on the 
rate of long term conditions. 
 
“Poverty” has an impact right through a person’s life: from a poor start as a child, poorer 
education attainment leading to a lack of control over their lives, lower paid and low grade work 
and a poor standard of living. 
 
“Dementia” is associated with older people and as well as impacting on the individual, places a 
burden on carers and other family members affecting their ability to maintain their employment 
and their standard of living 
 
 
 
Educational implication of cold homes 
The Chief Medical Officer’s report also says that childhood asthma incidence increases 
significantly with cold.  This results in time off school, affecting educational progress.  According 
to the report, a home insulation programme can achieve up to a 50% reduction in pupil absence 
from school, increasing educational achievement. 
 
 
 
 
 
In summary, the Health and Well-being benefits of warm homes are 
 

• Increased life expectancy; 

• Reduced  health inequalities; 

• Improved mental and physical health; 

• Improved  school attendance and educational achievements; 

• reduced incidence of childhood asthma; 

• It promotes social health and independent living; and  

• Reduced admissions to hospitals and care homes. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

125



Appendix I 
 

8 

3.  The Challenge 

Welfare reform: Local modelling of welfare reform has identified a disproportionate impact on 
children and families. Large families are hardest hit by the cap on housing benefit and the 
overall benefits cap. Growing up in poverty, for which fuel poverty can be one proxy or an early 
sign of a more serious problem, has a profound impact on life chances, particularly for children 
with children more likely to leave school with fewer qualifications which translates to lower 
earnings over the course of a working life and more complicated health histories which also 
impact on earning potential and quality of life. 
 

Housing Benefit: 

 

 

The Energy Market: Collective purchasing/switching is an innovative way for consumers to 
group together and use market power to negotiate lower energy bills. The council will submit a 
bid to DECC under their Local Authority Competition 2012-13 to fund a programme under the 
Cheaper Energy Together scheme to develop some new approaches prior to March 2013. 

 

Changing behaviour: Over the last five years the council has delivered a number of free 
schemes across the borough helping approx. 9000 homes to improve their energy efficiency. 
Even in a period of rising fuel prices and concerns about the environment, a significant number 
of people have not made use of opportunities to improve the energy efficiency of their home. 
The challenge for the council is to overcome people’s unwillingness to take up these 
opportunities and enable households to make better use of the available measures. The council 
will submit a bid to DECC under their Local Authority Competition 2012-13 to fund a programme 
under the Green Deal Pioneer Places Fund to develop some new approaches prior to March 
2013. As part of this we will explore whether council tax rebates will contribute towards greater 
up-take.  

 

Housing conditions: The energy efficiency of homes is calculated by a Standard Assessment 
Procedure (SAP), which provides a standardised method for comparison. Every home in 
England which is bought or sold must have an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC). This also 
applies to rented accommodation. In addition the EPC also. provides information about how the 
energy efficiency of the property could be improved.  In Harrow about 27,000 properties have 
been provided with an EPC since the scheme started in 20XX 
 
INSERT Up to date EPC data? 

Table 3.1:  SAP Rating of existing homes 
 

 Sector % of housing 
stock 

Current 
SAP rating 

 Owner occupier 70 49 

 Council owned 6 65 

 Housing 
Association 

4.4 ? 

 Private renting 20 49 

 Other 0.6 ? 
 

 

126



Appendix I 
 

9 

 
Whilst the average SAP rating for new-build housing is 80, (an EPC rating of C), existing homes 
have a lower (in some cases substantially lower) SAP rating  - see Table 3.1. Retrofitting the 
existing housing stock, particularly outside of public ownership, is the main challenge to 
improving the average rating across the borough.  The position in relation to council housing is 
better than the average property. Table 3.2 summarises our current knowledge of council 
housing stock. At present, the SAP/EPC rating is not known for one-in-three of council houses.  
 

Table 3.2:  The number of council homes in different SAP/EPC bands 

 SAP/EPC rating EPC band No. of homes Percentage 

 92 plus A - - 

 81 - 91 B 243 4.9 

 69 – 80 C 1274 25.6 

 55 – 68 D 1222 24.6 

 39 – 54 E 443 8.9 

 21 – 38 F 108 2.2 

 1 - 20 G 19 0.4 

 Not rated yet  1660 33.4 

 

 
 
Energy Savings Trust data(1) indicates the following: - 

 

(1) 
This data is the best available at present but it excludes energy efficiency improvements that have been carried 

out independtly by residents or as a result of loft conversions and other improvements. 

 

Two thirds of carbon emissions (excluding transport) in Harrow come from residents’ homes.  

Carbon Emissions in Harrow

66%

34%

Homes Other

 
 
 
 
 

127



Appendix I 
 

10 

75% of homes in the borough (63,750) have loft insulation that falls below current 
recommended standards (i.e. 270 mm). 

Loft Insulation levels in Harrow

75%

25%

Inadequate To standard

 
 
 
 
58% of homes (49,300) in the borough have solid walls. The vast majority of these not been 
insulated. Solid wall insulation is expensive but is expected to qualify for ECO payments under 
the Green Deal. 
 
40% of homes (34,000) have cavity walls. Of these, two-thirds (22,500) have not been 
insulated. 

Wall insulation in Harrow

58%26%

14%

2%

Solid (uninsulated)

Cavity (uninsulated)

Cavity (insulated)

Other

 
 
 
In summary: 

• 67,750 Loft insulations 

• 49,300 Solid wall insulations 

• 22,500 Cavity wall insulation 
 
 
It is anticipated that the vast majority of these will be in the private sector. This represents a 
significant amount of work. Appendix B sets out the scale of works on a ten year or fifteen year 
programme. Both scenarios assume that the first two years of the programme will build capacity 
before the programme is fully developed 
 

128



Appendix I 
 

11 

BOX 1 
 
Energy Efficiency Improvements 
The following are the major improvements that are available to improve the energy efficiency of homes 
as part of a retrofit programme:  
 
Loft Insulation (LI): This is a well established method of reducing heat loss through the loft space. The 
thickness of recommended insulation has increased significantly over recent years with 270mm of fibre-
glass or rock-wool now the recommended thickness. Many homes therefore require the existing 
insulation to be topped up. A significant barrier to this is that many people use loft space as a storage 
area and are reluctant to clear the loft or face the expense of boarding out the loft above the new level of 
insulation 
 
Cavity Wall Insulation (CWI): a well established and simple method of reducing heat loss through 
cavity walls 
 
Solid Wall Insulation(SWI): Solid wall insulation is not a widespread solution, at present, in the UK. It is 
significantly more expensive that CWI and LI. It is also much more disruptive to install. Two options are 
available –  
External SWI: This is applied to the exterior of the building envelope, which has the advantage of 

encasing the thermal mass of the building within the insulation – improving heat retention – but 
is visually more obvious. This is usually carried out in one installation covering the whole house 

Internal SWI: This is applied internally. The most obvious disadvantage is that this reduces the size of 
the rooms by the thickness of the insulation – an important consideration for small rooms. It is 
obviously disruptive to internal decorations. An ideal opportunity is to carry this work out when 
the home is empty and/or being renovated. It is possible to carry this work out room by room 

 
Hot water cylinder insulation:  Most modern hot water cylinders are equipped with integral insulation to 
prevent heat loss. Where insulation is not provided, hot water cylinders jackets can lead to big 
improvements in heat loss.  
 
Double glazing; This is a well established technology that not only cuts heat loss through the glazed 
area but also incorporates good draught-proofing. Standards of thermal performance have improved 
significantly over the years so it can be anticipated that the normal process of window replacement 
would lead to ongoing improvement 
 
A-rated boilers: Modern condensing boilers are significantly more efficient that boilers that were 
installed even a decade ago. Over time, normal replacement of old boilers will lead to an improvement in 
average performance 
 
Heating controls: Modern heating programmer and thermostatic radiator valves (TRVs) allow much 
greater control of heating systems and help people to reduce their energy consumption 

 
 

129



Appendix I 
 

12 

4. Supporting low-income families 
 

Affordable warmth means that a household is able to afford to heat their home to the level 
necessary for their comfort and health.  
 
4.1 Measuring Fuel Poverty 
DECC is consulting on proposals to change the way that fuel poverty is measured. The change 
proposes a change to the former definition (that a household is in fuel poverty if it spends more 
than 10% of its income on fuel) to a more targeted approach that uses a measure called Low 
Income High Cost (LIHC) to identify households in fuel poverty. At the point of writing it is 
unclear when this change will become effective 
 
Across the UK, this more targeted measure would result in fewer households being considered 
to be in fuel poverty. One of the rationales behind the change is that the figure would be less 
liable to statistical fluctuations.  
 
One of the very important changes to the indicator, is that housing costs would be taken into 
account in calculating fuel poverty. This would shift the distribution towards families and away 
from pensioners. The rationale for this is that a high proportion of pensioners may own their 
home (and paid off their mortgage) and therefore have relatively lower housing costs. 
 
The overall effect in London would mean that there were still about 430,000 homes in fuel 
poverty but the distribution would be significantly different.  
 
Table 4.1 shows the distribution by ward of different types of homes in the borough. We will use 
this to help us prioritise targeted retrofit programmes 
 
 

  Table 4.1 - Comparison of distribution of fuel poverty  

Description of Household LIHC 
% 

10% 
% 

Couples with dependent child(ren) 23.8 8.5 

Lone parent with dependent child(ren) 19.8 8.9 

Couple, no dependent children, 60 and over 14.5 18.9 

One person, under 60 13.7 19.6 

One person, 60 and over 10.7 31.1 

Couple, no dependent children, under 60 8.7 6.4 

Other multi-person households 8.7 6.6 

 
 
 
 
Appendix C shows the distribution of households across the borough. This information is also 
available at Super Output Area level and will be used to target area-based schemes

130



Appendix I 

 

4.2 Harrow Housewarmers.  
In 2011/12, we ran the Harrow Housewarmers programme, which was funded by the 
DoH, with the aim of targeting vulnerable people living in cold homes over the winter 
period. The project was delivered by a partnership of Harrow council, Harrow PCT, 
Age UK (Harrow), CAB (Harrow) and Northwest London Hospitals Trust. The 
following broad aims were established 

• Working together:  To identify low-income and fuel poor families in a co-
ordinated way. We used a check-list approach promoted by the NEA to 
identify households requiring help.   

• Improving awareness:  Housing and council tax benefit recipients were made 
aware of the schemes for improving the insulation and heating in their homes 
(i.e. Warm Front). Recipients of income benefits usually qualify for free 
insulation measures under these schemes.  

• Referring  to other schemes:  We referred people to national and regional 
programmes such as Warm Front and Warm Zones Where possible we also 
referred unsuccessful applicants for housing benefit to the subsidised, Able-to-
Pay schemes for improving insulation and heating and provided financial 
assistance from the council’s Affordable Warmth budget to increase the 
subsidy further by offering discounts on loft and cavity wall insulation 

• Maximising income:  We provided advice to residents on debt and fuel debt 
and checked benefit entitlement to ensure that household income was 
maximised. 

• Tariff switching: We helped people to switch to lower cost tariffs under the 
Save and Smile tariff switching scheme administered by Energy Helpline (a 
joint London Borough of Harrow and London Borough of Hillingdon scheme).  

 
We have bid for a similar scheme for the coming winter, again funded by the DoH, 
which would allow us to run the programme from December 2012 to the end of March 
2013. See link in Appendix A for details of the bid 
 

We will aim to run similar programmes each winter - subject to funding 

 

4.3 Affordable Warmth budget 
A growth bid for £75,000 a year of revenue (from April 2013)  has been submitted to 
the council fund the council’s affordable warmth programme (Note: this is subject to 
confirmation.)  This would replace the current £75,000 capital budget. This change 
would enable to the council to use the money more flexibly to support initiatives to 
improve insulation or other schemes which would protect the vulnerable.  

 

4.4 Feed-in Tariffs 
Solar PV installations, where suitable (generally south-facing) roofs exist attract 
Feed-in Tariff payments to help meet the installation costs. Where occupants can 
benefit from the use of electricity generated during the day, solar pv has a role to play 
in reducing fuel costs (as the energy is effectively free to the resident). 

131



Appendix I 
 

14 

5.0  The Green Deal  

The Green Deal is the government’s flagship initiative to retrofit the UK’s existing 
building stock. It is a Pay-As-You-Save (PAYS) approach where finance is provided 
to households and organisations to install energy efficiency and energy supply 
measures. The cost of the measures is attached to the property and then repaid 
through a charge on the building’s electricity meter over a number of years. 

 
The Golden Rule is that the charge attached to the energy bill should not exceed the 
expected savings, and the length of the payback period should not exceed the 
expected lifetime of the measures. Only measures that meet this rule will be eligible 
under the Green Deal. 
 
Energy Company Obligation 
The exceptions to the Golden Rule are where homes have solid walls, or where 
homes are unlikely to make savings on their fuel bills as a result of the Green Deal 
(i.e. the fuel poor). These will be supported through the Energy Company Obligation 
(ECO). 
The ECO is expected to be worth £1.3 bn a year and will be split into three parts: - 

• The Affordable Warmth Target (£350m) – will support fuel poor households 
which are unlikely to make enough savings on energy bills to make the Golden 
Rule work. 

• The Carbon Savings Communities obligation (£190m) – support for the 
poorest areas, of which there is only one in Harrow (SOA 217). 

• The Carbon Reduction Target (£760m) -  will subsidise solid wall insulation 
etc. 

 

The Affordable Warmth Target aims to reduce fuel poverty. Those eligible will be 
people claiming certain benefits and tax credits. Only those living in private housing 
will be eligible for support. It is proposed that to ensure that energy companies 
undertake more expensive measures, such as solid wall insulation, in fuel poor 
homes, a voluntary agreement will be made where energy companies will undertake 
at least one measure in eligible homes referred to them from government – for 
example through health services. 
 
 
5.2 Understanding the potential scope of works 
The council sees the Green Deal as being a method that can introduce a step 
change in the approach to improving the energy efficiency of homes in the borough.  
 
We have modelled the size of the programme if it is to be delivered over a ten year 
and fifteen year time frame. This is set out in more detail in Appendix B. In both 
scenarios we envisage that 2013/14 and 2014/15 we will need to build capacity and 
also develop the market. At present we are minded to approach this as a fifteen year 
programme 
 
 
 
The range of measures that can be installed under the Green Deal have different 
degrees of market readiness. This is shown in Table 5.2. 

132



Appendix I 
 

15 

 
 Table 5.2: Market readiness of Green Deal measures 

Measure Market 
Demand from residents 

Supply 
Developed capacity to 

install 

Loft insulation Barriers to uptake Fully developed 

Cavity wall Insulation Barriers to uptake Fully developed 

Solid wall insulation Very little demand Limited capacity 

Solar PV Limited demand Some capacity 

Solar HW Limited demand Limited capacity 

Heat pumps Very little demand Limited capacity 

Double glazing Fully developed Fully developed 

“A” rated boilers Fully developed Fully developed 

 
 
Where both the market and supply capacity is fully developed (i.e. double glazing and 
gas boilers) there is no barrier to introducing improvements. The Green Deal will offer 
households a method of financing these improvements.  
 
Other technologies need to boost both demand and installation capacity before a 
wide-spread programme can be undertaken. 
 
in setting out a fifteen year programme Harrow believes that we will be able to: - 

• remove barriers to uptake of demand,  

• stimulate demand where it is currently limited.  

• develop supply side capacity. 
 
 
 
5.3 The council’s role 
The government envisages three potential roles for local authorities: - 
1. Provider. The council becomes a Green Deal Provider, provides finance and can 
install measures directly 
2. Partner. The council works in partnership with a Green Deal Provider to facilitate 
delivery of the Green Deal to its residents 
3. Promoter. The council acts as a local advocate for the Green Deal 
 
Higher levels of participation carry more financial risk but offer the opportunity to 
maximise inward investment from ECO and bring employment benefits to the 
borough (as well as the associated social and environmental benefits). 
 
At present, the council believes that Partner is the most appropriate role for Harrow 
as it builds on previous retrofit programmes such as Warm Front, Warm Zones and 
RE:NEW and can largely be delivered within existing staff resources

133



Appendix I 
 

16 

6. Housing sectors 

 

6a. Owner-occupied properties 

Owner-occupied properties account for 70% of all homes in the borough. As the 
largest sector of housing in the borough, delivering change in this sector is  vital to 
the borough’s aim of improving energy efficiency of its housing stock. 

 
The Green Deal offers home-owners opportunities to undertake retrofits to improve 
the energy efficiency of their home. In Harrow Knowledge of the Green Deal is limited 
and it will require a significant publicity drive to make people aware of the 
opportunities presented by it. Of particular significance in Harrow is the Energy 
Company Obligation (ECO) through which help with costly measures such as solid 
wall insulation and other assistance to  fuel poor households will be available 
 
The council will continue to support energy reduction initiatives and provide 
assistance to the fuel poor using its Affordable Warmth budget.  
 
 

6b. The private rented sector 

The private rented sector accounts for 20% of our housing stock and is growing. 
Traditionally, this is one of the more difficult sectors to install improvement measures 
and raise standards. This is because landlords may not be able to recoup any 
investment they have made by charging higher rents.. This is particularly the case for 
houses of multiple occupancy (HMOs). However the council has identified, through 
the draft Private Sector Housing Strategy a range of enabling and enforcement 
schemes to improve the condition of housing in this sector and it is vital to bring this 
up to the required standard by 2018. 

 
The Green Deal will also be available to the private rented sector and the 
government expects landlords to respond positively to this opportunity to upgrade 
their properties. Under the Green Deal, landlords will not be allowed to let any 
property with an EPC rating less than E from April 2018. The government will have 
powers to regulate and require such improvements to be implemented but does not 
expect regulation to come into force until April 2015 at the earliest. 

Local authorities will be given the power, under the Energy Act 2011, to require 
landlords to make all energy improvements for which financial support is available – 
such as the Green Deal or ECO. The government’s intention is that this action would 
be focussed on landlords owning properties with an Energy Performance Certificate 
(EPC) rating of F or G (i.e. with an EPC rating of 38 or less). 

 

6b.2 Council housing referrals (to the private rented sector) 
Between 2009/10 and 2011/12 the council has assisted in finding private sector 
housing in more than 800 cases.1   There are a number of ways in which the Council 
works with landlords to improve the condition of their property, details of which are 
within the draft Private Sector Housing Strategy. However, where the Council does 

                                            
1
 Note: not all of these properties would be in Harrow 

134



Appendix I 
 

17 

not have a direct contractual relationship with the landlord our role is limited to 
advice, education and encouragement. The council will: -  

• Ensure properties secured through Help2Let meet minimum EPC ratings. 

• Collate and monitor EPC ratings for properties secured or brought back into 
use to meet minimum EPC ratings    

• Encourage landlords to supply EPC information in the future.   

• Although, no minimum standards for energy efficiency are currently set for 
referrals, we will continue to give preference to landlords who offer higher 
standards.  

• The council will set targets for minimum EPC standard leading up to April 
2018 

 

6b.3 Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) 
HMOs account for approx 2% of the borough’s housing stock. Since July 6 2006, it 
has been an offence to operate a licensable HMO of three storeys or more and five 
or more persons without a licence. Licensing is intended to raise the management 
and amenity standards of these types of properties in the private rented sector.. 
Since November 2010, Harrow has adopted an additional licensing scheme which 
covers all HMOs with more than four persons who are unrelated.  

The council’s Private Sector Housing Enforcement team (see Box 2) is responsible 
for carrying out inspections of HMOs under the Housing Health and Safety Rating 
System .  At the moment, the main area of focus is on fire precaution, means of fire 
escape and amenity provision (e.g. kitchens, toilets and bathroom facilities). Although 
not addressed automatically, tenants can request for energy efficiency measures to 
be inspected? HMOs are expected to have modern heating systems. Almost all 
licensed HMOs inspected have provided additional improvements through double 
glazing and central heating to address excess cold issues.  

 
6b.4 Improvement grants for landlords 
The Council has a number of grants and funding initiatives to assist landlords to 
improve the conditions of their properties. Details of this are contained within the draft 
Private Sector Housing Strategy.  Assistance from the Government is also available 
in the form of tax allowances. In particular, the Landlords Energy Saving Allowance 
provides a tax allowance of £1500 for landlords that invest in improvements such as 
cavity wall and loft insulation. 
 
Box 3 shows the grants that are available for landlords to improve their properties 

135



Appendix I 
 

18 

BOX 2 

 
The Housing Act 2004 introduced the Housing Health and Safety Rating System to help 
ensure minimum standards in housing and the requirement for certain houses in multiple 
occupation (HMOs) to be licensed 

Under HHSRS, the current minimum standard for housing is defined as not having a 
Category 1 hazard. Under HHSRS, local authorities have a legal duty to take appropriate 
action wherever a property is found to have a Category 1 hazard.  The most common 
Category 1 hazard is excess cold and unintentional falls.   They may take action for a 
Category 2 hazard, such as Excess cold 

 Local authorities also have a legal duty to carry out systematic reviews of the housing stock 
in their area for Category 1 and 2 hazards. 

HHSRS can be used to enforce action in all tenures except local authority owned stock.  
However, it is most likely to be used in private rented sector homes, which are typically the 
least energy efficient and where there are the greatest barriers to encouraging action. 

 

The Private Sector Housing Enforcement team has enforcement powers to require landlords 
to upgrade Category 1 hazards where this can be justified under the enforcement guidance.  
The procedure is to write to landlords requesting action within two weeks. Where this does 
not happen, an enforcement notice under section 11 of the Housing Act 2004 is issued. 

Enforcement measures must be reasonable as determined by the Residential Property 
Tribunal. There is no clear guidance as to whether asking landlords to install insulation is a 
reasonable measure. Letters to landlords do not recommend what action to take or offer any 
best practice advice. The only requirement is that the hazard is removed. So therefore, a 
landlord could propose to address a heating issue by doubling the capacity of the heating 
system when, in both climate change terms and affordability, it may be more sensible to add 
or increase loft insulation. 

Although the council may not be able to set out recommendations of what needs to be done 
to provide a warm home, it would be possible to issue a best practice notice to landlords 
when the first letter is sent. This could also include information on available grants and tax 
allowances.  

It is estimated that 4.8 million homes in England (22%) have Category 1 hazards present, of 
which 4.2 million are in the private sector. According to the government’s operating guidance 
on HHSRS, excess cold on its own would be enough to classify the average, un-improved, 
pre-1945 dwelling as a Category 1 hazard.  When assessing for excess cold it is not 
necessary to carry out a full SAP assessment. 

There are 29 hazards assessed under HHSRS. Those that relate to fuel poverty fall in the 
category of ‘physiological requirements’, namely damp and mould growth (hazard 1) and 
excess cold (hazard 2). Of these two, excess cold carries a far more significant threat to 
health and safety than damp. 

HHSRS operating guidance gives local authorities considerable flexibility about how to 
assess for excess cold. It states that indoor temperature is a function both of dwelling 
characteristics and of the occupying household. For the HHSRS assessment it is the 
dwelling characteristics, energy efficiency and the effectiveness of the heating system, which 
are considered, assuming occupation by a vulnerable age group. Simple measurement of 
indoor temperature is not suitable. 

The assessment should take account of the adequacy of the heating, insulation and 
ventilation. This may involve assessing the dwelling energy rating (using SAP) and other 
factors which might affect the indoor temperature, such as dampness, or disrepair to the 
structure or to the space or water heating system. 

 

136



Appendix I 

 

 
 

BOX 3  

Available Grants and Tax Allowances 

Landlords Energy Saving Allowance:  This is a scheme which provides a tax allowance of 
£1500 for landlords that invest in improvements such as cavity wall and loft insulation. 

West London Partnership – Empty Properties Grant:  The property must have been 
empty for a minimum period of twelve months to be eligible.  The level of grant will depend 
on the total cost of works required to bring the property back into habitable use, but there is a 
maximum grant of £15,000 per unit available.  The Landlord will be required to provide 
nomination rights or a lease on the property to enable the local council to use the property for 
nominated tenants for a minimum period of five years.  
 
Note: Funding comes via the West London Partnership and is due to end in April 2012. A 
West London Bid for HCA (Homes and Communities Agency) funds has been submitted, but 
it is not yet known whether this has been successful.  
 
Grants are subject to available resources 
 
Better Homes Grant:   This is a grant available to help landlords refurbish their properties to 
meet the government’s Decent Homes Standard.  Grants of up to 50% of the cost of works 
(to a maximum of £3,000 per unit) are available.  
  
The types of work that can be funded include thermal comfort, central heating, general 
repairs and health and safety hazards.  
 
The grant is only available for landlords willing to let their property through council letting 
schemes for a minimum period of two years 
 
Small Works Grants:  These are available to owner occupiers on low income up to a limit of 
£5,000. Eligibility is means tested. This is a discretionary grant and subject to available 
funding. Any grant awarded will remain as a permanent charge on the property. 

 

 

6c. Social housing 

Social housing account for just over 10% of the housing stock  (6% council, 4.4% 
social).  This sector has made good progress in raising standards due to the 
government’s drive to bring them up to the Decent Home standard.   
 
6c.1  Council housing   
The council Asset Management Strategy recognises the need to improve energy 
efficiency and this is one of its major aims. There are a number of targets, which look 
to embed energy efficiency within our improvement programme (such as the 
specification of materials used), as well as improving our understanding of the energy 
performance of our properties – therefore allowing us to target those properties which 
have a lower than average SAP rating, or those households that are classed as living 
in fuel poverty. 

Our improvement programmes have focused on: 

• Replacing fuel inefficient boilers with condensing boilers. 

• Improved heat controls such as room thermostats and thermostatic radiator 
valves. 

137



Appendix I 
 

20 

• Installation of double-glazed units. Class A windows are installed as standard. 

• Installation of good quality insulation when replacing roofs 

• Insulated cladding system at Francis Rd 

The current capital programme is approximately £6m a year to fund improvements 
and maintenance. However, there is no specific funding available for energy 
efficiency works. All investment is funded through borrowing financed through the 
rent system. There is a legal cap on the amount of money that can be borrowed and 
the scope for additional borrowing is limited.   

Objective three of the Council’s Housing Strategy  lists ‘to improve neighbours and 
quality of life achieving decent and greener homes’, as a priority with the action to 
promote energy efficiency projects. 

 
6c.2   Void policy 
Housing has 300 voids a year out of a stock of approximately 5000 properties.   

The current policy allows for:  

Description Current policy Proposed policy 

Statutory Health and 
Safety gas servicing 

New certificate issued New certificate issued 

Central Heating boiler Check age and condition – 

• Replace boilers if ??? 

Check age and condition –  

• Replace boilers if 
grade c or below 

• Provide new 7 day 
programmable timers 

• Install main room 
thermostat 

• Install TRVs on 
radiators 

Insulation Replace if damaged or 
environmentally unclean 

Renew if damaged or 
environmentally unclean 
 

Lagging of pipes/tanks Essential works to pipes 
and tanks carried out. 

 

• Renew lagging if less 
than modern 
standards. 

• Renew hot water 
cylinder jackets 

Windows Checked for the purposes 
of safety 

• Checked for the 
purposes of safety 

• Draught-proofing 
installed on single 
glazed windows 

Doors  • Checked for the 
purposes of safety 

• Draught-proofing 
installed 

Turn round time 21 days 21 days 

 

Voids offer an opportunity to update the council’s database with the SAP/EPC rating 
for each property. This is a priority action in the Asset Management Strategy.  

138



Appendix I 
 

21 

Currently, the work to gather EPC/SAP data is only carried out once a property 
becomes void (by an external provider).   

 
6c.3  Insulation in council housing 
The majority of cavity walls in council housing have been insulated.  Over the next 
year, we will complete the condition survey of all council homes.  This will help us 
establish the requirements and scale of a retrofit programme which will help deliver 
the targets set in the climate change strategy. 

By the end of December 2012, we aim to have installed cavity wall insulation to all 
council, and council leaseholder homes, and to have topped up all loft insulation to 
current standards (i.e. 270mm of insulation).  

This work has been carried out by an external partner, accessing CERT funding to 
complete the programme.  Following completion of these works, we will look to 
access further funding to target solid wall insulation throughout our tenanted and 
leasehold properties. [No. of homes with solid walls?] 

 
6c.4  EPC assessment/SAP rating  
While there has been good progress on raising the average warmth standards in the 
sector, there are still properties which have low standards (as measured by SAP 
ratings). 

New tenants are supplied with EPC ratings for the homes they move into. EPC data 
is centrally recorded and we have recently started to import this data into other stock 
condition information.  

The information that we receive from our partners following the programme of cavity 
wall and loft insulation works will also improve our knowledge of the energy 
performance of our housing stock. 
 
For us to be more pro-active with this there are two options: - 

1. We could train internal staff to assist with the collection of data. It is unlikely 
that existing staff would find capacity within their current roles to be able to 
carry out EPC’s on our properties at the rate that we require.  It also isn’t listed 
as a work priority currently, gathering stock condition data to inform the 
planned investment programme (looking at the ages of elements such as 
boilers, windows, doors etc) is the main/only priority for our stock condition 
surveyor.  Other surveyors have very specific duties around day-to-day repairs 
and planned improvement works. 

2. We could employ a dedicated staff resource on a nine month contract to allow 
the remaining EPC data to be collected. Estimated costs £35k 

 
6c.5  Registered Providers (i.e Housing Associations) 
RP’s work to the same requirements in respect of the Decent Homes standard as 
councils and all new homes are required to be at Code level 4 (from April 2011). The 
housing association stock in Harrow is generally much more modern than the 
Council’s and will therefore on average have higher EPC/SAP ratings. RP’s will also 
have similar asset management strategies to that of the Council which will include 
targets in respect of improved energy efficiency and fuel poverty.  

 

139



Appendix I 

7.       Draft Action Plan 
Ref Description Measure of success Who Date 

 

22 

Local Energy Efficiency ambitions and Priorities 

1 Climate Local We have committed to Climate Local 

LINK 

Climate change Nov 2012 

2 Emissions data Our current performance on emissions is 

http://www.decc.gov.uk/en/content/cms/statistics/climate_s
tats/gg_emissions/laco2/laco2.aspx 

 

Climate change Oct 2012 

3 Fuel poverty Fuel poverty currently affects xxxx households (xx%) 

http://www.decc.gov.uk/assets/decc/11/stats/fuel-
poverty/5267-fuel-poverty-2010-subregional-data.xls 

 

We aim to target areas with a high incidence of fuel 
poverty as part of these plans 

Climate change Ongoing 

4 Harrowhouswarmers programme We aim to run programmes each winter to provide support 
to vulnerable people to ensure that their income is 
maximised and that they have sufficient heating and food 
available to keep warm 

Climate change Annually 

 
 

Measures we are taking to improve energy efficiency in our homes 

5 Green Deal and ECO 

The Green Deal and ECO have a major role to play 
in improving the energy efficiency of homes in the 
borough. 

From April 2013 we will seek to partner with an energy 
company to provide ECO investment in Harrow. 

Climate Change April 2013 

140



Appendix I 

7.       Draft Action Plan 
Ref Description Measure of success Who Date 

 

23 

6 Feed-in-Tariffs (FIT) 

We  see the provision of Solar PV to be an 
important way in which we can help low income 
families to access free day-time electricity, where 
the orientation of the roof is suitable 

To date 269 Solar PV installations have been installed on 
homes in the borough.  

We will aim to increase this to 200 installations a year for 
low income families, with the FIT income being retained by 
the council to pay back the investment and to support 
other initiatives to help low income families 

Climate Change April 2013 

7 Renewable Heat Premium 

 

We will aim to install up to 20 homes per year with heat 
pumps as part of a programme to demonstrate the viability 
of the technology 

Climate Change From April 
2013 

8 Zero Carbon homes We will ensure that all new homes are zero carbon by 
2016 as set out in our Local Development Scheme 
document and Sustainable Design SPD 

Local Development Scheme 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/downloads/file/11800/local_deve
lopment_scheme_june_2012_-current_version 

Sustainable Design SPD 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/856/local_development_fra
mework__policy/1504/harrow_spds/4 

 

Planning  

9 EPC 

 

We will obtain information on the EPCs that have been 
undertaken to date to help us understand more accurately 
the current position in respect of energy efficiency of 
homes in the borough 

Climate Change Jan 2013 

10 Awareness training for front line contacts All contacts are aware of the issues and are able to carry 
out assessments for cold-homes  

Community care  

11 Awareness raising for the public Advertise advice etc. on Shop4support website Community care  

 

141



Appendix I 

7.       Draft Action Plan 
Ref Description Measure of success Who Date 

 

24 

 

Private Rented Sector  

(Source: Private Sector Housing Strategy 2013-15  – Strategic aim 5 - Improve energy efficiency and reduce fuel poverty) 

12 Provision of advice to HMO landlords as part of the 
inspection process 

To advise landlords of the need to improve the thermal 
efficiency if their stock in order to meet the government 
minimum EPC target of E for rented accommodation by 
2018 

Private sector 
housing 
enforcement 

April 2013 

13 Provision of advice to private sector landlords To advise landlords of 
§ legal requirement to provide and Energy Performance 

Certificate (EPC) to new tenants 
§ Landlord Energy Saving Allowance to  improve 

thermal efficiency of their properties 
Requirement to meet minimum EPC target of E by 2018 

Private sector 
housing 
enforcement 

April 2013 

14 Adoption of minimum EPC standards for referrals 
from Housing to the PRS  

– including Help2Let scheme 

To use the Council’s “purchasing power” to drive the 
market to improve the energy rating of rented homes 
within the borough.. i.e. Minimum EPC ratings: - 

• F or higher 

• E or higher 

Housing needs  
 
 
April 2015 
April 2018 

15 Provision of advice to tenants as to the statutory 
requirements that a landlord should meet when 
letting a property 

To make tenants aware that landlords need to provide 
them with 
§ A current Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) 
§ A Gas Safety Certificate 
§ An Electrical Safety Certificate 
§ Fire regulations on soft furnishings 

? April 2013 

16 Adopt a policy to use an Energy Performance 
Certificate (EPC) rating of F or G in PRS as an 
automatic trigger for a full HHRSR inspection of a 
home to determine whether a category one hazard 

An EPC rating of F or G is an indication that there is 
category one HHSRS hazard in the property relating to 
excess cold. 
 

Private sector 
housing 
enforcement 

April 2013 

142



Appendix I 

7.       Draft Action Plan 
Ref Description Measure of success Who Date 

 

25 

exists 

17 Actively promote the Green Deal to owner 
occupiers and tenants and landlords in the PRS 

Housing accounts for 66% of carbon emissions in Harrow. 
Reducing energy consumption in homes is therefore the 
single most effective measure needed to meet the carbon 
reduction targets in the Climate Change Act. 

 April 2013 

 
 
 

Council Housing 

18 EPC survey Complete EPC surveys on all remaining properties 

Estimated costs - £35k 

Housing asset 
management 

April to 
Dec 2013 

19 Insulation programme – cavity walls Ensure all cavity walls  are filled. 

 

Housing asset 
management 

Oct 2013 

20 Insulation programme - lofts All lofts insulated with 270mm of insulation 

 

Housing asset 
management 

Oct 2013 

21 Insulation programme – solid walls Look to work with Green Deal Provider to obtain funding 
to carry out a programme of solid wall insulation 

Housing asset 
management 

Date? 

22 Insulation programme - Minimum SAP rating 

 

Look to work with Green Deal Provider to obtain funding 
to carry out a programme achieve SAP rating >65 (D 
rating) for all council properties. Currently estimated to be 
c. 1000 properties 

Housing asset 
management 

Date? 

23 Solar PV panels? Installing Solar PV could be used to help the fuel poor, 
where roof orientation is appropriate.  

This will require some additional finance with the council 
retaining the feed-in tariffs to service the investment. 

Housing asset 
management 

From 
April 2013 

143



Appendix I 

7.       Draft Action Plan 
Ref Description Measure of success Who Date 

 

26 

There is currently no budget for this.  

COST? 

24 RHI Heat pumps? We will look at this following the completion 
of the insulation programme as a further action to 
undertake (dependent upon available funding) 

Housing asset 
management 

Date? 

25 Voids Introduce revised policy on voids 

COSTS? 

Housing asset 
management 

From 
April 2013 

26 Information campaign to tenants Raising awareness and better management of energy by 
tenants through information leaflets handed out during 
major/minor works, and publications such as Homing 
In/better utilisation of the website 

Housing asset 
management 

From 
April 2013 

27 Staff training Train up staff to carry out EPC’s where possible, and to 
provide information and advice to residents where energy 
efficiency/fuel poverty is identified as an issue.   

We could also look at extending the staffing resource 
within the team to compensate for the added workload. 

Housing Asset 
Management 

From 
April 2013 

28 Specifications for major works We will ensure that we ask any potential contractors to 
provide us with energy efficiency proposals as part of their 
tender for works to embed this as part of our 
improvements to existing properties.   

We will also ensure that the specifications for the 
materials used in any major works take energy efficiency 
measures into account. 

Housing Asset 
Management 

 

 
 
 

144



Appendix I 

7.       Draft Action Plan 
Ref Description Measure of success Who Date 

 

27 

Registered Providers 

29 Insulation programme  Housing 
Partnerships and 
Strategy 

?? 

30 Solar PV panels? Improved average SAP/EPC rating Housing 
Partnerships and 
Strategy 

April 2015 

31 RHI Solar Hot water? 

Heat pumps? 

  

 
 

 

Measures we propose to cost effectively deliver energy improvements in residential accommodation  

- by using Area Based/Street by Street roll out 

32 Identify local partners for area based energy 
measures 

tbc   

33 Identify target areas and priority roll-out 

 

tbc   

34 Determine any synergies with other refurbishment 
work and other Local authority objectives  

E.g. Area regeneration,  

ECO Carbon Saving Communities Obligation 

tbc   

145



Appendix I 

7.       Draft Action Plan 
Ref Description Measure of success Who Date 

 

28 

 

Time Frame for Delivery and National and Local Partners 

 We will work with the GLA to roll out a London-wide Green Deal scheme 

 

 

 Our local partners  

 We believe the value of our plans will be worth £65m to local business over the next five years  

 The measures we propose will require £30m of investment from the Energy Company Obligation  

 
Signed off by ………………………… 
 
Position….. Chief Executive 
 
 

146



Appendix I 

 

 
Appendix A: Further Reading 
 
Cold Weather Plan 
- NHS 
https://www.wp.dh.gov.uk/publications/files/2012/10/9211-TSO-NHS-Cold-
Weather-Plan_Accessible-main-doc.pdf 
 
 
Local Authorities and the Green Deal  
- DECC 
http://www.decc.gov.uk/assets/decc/11/consultation/green-deal/3499-local-
authorities-green-deal-info.pdf 
 
 
Guidance to English Energy Conservation Authorities issued pursuant to 
the Home Energy Conservation Act 1995 
- DECC 
http://www.decc.gov.uk/assets/decc/11/tackling-climate-change/saving-energy-
co2/5992-guidance-to-english-energy-conservation-authoritie.pdf 
 
 
Improving energy efficiency in buildings: resources guide for Local 
Authorities 
- DECC 
http://www.decc.gov.uk/assets/decc/11/tackling-climate-change/green-deal/6746-
improving-energy-efficiency-in-buildings-resource.pdf 
 
 
How Local Authorities can reduce emissions and manage climate risk 
- Committee on Climate change 
http://hmccc.s3.amazonaws.com/Local%20Authorites/LA%20Report_final.pdf 
 
 
Housing evidence base 
http://www.harrow.gov.uk/info/200003/housing_policies_and_planning_for_housi
ng/2522/housing_evidence_base 

 
 

 
 
 

147



Appendix B: Options for Green Deal Programme  

 

30 

Assumptions

1

2 10% of cavity wall insulations will qualify for ECO Affordable Warmth

3 80% of solid wall insulations will qualify for ECO Carbon Reduction

4 10% of solar PV installations will qualify for ECO Affordable Warmth

5 10% of solar HW installations will qualify for ECO Affordable Warmth

6 20% of heat pump installations will qualify for ECO Affordable Warmth

7 10% of double glazing installations will qualify for ECO Affordable Warmth

8 Double glazing market is fully developed - 25 year replacement cycle

9 10% of boiler installations will qualify for ECO Carbon Reduction

10 Boiler replacement market is fully developed - 15 year replacement cycle

11 Employment, energy and carbon savings assume an average of 2 measures per household

10% of Loft insulations will qualify for ECO Affordable Warmth

148



Appendix B: Options for Green Deal Programme  

 

31 

10 Year programme Loft insulation

Cavity Wall 

insulation

Solid wall 

insulation

Solar PV                   

4 kw systems Solar HW Heat pumps Summary

Double 

Glazing

A rated 

boilers TOTALS

Total of measures to be done 67,750 22,500 49,300 139,550

Measures per Year

2013/14 2,500 1,000 200 100 10 10 3,820 3,000 5,000 11,820

2014/15 5,000 2,000 1,000 500 50 50 8,600 3,000 5,000 16,600

2015/16 7,500 2,500 6,000 500 50 50 16,600 3,000 5,000 24,600

2016/17 7,500 2,500 6,000 500 50 50 16,600 3,000 5,000 24,600

2017/18 7,500 2,500 6,000 500 50 50 16,600 3,000 5,000 24,600

Totals 62,220 102,220

Budget price per measure 300 300 5,000 6,000 4,000 5,000 3,000 2,000

2013/14 750,000 300,000 1,000,000 600,000 40,000 50,000 2,740,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 21,740,000

2014/15 1,500,000 600,000 5,000,000 3,000,000 200,000 250,000 10,550,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 29,550,000

2015/16 2,250,000 750,000 30,000,000 3,000,000 200,000 250,000 36,450,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 55,450,000

2016/17 2,250,000 750,000 30,000,000 3,000,000 200,000 250,000 36,450,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 55,450,000

2017/18 2,250,000 750,000 30,000,000 3,000,000 200,000 250,000 36,450,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 55,450,000

Totals 122,640,000 217,640,000

ECO contribution 30 30 4,000 600 400 1,000 300 200

2013/14 75,000 30,000 800,000 60,000 4,000 10,000 979,000 900,000 1,000,000 2,879,000

2014/15 150,000 60,000 4,000,000 300,000 20,000 50,000 4,580,000 900,000 1,000,000 6,480,000

2015/16 225,000 75,000 24,000,000 300,000 20,000 50,000 24,670,000 900,000 1,000,000 26,570,000

2016/17 225,000 75,000 24,000,000 300,000 20,000 50,000 24,670,000 900,000 1,000,000 26,570,000

2017/18 225,000 75,000 24,000,000 300,000 20,000 50,000 24,670,000 900,000 1,000,000 26,570,000

Totals 79,569,000 89,069,000

Green Deal contribution 270 270 1,000 5,400 3,600 4,000 2,700 1,800

2013/14 675,000 270,000 200,000 540,000 36,000 40,000 1,761,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 18,861,000

2014/15 1,350,000 540,000 1,000,000 2,700,000 180,000 200,000 5,970,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 23,070,000

2015/16 2,025,000 675,000 6,000,000 2,700,000 180,000 200,000 11,780,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 28,880,000

2016/17 2,025,000 675,000 6,000,000 2,700,000 180,000 200,000 11,780,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 28,880,000

2017/18 2,025,000 675,000 6,000,000 2,700,000 180,000 200,000 11,780,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 28,880,000

Totals 43,071,000 128,571,000

Employment Direct Indirect

2013/14 59 57

2014/15 133 129

2015/16 257 249

2016/17 257 249

2017/18 257 249

Carbon savings Tonnes Energy Savings kWh £

2013/14 3343 2013/14 16,999,000 2,549,850

2014/15 7525 2014/15 38,270,000 5,740,500

2015/16 14525 2015/16 73,870,000 11,080,500

2016/17 14525 2016/17 73,870,000 11,080,500

2017/18 14525 2017/18 73,870,000 11,080,500

Above based on developing markets

Established MarketDeveloping Market

149



Appendix B: Options for Green Deal Programme  

 

32 

15 Year programme Loft insulation

Cavity Wall 

insulation

Solid wall 

insulation

Solar PV                   

4 kw systems Solar HW Heat pumps Summary

Double 

Glazing

A rated 

boilers TOTALS

Total of measures to be done 67,750 22,500 49,300 139,550

Measures per Year

2013/14 1,000 500 100 50 5 5 1,660 3,000 5,000 9,660

2014/15 2,000 1,000 200 100 10 10 3,320 3,000 5,000 11,320

2015/16 5,000 2,500 1,500 200 20 20 9,240 3,000 5,000 17,240

2016/17 5,000 2,500 1,500 200 20 20 9,240 3,000 5,000 17,240

2017/18 5,000 2,500 1,500 200 20 20 9,240 3,000 5,000 17,240

Totals 32,700 72,700

Budget price per measure 300 300 5,000 6,000 4,000 5000 3000 2000

2013/14 300,000 150,000 500,000 300,000 20,000 25,000 1,295,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 20,295,000

2014/15 600,000 300,000 1,000,000 600,000 40,000 50,000 2,590,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 21,590,000

2015/16 1,500,000 750,000 7,500,000 1,200,000 80,000 100,000 11,130,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 30,130,000

2016/17 1,500,000 750,000 7,500,000 1,200,000 80,000 100,000 11,130,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 30,130,000

2017/18 1,500,000 750,000 7,500,000 1,200,000 80,000 100,000 11,130,000 9,000,000 10,000,000 30,130,000

Totals 37,275,000 132,275,000

ECO contribution 30 30 4,000 600 400 1000 300 200

2013/14 30,000 15,000 400,000 30,000 2,000 5,000 482,000 900,000 1,000,000 2,382,000

2014/15 60,000 30,000 800,000 60,000 4,000 10,000 964,000 900,000 1,000,000 2,864,000

2015/16 150,000 75,000 6,000,000 120,000 8,000 20,000 6,373,000 900,000 1,000,000 8,273,000

2016/17 150,000 75,000 6,000,000 120,000 8,000 20,000 6,373,000 900,000 1,000,000 8,273,000

2017/18 150,000 75,000 6,000,000 120,000 8,000 20,000 6,373,000 900,000 1,000,000 8,273,000

Totals 20,565,000 30,065,000

Green Deal contribution 270 270 1,000 5,400 3,600 4,000 2,700 1,800

2013/14 270,000 135,000 100,000 270,000 18,000 20,000 813,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 17,913,000

2014/15 540,000 270,000 200,000 540,000 36,000 40,000 1,626,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 18,726,000

2015/16 1,350,000 675,000 1,500,000 1,080,000 72,000 80,000 4,757,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 21,857,000

2016/17 1,350,000 675,000 1,500,000 1,080,000 72,000 80,000 4,757,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 21,857,000

2017/18 1,350,000 675,000 1,500,000 1,080,000 72,000 80,000 4,757,000 8,100,000 9,000,000 21,857,000

Totals 16,710,000 102,210,000

Employment Direct Indirect

2013/14 26 25

2014/15 51 50

2015/16 143 139

2016/17 143 139

2017/18 143 139

Carbon savings Tonnes Energy Savings kWh £

2013/14 1453 2013/14 7,387,000 1,108,050

2014/15 2905 2014/15 14,774,000 2,216,100

2015/16 8085 2015/16 41,118,000 6,167,700

2016/17 8085 2016/17 41,118,000 6,167,700

2017/18 8085 2017/18 41,118,000 6,167,700

Above based on developing markets

Developing Market Established Market

150



 

33 

 

All All

Number Number % Number % Number % Number % Number % Number % Number %

Belmont 3,369 124 3.68 1056 31.34 305 9.05 1,068 596 17.69 472 14.01 2,400 822 24.40 403 11.96

Canons 4,234 147 3.47 786 18.56 391 9.23 1,986 912 21.54 1,074 25.37 2,356 829 19.58 650 15.35

Edgware 3,479 197 5.66 869 24.98 550 15.81 1,438 882 25.35 556 15.98 2,117 707 20.32 376 10.81

Greenhill 4,092 232 5.67 573 14.00 565 13.81 2,556 1,807 44.16 749 18.30 1,804 864 21.11 278 6.79

Harrow on the Hill 4,539 293 6.46 799 17.60 573 12.62 2,502 1,779 39.19 723 15.93 2,245 989 21.79 360 7.93

Harrow Weald 4,029 231 5.73 917 22.76 321 7.97 1,898 1,060 26.31 838 20.80 2,298 789 19.58 493 12.24

Hatch End 3,913 184 4.70 896 22.90 340 8.69 1,631 883 22.57 748 19.12 2,450 888 22.69 553 14.13

Headstone North 3,487 133 3.81 910 26.10 354 10.15 1,265 685 19.64 580 16.63 2,375 882 25.29 466 13.36

Headstone South 3,596 141 3.92 872 24.25 509 14.15 1,705 1,204 33.48 501 13.93 2,120 837 23.28 298 8.29

Kenton East 3,385 250 7.39 884 26.12 534 15.78 1,348 807 23.84 541 15.98 2,092 675 19.94 357 10.55

Kenton West 3,369 186 5.52 959 28.47 526 15.61 1,088 697 20.69 391 11.61 2,342 779 23.12 393 11.67

Marlborough 3,641 228 6.26 717 19.69 506 13.90 1,904 1,376 37.79 528 14.50 1,938 826 22.69 293 8.05

Pinner 4,062 220 5.42 724 17.82 296 7.29 1,989 1,172 28.85 817 20.11 2,273 913 22.48 552 13.59

Pinner South 3,753 162 4.32 988 26.33 251 6.69 1,490 783 20.86 707 18.84 2,419 857 22.84 493 13.14

Queensbury 3,410 159 4.66 993 29.12 541 15.87 1,262 813 23.84 449 13.17 2,243 694 20.35 356 10.44

Rayners Lane 3,631 170 4.68 986 27.16 474 13.05 1,368 827 22.78 541 14.90 2,417 859 23.66 408 11.24

Roxbourne 4,163 442 10.62 911 21.88 589 14.15 2,280 1,601 38.46 679 16.31 2,087 759 18.23 267 6.41

Roxeth 3,831 267 6.97 951 24.82 512 13.36 1,750 1,178 30.75 572 14.93 2,255 810 21.14 325 8.48

Stanmore Park 3,877 163 4.20 737 19.01 316 8.15 1,733 910 23.47 823 21.23 2,280 856 22.08 592 15.27

Wealdstone 3,504 262 7.48 725 20.69 428 12.21 1,841 1,278 36.47 563 16.07 1,825 713 20.35 282 8.05

West Harrow 3,750 220 5.87 876 23.36 451 12.03 1,767 1,176 31.36 591 15.76 2,182 829 22.11 342 9.12

Total** 79,114 4,411 5.58 18,129 22.92 9,332 11.80 35,869 22,426 28.35 13,443 16.99 46,518 17,177 21.71 8,537 10.79

Harrow 79,112 4,411 5.58 18,129 22.92 9,331 11.79 35,869 22,427 28.35 13,442 16.99 46,515 17,176 21.71 8,537 10.79

Households

One person Households:                                               

Single, Separated, Divorced or Widowed

In a couple household - All Household Reference 

Persons (HRP's)

Couple: With 

dependent children

Aged less than 60 Aged 60 and over

Other Multi Person 

households

Aged 60 and overAged less than 60

Lone parent 

households with 

dependent 

children*
Ward/Harrow

151



 

34 

Public consultation 
 
Delivering Warmer Homes  
 
The council is seeking your views on the draft Delivering Warmer Homes (HECA) report, before 
submission to the Secretary of State for Energy and Climate Change – at the end of March 
2013.  
 
As part of this consultation we will also be talking to the energy companies and other interested 
organisations to ensure that our proposals are realistic and deliverable. 
 
Please feel free to use the comment section to clarify your response or  bring to our attention 
any errors and omissions. It would be useful if you could supply evidence to support any 
observations/comments. However, it would also be useful if comments were kept as brief as 
possible and not repeated in full in response to one or more questions 
 
 
 

1. Do you agree with the Strategic Aims set out in the Introduction (p.4) 
 

Yes  

  

No  

  

Comments:  

 

 

 

 
 

2. Do you agree with our analysis of the challenge set out in section 3 
 

Yes  

  

No  

  

Comments:  

 

 

 

 
 
 

152



 

35 

 
3. Do you agree that a fifteen year programme is reasonable, ambitious enough and 

deliverable? 
 

Yes  

  

No  

  

Comments:  

 

 

 

 
 
 

4. Do you consider that the proposed support for low-income families is about right? 
 

Yes  

  

No  

  

Comments:  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

5. Do you agree that the Green Deal represents an opportunity to deliver a step-
change in improving the energy efficiency in the Borough and that Harrow should 
partner with a Green Deal Provider? 

 

Yes  

  

No  

  

Comments:  

 

 

 

153



 

36 

 
 

6. Do you think that our analysis of how to approach the different housing sectors is 
correct? 

 

 Yes No 

   

Owner occupied   

   

Private Rented Sector   

   

Council housing   

   

Registered Providers   

   

Comments:  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

7. Do you agree with the draft Action Plan set out in Section 7? 
 

Yes  

  

No  

  

Comments:  

 

 

 

 
 

154


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Changes in Public Realm Services
	8 Draft Climate Change Action Plan and draft Delivering Warmer Homes (HECA) report
	ClimateChangeReview
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixA
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixB
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixC
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixD
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixE
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixF
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixG
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixH
	ClimateChangeReviewAppendixI


